ADDUITI0M 0 L eanpggrrons

10-K | fiscal2015forml -k btrm 10-K —
Table of é;?tmzs o " E sz 3 / - / g

s UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO
SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended October 2, 2015 Commission File No. 1-7463

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.

Delaware 95-4081636

State of incorporation IRS Employer
identification number

155 North Lake Avenue
Pagadena, California 91101 (626)578-3500
Address of principal executlve offlves Telephone number (Including area code)

Securities registered pursuant te Section 12(b) of the Act:

Ttle ot Fach Class e of ich Registor
Cotmmon Stock, $1 par valoe New York Stock Behange

Securities registered pursnant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by checl-mark if the Registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 ofthe Securities Act: B Yes O No
Indicate by check-mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d)ofthe Act. [0 Yes E No

Indicate by check-mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all repotts required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 duwing the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter perfod that the Registrant was required to tile such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past
90 days. B Yes [1 No

Indicate by check-mark whether the Registrant: has submitted clectronically and posted on its corporate Web site, it any, every Interactive Data File required te be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulaticn 8-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (er for such shorter pexiod that the Registrant
was required to submit and post such files}.

E Yes-[O No

Indicate by check-mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Trem 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, fo the best of the Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or infonmtion statements incorporated by relerence in Part 1T of this Form 10-K or any
amenchoent to this Form 10-K. FE

Indicate by check-mark whether the Registiant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See the
definitions of “large accelerated filer™, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer | Accelerated filer [m]

Non-accelerated filer | Smaller reporting company [m|

Indicate by check-mark whethet the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act) O Yes B No
There wete 122,557,955 shaves of conmon stock outstanding as of Novernber 20, 2015, The aggregate market value of the Registrant’s common equity held by nen-
affiliates was approximately $5.6 billion as of March 27, 2015, based upon the last reported sales price on the New York Stock Exchange on that date.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the Registrant’s definitive proxy staterent to be issued in connection with its 2016 annual meeting ofshareholders are incorporated by reference into Part
1l of this Annual Report on Form 10-K where indicated.

https:/Awww.last1 Ok.com/sec-filings/52988/0000052988-15-000155.htm



Table of Conteiny

ltem
Paut T

Part 1

Part T

Part IV

Item 1.

Ilem LA,
[tem |B.

ftem 2.
Ttern 3,
Ttem 4,

Item 5.
Item6.
Ttom7,

Ttrem7A,

ltem8.
Iiem9.

Item 94,
Ttem 9B.

Itemn 10,
Item 1L,
Item 12.
Item 13.
Item 14.

Itemn 135,

JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC.,
Fiscal 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K

Table of Contenfs

Busingss

Risk Factors

Uniesolved Staff Contrents
Droperties

Lepal Proceedings

Mine Safety Disclosure

Quaatitative angd Oualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Financial §tmeg_§n§s gnd S;,tmg!gngn;my Data

Controls ang; Pegcedures
Other information

Birzetors, Brecutive Officers and Comorate £ ane
Exccutive Cony) ensation

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Exhibits and Financial Statepent Scheduk
Signatires

Page 2

Page Nu.

Page3
Page 20
Page 33
Page 33
Page 34

age S

Page 56
Page 57

Page 57
Pape 57

Page 58

https://www.last10k.com/sec-filings/52988/0000052988-15-000155.htm



Tabic of Contents

PARTI
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historical information, this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Refortmn Act of 1995, Forward-ooking statements are statements that do not directly relate to any historical or current fact. When used hergin, words such as
"expects," "anticipates,” "believes," "secks,” "estimates," "plans," "intends,” “fature,” “will,” “would,” “could,” “can,” “may,” and similar words are ntended to
identify forward-looking statements. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Although such statements are based on
nanagement’s enrrent estirmates and expectations and/or currently available competitive, financial, and economic data, forward-looking statements are inherently
uncertain and invelve risks and uncertainties that could cauze our actual results to differ materially from what may be inferred fromthe forward-fooking stotements.
Factots that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, these listed and diseussed in Item LA—Risk Factors below. We undertake
no obligation to release publicly any revisions or updates to any forward-looking statements. We encourage you to read carefully the risk factors described herein
and in other documents we file from titne to time with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC").

Unless the context otherwise requires, all references herein to "Jacobs" or the "Registrant" are to Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and its predecessars, and

references to the "Company", "we”, "us" or "our" are to Jacobs Engineeting Group Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Ttem 1. BUSINESS

General Bacloground Information

We are one of the largest technical professional services fims in the world, We provide a diverse range of technical, professional, and construction services
to a large number of industrial, commercial, and governmental clients, We provide four broad categorics of services:

+  Project Services (including engineering, design, architecture, interiors, planning, environmental, and similar services);

+  Process, Scientific, and Systens Consulting Services (including services performed in connection with scientific testing, analysis, and consulting
activities, ag well a3 information technolegy and systems engineering and integration activities);

+  Construction Services {(encompassing traditional field construction services as well as modular construction consulting capabilities, dircet hire
construction, and construction management services); and

+  Operations and Maintenance Services (inchuding services performed in connection with operating large, complex facilities on behalf of clients, as well as
services involving process plant and facilities nnintenance).

We focus our services on clients operating in the following industries and markets:
¢« QOiland gas exploration, production, and refining;
»  Chemicals and polymers;
*  Prograns for various national governments, including serospace, defense, and environmental programs;

+  Buildings (including specialized buildings for clients operating in the fickls ofhealthcare, education, and high technology; governmental complexes;
other specialized civic and mission critical buildings, installations, and laboratories; and retail and commercial buildings);

»  Infragtructure and telecommuinications;
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+  Mining and minerals;
+  Phameceuticals and biotechnology;
»  Power
+  Pulp and paper;
+  Technology and manufacturing; and,
+  Food and consuirer products, ameng othets,

We ate headquartered in Pasadena, California, USA, and provide our services through more than 200 offices located arcund the globe, pritrarily in North
Arrerica, South America, Europe, the Middle East, India, Australia, Aftica, and Asia,

Ho ‘Y

The relationships we have with our clients drive our business. As a broad-based technical professional services fitm, we offer a range of services to help our
clients maintain a competitive edge in their respective markets. From feasibility studies to design, to engineering, to construction, to start-up and commissioning, and
then to operations and maintenance, we cuslomize our setvices to meet business and project goals, Our global network of professionals works with a nmilti-office
approach in an effort to provide clients with the best, most economical project or programsolutions,

We strive to provide client value through continuous improvement in our performance. We regulatly monitor our clients' expoctations, our project delivery
protocols and systetn, and our operational performance, Tools such as our Jacobs Value Enhancing Practices, Global Standard Cperating Procedures, project reviews,
the Jacobs System to Ensure Project Success {"JSTEPS") and Safe Plans of Action ("SPAs™) provide added value to our clients’ projects. They also allow us to create
performance improvement actions during the project execution. Through continuous fmprovement upon our performance, cur tools, and our processes, we believe we
can offer our clients superior value when they do business with us,

Jacobs Value+™ (" Value Plus") is an internal tool we use to document and quantify the actual value or savings we provide to cur clients and their projects.
Some of the benefits achieved through the Value Plus program include lower total installed cost, shorter schedule, and reduced life cycle cost. Value Plus is
inplemented at project initiation: a project goal is created, and cost-saving ideas are entered into the Value Plus database, When the Value Plus cycl: is complete, the
project teamnand client identify unique cost and/or schedule reductions for the project.

Our Business Model

Qur organizational structure and integrated system for delivering services are key corponents of our business strategy. Onr operating units generally use a
fmattix organiztional strycture whereby our project management functions ate supported by the various technical planning, design, and construction disciplines that
arc necessary to effectively execute long-term engineering and construction contracts. We recognize that technical expertise alone cannot grow our business; project
management skills and the ability to manage multi-million dollar projects and prograins for our clients are critical to our success. Crucial functions, such as project
controls and procurement, are embedded within each of our regions and serve operations by providing spectalized services requirec by projects.

Cur business is set up to foster coopetation anmong teams and across our operating uniis. Historically, we have not operated “profil eenters™ within the
Company, nor do we allow our operating groups to compete against each other for contracts. Our erganizational structure and integrated system for delivering
services are key conponents of our business strategy. The following three ideas support ourbusiness model:

Multi-Domestic Approach

We woik in neny countries with locally-staffed offices that share a cormmon set of values, tools, and a single vision, while mintaining ene-on-one contact
with individual clients. This nulti-domestic approach enables us to provide customized service suited to the locale while still taking advantage of the
Company’s globalnetwork,

Boundarviess Approach
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Our diversity encompasses our people, geographic reach, expertise, and technical capabilities, On projects around the world, we enhance local expertise with
the best talent and the best technology available anywhere throughout the Cormpany. This seamless, boundaryless approach keeps us flexible and enhances
our ability to develop the best possible selutions for our clients, regardless of office or project location,

Cost Management Approach

As the global economy expands and companies providing technical, professional, and construction services are required to compete against each other
across geographic boundaries, companies that can provide their clients with cost-efficient solutions to their project needs have the advantage, With a
strong focus on managing costs, we provide savings te clients and deliver superior technical, professional, and construction services safely, efficiently, and
within the cost and time parameters our clients require,

Jacobs’ corporate functions include Project Delivery, Safety, Finance and Administration, Legal, Human Resoutces, [nformation Technology, Compliance
and, through fiscal 2015, Global Sales and Marketing, which are all integral to our success.

The Company's Culture

Ourerployees are our most important and valuable asset and, therefore, the prevention of job-related injuries is given top priority. It is the policy ofthe
Company to provide and maintain a safe and healthy working enviromment and to follow operating practices that safeguard all enployees and result in a more
efficient operation. BeyondZero® , the name of our program that promotes our culture of caring, moves beyond efforts to have an incident and injury-free safety
performance, We implement a culture of caring where concem for emmployees' health, safety, and welfare extends cutside the office walls, beyond the project site
fences and into their homes, cars, and all the places where they interact with family, friends, and fellow employces.

Since Jacobs’ founding, the Conpany has been based on doing business honesily, ethically, and with the utmost integrity. Our culture, and our Code of
Conduct that is signed annually by all employees, prescribes that everyone at the Company must adhere to Jacobs® Core Values and ethical code, and comply with
the laws that govemn the Commpany’s activities worldwide. Our employees and business pariners are expected to follow the highest principles of business conduet,
integrity, and ethics as they carry out their responsibilities, and are guided by the following principles in carrying out their responsibilities: loyalty, compliance with
applicable laws, observance of ethical standards, avoidance of conflicts of inferest, and communication. We endeavor to deal fairly with our enmployees, customers,
suppliers, and conpetitors, and to respect the policies and procedures of those ouiside the Company.

‘We slrive to present a clear and consistent imnge of our Company to our clients, employees, shareholders, and business partnets - regarding how we
behave, how we communicate, how we leok, and most importantly, how our promises te our clients are delivered - anywhere in the world.

We accomplish this foremost threugh our core values, which allow us to behave as one company and unify us worldwide, By keeping our core values as a
central focus of our Cormpany, we are able to think the same way and arrive at similar conclusions, regardless of our physical location. Qur core values are:

+  People arc our greatest asset;
+  Weare relationship-based; and
+  Growth is an imperative.
The balince inherent in our core vaiues i also cvident in our approach to sustainability, which maintains an even bakince among the people, the economics,
and the environmental aspects of business, Jacobs is driven to continuously mvprove efficiencies and reduce energy and resources, practices that drive down costs
and contribuie to a lower inpact on the environrent. The Company adheres to the following seven sustainability principles:

+  Sustainable development is a corporate priority;

+  We seck broad, deep, dilferentiated capabilities and services;
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+  Sustainable development is integrated into curbusiness,
+  Training and edugation ave important;
+  Our facilities and operations follow sustainable principles;
+  We contribute to the common effort for sustainability; and
*  We are open and transparent.

Applying the best, most efficient and offective sustainable solutions for clients worldwide, it all major industries in which cur clients operate, allows us to
rake a significant contribution to a safe and sustainable future. Each year we issue a Sustainability Report that describes many of our efforts and accomplishments
regarding environimental sustainability.

With respect to hunem resources, our goal is to establish an inclusive, diverse worlplace that energizes the people who fuel cur Company's growth.
Although we arc a large company with over 64,000 cnyployees in over 25 countries, our employces are unified in their Focus on superior value, safety, and cthical
business practices regardless of the country in which they work, and employees frequontly imove around the systemas they grow their careers.

Hinw We Grow

Jacobs has grown significantly since its founding in 1947; both through organic growth and through strategic acquisitions, an important part ofthe
Company's growth strategy. We have acquired and integrated numerous cotipanies over the vears that have enlianced cur capabilities, geographic reach, and
offerings.

In terms of organic growih, ourrelationship-based business rodel is central to our sustained growth and profitability. We pursue the developrvent of long-
termrelationships and aliiances with our clients. By warking with our clients on their capital prograns, we increase our understanding of their overall business needs,
as well as the unique techinical requirements of their specilic projects. This increased understanding enables us, we believe, to provide superior value to our clients.
Qur approach provides us with opportunities to market the services our clients are eapected to need in the pre-design phase, such as master planning, permitting, or
project finance options; in the design phase; and in the constuetion, post-start-up and commissioning phases ofa facility, including operations and maintenance
services.

Our relationships with clients alse present ongoing opportunities to expand info adjscent markets. For example, clients operating in the mining and minerals
market often: have a need for our infrastructure and buildings capabilities, The sane is true for clients operating in other markets.

We market our services Lo clients in a wido range of public and institutional, process, and industrial markets. We increase our opportunities through
selective market diversily, and are able to price contracts more competitively and enhance overall profitability while defivering additional value to our clients by
integrating and bundling our services. In complex economic times, we have the ability to evolve along with market cycles wotldwide, When opportunities decrease in
a particular market or geography, other opportunitics often ncrease. Because of our selective market diversity, we believe we are well-positioned to addiess a wide
range of opportunitics acress many markets and geographies, which helps us grow our business,

Closely linked to our relitionship-based business modelis our multi-demestic geographic strategy. Our core clieats can depend on us for assistance with

their engineering and construclion needs when they move projects around the world, We thersfore follow our clients into new geogtaphic regions, which helps us
perform meaningful pertions of their projects by utilizing local resources rather than exporting the work to other offices.
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isitions and Strategic Investments in the Deyel nt Our Bugin

When we review acquisition targets, we are consecious of the effect the acquisition may have on our client base. We favor acquisitions that allow us to (i}
cxpand into a new client market; (i) enhance the range of services we provide existing clients; and/or (jii) access new geographic areas in which our clients either
already operate or plan to eapand. By expanding into new geographic areas and adding to our existing technical and project management capabilities, we strive ta
position ourselves as a preferred, single-source provider of technical, professional, and constrection services to our major clients. The following is a brief description
of some of our recent key acquisitions (in reverse chronological order):

. On March 31, 2015, we acquired Suzhou Hans Chemical Engineering Co, ("SHCE") headquartered in China, SHCE has two specialty Class A
design licenses in China’s Chemieal, Petrochemical and Pharmaceutical industries, which allows the firmto provide engineering design for all
types of chemical projects in China irrespective of project size plus procurement and project management services for various projects in
China. These combined resources enable Jacebs to offer customers in China a complete spectrumef services for all types of cherrical and
petrachemical prejects.

. On July 1, 2014, we acquired Federal Network Systerms ("FNS"), a subsidiary of Verizon Conmumnications headquartered in Ashbum, Virginia.
FNS provides systems integration and communication, information technology and data security solutions fer the global market with a
particular focus on supperting the Intelligence Community, the U.S. Department of Defense (" DoD™), and federal civilian customers, FNS
designs, integrates, secures, operates and maintains highly complexmission critical voice, data and video networks.

. On Febmuary 7, 2014, we acquired Eagleton Engineering, LLC (" Fagleton") headquartered in Houston, Texas. The acquisition enhances our
capabilities in midstream and upstream pipeline engineering, design and field surveying services, Fagleton specializes in pipeline engineering,
primarily providing professional services and resources to the oil, gas and petrochemical industries. The finn's services coverthe full lifs cycle
of project planning and delivery, from conceptual studies and design to full tumkey engineering, procurement and construction solutions and
operational support.

. On December 24, 2014, we acquired the assets of FMHC Corporation (*FMHC") headquartered in Chicago, Ilinois, This acquisition enhances
our ability to provide tumkey wireless comnumnications site development, design, network deployment, construction, and refated zervices to
clients eperating in the wireless telecomnminications industry.

. On December 20, 2013, we acquired Stobbarts Limited, a construction fiam based in West Cumbtia, United Kingdom The acquisition enhances
our capabilities in nuclear, decemmissioning, constction and civil engineering,

. ©On December 13, 2013, we acquired Sinclair Knight Merz Management Pty Limited and Sinclair Knight Merz Holdings Limited {collectively,
"SKM"), a provider of engineering, design, procurement, construction and project managenent services. Due to ifs size and complexities, more
information about the SKM acquisition is provided throughout this report.

. On November 22, 2013, we acquired certain assets and liabilitics of MARMAC Field Services, Inc. headquantered in Costa Mesa, Califomia.
The acquisition enhances our capabilities in pipeline enginzering and design services; both geographically and by adding acdditicnal
capabilitics to serve the utility and gas industries.

. On October 18, 2013, we acquired & 45% interest in Guiner Engenharia, a privately held engingering services and project
management/constiuction management {"PMCM") company based in Rio de Janeiro, Brazil. The acquisition represents Jacobs’ first significant
investment in Brazl. Guimar has a bread client base and operations throughout Brazil, where it is a leading provider of PMOM services for
clients in the pulp and paper, petroleum, chemicals, food and beverage, mining and minerals, building and infrastructure industries,

. On October 14, 2013, we acquired substantially all the assets and liabilities of the Trompeter Group. This acquisition enhances our capabilities
in advanced engineering services, maintenance support,
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technica! training services, and conlingent workforce services to the automotive manufacturing industry. The business is headquartered in
Detroit, Mickigan.

. On August 30, 2013, our South Afiicun joint venture, Jacobs Matasis (Proprietaty) Linited, acquired Titha Projects and Ifitha Staffing. llitha
Projects provides management and BEngineering, Procurement, Construction and Management (EPCM) services o clients in a broad range of
market sectors, including oil and gas, refining, chemicals, power, nuclear, imarine mining and nwetals. [litha Staffing supplies technical contract
stalfsourcing and management services with a strong enphasis on integration with the client’s cullure and business practices.

. Commencing on June 6, 2013, and through the end of fiscal 2015, we acquired further ownership interests in Consulting Engineering Services
(Indiz) Private Limited (*CES™), an infiastructure and civil engineering company headquartered m Delhi, Tndia. As of the end of fiscal 2015, the
Conpany's ownetship intetest fin CES i 99.2%. CES provides a range of solutions in infrastructure development, planning, engineeing, and
construction management,

. On May 28, 2013, we acquired Compass Technology Services, Ine. {"Compass"), headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia, Compass is a provider of
telecommunications professional and field services in the Southeastern U.S. and enhances our capabilitics in wireless telecommunications
‘infrastructure design and construction,

. In August 2012, we acquired a consulting project management business based in Sydney, Australia. The primacy purposc of this acquisition
was to expand our geographic presence and grow our infiastructure business it Australia.

. In Decerrber 2011, we acquired Unique World Pty Ltd, ("Unique World"), headquartered in Sydney, Australia. Unique World is an information
nenagement and knowledge manageivent congultancy specializing in enabling technologies such as collaboration, business process
automation, business intelligence, intrancts, and portals, Unique World expands our capabilitios in Australia te include such information
technology ("IT"}services, a3 well as expanding the client base to which we can offor these services.

. In November 201 1, we acquired KlingStubbiny, Inc., a 500person fiim headquartered in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania with offices located
throughout the U.8, and China. KlingStubbins provides professional services in the areas of architecture, engineering, intericrs, planning, and
landscape architecture. The markets served by KlingStubbins include corporate/comeercial, governmental, science and technology, higher
education, mission critical, and interiors.

After we complete an acquisition, we move quickly to integrate the newly acquired operations. We typically assign scnior operations personnel to manage
the overall integration process with assistanee fromour sales, accounting, legal, IT, human resources, and risk management departments. Although infegrating newly
acquired businesses can be very challenging, the assimilation process is critical in order to assure (i) that our global businesses processes and systems are properly
deplayed throughout the newly-acquired entities and (fi) that we can begin to leverage off'the acquired talents, skills, and expertise to grow our business and help
cur clients execute their capital programs. Newly-acquired businesses are generally not left as stand-alone entities within the Company’s internal reporting system,
The businesses we acquire are typically folded in to existing operational organizmiions within the Conpany. For additional infoumation regarding certain issucs
related to our acquisition strategy, please refer to Item 1A— Risk Factars below.

nanci { j t Segments

Although we describe ourbusiness in this Annual Report on Form 10-K in terirs of the various services we provide, the markets in which our clients
operate, and the geographic areas in which we operate, we have concluded that owr eperations may be aggregated into one reportable segiment puisuant to those
accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“UL.S. GAAPF™). In making this determination, we considered the various econcmic characteristics of our
operations, including: the nature ofthe services we provide, the nature of our internal processes for delivering and distributing those services, and the types of
customers we have. In addition to the discussion that follows, please refer to Note 14— Segment information of Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements
beginning cn page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10K
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There is a high degree of similarity ameng the workforces employed across the categories of services we provide, For exoniple, professionals in engineering
and design services (i.e., services provided by persons who are degreed, and in certain circumstances licensed, such as engineers, architects, scientists, anc
economists ) exist in all four service categories. In addition, there is a high degree of similarity among a significant component of the workforees we enploy te perform
construction and operations and maintenance ("O&M") projects. In providing construction and O&M services, we employ a large nuirber of skilled craft labor
personnel These may include welders, pipe fitiers, electricians, crane operators, and other personnel who worlcon very large capital projects (in the case of projects
classified within the construction services category) or on smaller capital projects {in the case of maintenance projects classified within the O&M services category).

Allofour offices use a muatrix organizational structure. Our results, therefore, are dependent on groups representing technical disciplines (e.g., electrical
engineering, mechanical engincering, cost engineering, ete.) supporting project management personnel {(who mmintain the relationship between our clients and us and
are ultimately responsible for delivering projects to our clients safely, on time, and on budget). Additionally, our operating regions use common tools, policies, and
procedures to manage and run their respective units. These include project review meetings, project performance evaluations, and preject execution plans.

Each of'the Company's operating regions provides most of the services the Conpany offers generally, and each of our operating regions includes in its
custotrer base many of the same or similar clients as our other regions.

The use of technology throughout cur organization is highly uniformt Whether it is computet-alded design and dratting (“CADD”) applicaticns used by our
engincering and design staff, or modeling programs used by the scientific and consulting staff; or scheduling, estinating, and cost control applications used by
home-office personnel in support of cur construction and maintenance activities, all of the service categories described above are equally affected by changes in
technology as they occur in the economy at large.

Furthemmwore, the types of information and intemal reports used by the Company’s chief operating decision maker (the “*OODM"), who is also the Comrpany's
chief executive officer, and other members of management to monitor performance, evaluate resulis of operations, allocate resources, and otherwise manage the
business support a single reportable segment. Accordingly, based on these similarities, we have concluded that our operations may be aggregated info one
repertable segiment for purposes of the disclosures included in this Annual Repott on Form 10-K.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2016, we announced a reorganization of our operations around four global lines of business. This reorganization is intended
to better setve our global clients, leverage our worldoree, help streamline operations, and provide enhanced growth opportunities. The four global lines of business
are; Petroleem & Chermicals, Buildings & Infrastiucture, Aerospace & Technology, and Industrial. Bach business unit has a president that reports directly to the
Company's President & CEO. As part of the reorganization, certain support functions {i.e. Sales), which have been managed centrally for many years, will be
embedded in the new business uniis and will repot to the respeetive line of business presidents, The costs of other suppont functions (e.g., accounting, legal, hunan
resources, and infommtion technology) and certain other activities {e.g ., globalinsurance) will either be assigned or allocated to each new business unit using a
rationale method of assignment/allocation, or will remain an element of corporate general and administrative expenses. In addition, the Company has significantly
modified its major cash incentive plan utilizing forecasted performmnce metrics aligned along the new lines of business. We are in the process of medifying our
systens and work processes to report the results of these business units in an accurate and timely manner. We are also developing processes for accurately
eliminating nter-unit revenue and profit. We expect to complete our systemand other process changes so that we may accurately report operating results by ling of
business to the Company's President & CEO no later than the second quarter of tiseal 2016,
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Services Provided

As described above, the services we provide generally fall nto the following four broad categories: Project Services; Process, Seientilic, and Systens
Consulting services; Construction services; and Operations and Maintenance services.

The fellowing table sets forth our revenues fiomeach of our four service categories for each ofthe last five fiscal ycars (in thousands):

2S5 2014 2013 2012 2011

Praject Services ) . 3 6307015 F - 6,570,004 - 3 5971007 % 5693419 - % 5,070,575
Process, Scicntific, and Systens Consulting 1,188,418 758,957 703,694 772,031 815,561
Constuction ' _ 329187 4,389 3825878 3453 3960820
Operations and Mainfenance 1,327,576 - 1,221,467 1,308,887 1,283,017 7 1,434,708

3 12,114,832 $ 12,695,157 - & 11818376 10,893,778 ~ % 10,381,664 °

Project Services

We employ the engineering, architecture, interiors, design, planning, and related disciplines nccessary to design and engineer modern process plaats,
bulldings, infrastructure projects, technology and manufacturing facilities, consumer products manufaoturing facilities, power plants and siations, pulp and paper
plants, and other facilities.

We are capable of providing our clients with a variety of value engineeting services, including "salety in design”. Through safety in design we integrate
best practices, hazad analysis, and risk assessiment methods early in the design phase of projects, taking those steps necessary te eliminate or mitigate injury and
damage during the construction, start-up, testing and commissioning, and operations phases of a project.

In the area of construction nanagement, we provide our clients with a wide range of services as an agent for cur clients. We may act as programdirector,
whereby we aversee, on the owner's behalf, the complete planning, design, and construction phases of the project. Altematively, our services may be limited 1o
providing construction consulting,

Project Services also includes planning, scheduling, procurenent, estimating, cost engneering, project accounting,
project delivery {quality), salety, and all other key support services needed for cormpleto eradle-to-grave project delivery.

Systems Consulting Services

We enmploy the professional and technical skills and expertise with respect to a broad range of consulting services, including: performing pricing studies,
marke! analyses, and financial projections necessaty in determining the [as ibility ofa project; perfonming gasoline reformmlation modeling; analyzing and evaluating
layout and mechanical designs for complex processing plants; analyzing automation and control systems; analyzing, designing, and executing biocontainment
stiategies; developing and performing process protocols with respect to the U.S. Food and Drug Adminisiration-mandated qualification and validation requitcments;
and performing geological and metallurgical studies.

Alse inchided in this service catogory are revenues relating to defense and acrospace-related programs, Such services typically are more technical and
scicntific in nature than other project services we provide, and may involve such tasks as supporting the development and testing of conventional weapons systems;
weapons modeling and simulations; computer systeis development, maintenance, and support; evaluation and testing of mission-critical control systens;
aerospace, testing, and propulsion systems and facilities; and other highly technical or scientific tasks,

Construction Services

In addition to the construction nanagement services included underProject Services above, we provide traditional field construction services to private and
public sector clients. We also provide modular construction consulting services. In the area of environmental remediation and restoration, we also provide
environmental remedial construction scrvices for a variety of public and private sector clients.

Historically, our field construction activities have been focused primarily on these construction projects for which we performmmuch of the related

engineering and design work. By focusing our construction etfforts in this way, we aftempt to minimize the visks associated with constructing complex projects based
on designs prepared by third parties. The financial risk
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to us of constructing conplex assets based on designs prepared by third parties may be particularly significant on fixed-price contracts; therefore, we generally avoid
this type of project. However, we will pursue construction-only projects when: we can negotiate pricing and other contract terms we deemacceptable and which we
believe can resuit in a fair retum for the degree of risk we assuwme.

Operations and Maintenance Services

O8&M refers to all of the tasks required te operate and maintain lazge, complex facilities on behalf of clients. We provide key managerment and support
setvices overall aspects of the operations of a facility, including managing subcontractors and other on-site personnel. 0&M also includes process plant
maintenance services, which generally involves all tasks required to keep a process plant (typically a refinery or chemical plant) in day-to-day operation,

Within the aerospace and defense arcas, O&M often requires us to provide the management and technical support services necessary to operate and
maintain such sites as engine test facilities, weapons integration facilities, and high-tech sinmlation and verification centers. Such O&M contracis also frequently
require ug to provide facilities management and maintenance services; utilities operations and maintenance services; property management and disposition services;
and construction suppert services.

Within the envitonmental atea, O&M eften includes engingering and technical support services as well as program management services necessary to
remediate contaminated sites.

Although the gross profit margins we realize from O&M services are generully lower than those associated with the other services we provide, the costs to
support maintenance activities are alsc generally lower. Also, O&M services offer us an opportunity for long-term refationships with clients. This aspect of O&M
services greatly recuces the selling costs in respect of such services,

51 ai rliets in Which Qur Clients

We market our services to clients where the scope of work required by their capital projects and prograns is within our expertise. Within each market, we
- may offer specialty services unique to the sector, or services which differentiate us from eur competitors in the marketplace.

The following table sets forth our revenues fromeach of the various industry groups and markets in which our clients eperate for each of the last five fiscal
years {in thousands):

2015 2014 ' 2013 2012 2011
National Government Programs ' $ 26436% S 2282116 $ 2204533 8 2212611 3 231340 ¢
Chemicals and Polymers 2,380,721 2,085,352 2,391,144 1,704,723 1,461,125
Refining — Downstream - 195573 2239343 239387 . ZIWTIS0 2,256,092
Infrastructure 1,625,805 1,3é1,574 1,615,864 1,085,649 1,219,633
Oil& Gas ~ Upstream o o v 83344 95478 } 790,546 753471
Buildings 961,041 834,122 738,404 843,038 893,528
Tndustrial and Other o 571,357, CoTARM6 - B99756 SR % 630,694 ¢
Phamuesuticals and Biotechnology 474,345 452,662 523,400 576303 404,687
Mitting & Minetals. - 456,029 OIB608 712390 55013 449,194
$ 12,114832  § 12,695,157 % 11818376  § 10,893,778 % 10,381,664

Chemicals and Polviners

QOur clients in this sector rely on our extensive knowledge of and experience with feedstock synthesis, chernical synthesis, and polymerization, including
advanced polymeriztion reactors und state-of-the-art, post-reactor processing techniques to help bring new products and new facilities to market quickly and
econonically, We apply best practices on capital and maintenance work by leveraging resources within our alliances and partnerships. Specialty services we provide
to ourclients in these industries include project finance structuring consulting, market analysis, facility appraisal, and procurement with global inspection
capabilities.
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An fmportant capability we offer our clients in the chemicals business is in the arca of field services, We have contracts with major chemical producers
worldwide to provide construction, on-site imintenance, and tumaround activities. Many of these contracts are evergreen in nature, with relationships oxtending
overmany years due to our focus on safety, value, and client satis faction and lead us to numerous fonmal alliances.

efining - Downsis:

Qur typical refining projects for global clients include new desigh and construction, revamps or expansions ofexisting plants, turnatounds, upgrades of
individual progess units within refineries, and long-term maintenance services. We also provide process assessments, facility appraisals, feasibility studies,
technology evaluations, project finance structuring and support, and nmlti-clicnt subscription services,

Our modular constryction consulting capabilities, asset management/maintenance services, and formal client alliances help dillerentiate us fo customers
operating in this industry. Using medular construction decreases congestion at the construction site and provides enhanced safety, cost, and project execution
benefits in remote locations.

We also include power generation projects within our clients' refining and processing facilities, such as simple and corrbined eycle power projects, industrial
gas lutbines, and emergency power generation stations. In addition, we offer support in the procurement and commissioning of equipment,

ational Govern, o,

We categorize our National Goverminent Prograns as genenally relating to asrospace and defense prograns or envirennental programs for govemment
entities.

Aerospace and Defense Proprans

We provide an in-depth range of seionce, enginecting, construction and technical support services to the aerospace and defense industry. Long-term clients
include the Ministry of Defence in the UK., NASA, the DoDD, the U.S, Special Operations Command ("USSOCOM"), and the Australian Dopattnent of Defence.
Specific to NASA is our ability to design, build, operate, and maintain highly complex facilities relating to space systens, including test and evaluation facilities,
launch facilities, and support intiasructure,

OQur experience in the defonse sector includes millitary systems acquisition managemrent and strategic planning; operations and maintenance of test facilities
and ranges; test and evaluation services in computer, laboratory, facility, and range environments; test facility cormputer systems instrumentation and diagnestics;
and test facility design and build. We also provide systemns engincering and intcgration of complex weapons and space systems, as well as bardware and software
design of complex flight and ground systems,

We have provided advanced technology engincering services to the DoD for more than 50 years, and curreatly support major defense prograns in the U.S,
and internationally. We operate and maintain several DoD test centers and provide services and assist in the acquisition and development of systems and equipment
for Special Operations Forces, as well as the development of biological, chemical, and nucleat detection and protection systets,

We maintain enterprise information systems for government and commercial clients worldwide, ranging from the operation of complex computational
networks to the development and validation of specific soflware applications. We also support the DoD in a number of information technology progrums, including
netwotk design, integration, and suppott; command and control technology; development and maintenance of databases and customized applications; and security
soluticns,

Fnvironmental Programs

We provide environmenial investigation, penuitting, restoration, remediation, engineering, and site operations services to a number of Europeaty, Noth
American, and Middle Eastem government agencies, Our projects include hazardous and nuclear waste management and site cleanup and closure; the preparation of
feasibility studies and envirenmental investigations; environmental design; and remediation services on several national prograns, as well as compliance with
various naticnal environmental policies.
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Additionally, we support our clients in such areas as pollution prevention nssessments; underground storage tank removal; contaminated soil and water
remediation, monitoring and systems cleanup; long-term water quality management plans; and air quality planning and permitting. Much of this type of work is in
support of large infrastructure projects that are nnderway in both Eurepe and in Noith America.

As a differentiating aspect of our suppoert to our government clients, we provide asset management services in the form of long-term infrastructure
operations and maintenance. Asset manageiment also includes buikiing closures that involve deactivation, decommissioning, and demolition of government facilities.
This is an integral part of our services for the U.S. Department of Energy.

Infrastructure

The strengths we offer our clients in this industry group include expertise in transportation, transit, aviation, water and wastewaier, and civil construction
projects throughout North America, Burope, India, the Middle East, and Asia, Representative clients include national government departments and agenctes in the
U.8. and the UK, state departiments of transportation within the U.S,; other regienal and local agencies; and private industry freight transport fioms,

Transportation development/rehabilitation is a cote competency of aur inflastructure business. Typical projects include highways, bridges, transit, tunnels,
airports, railroads, intermodal facilities, and maritime or port projects where our interdisciplinary teams work independently or as an extension of the client's staff.
Providing sltemative fmancing methods has proven successful in Europe where there is privatization of public infrastiictuee systens,

In water infrastructure, we help public and private sector clients develop or rehabilitate critical water resource systems. Emerging economies are investing
heavily in water and wastewater systens, while governments in North Amerlca and Burope are addressing the challenges of drought and aging infrastmicture. We
also develop water/wastewater conveyance systens and water flood defense projects.

5 - Sred

As intemational oil companies develop reserves and fry to maximize theit existing resources, our expertise in a range of production methods, combined with
our conmitment to safety and strength in project nunagement, helps us deliver a wide range of projects for oil and gas operators.

In the explotation and producticn matket, our projects range from oil recovery through steaminjection to gas treating, gas gathering, and gas storage
projects including extraction of conmercially valuable elements of the gas stream, utilizing new technologies such as SteanrAssisted Gravity Drainage ("SAGD").

Typical projects for our clients in this sector invelve the design and construction of projects that recover oil and gas, and include oil thermal recovery
facilitics either by in-situ means or oil sands mining, upgraders, pipelines, gas plants, and CO; flood. These ate typically large projects that may invelve many of our
offices and often include work-share with our Mumbai, India office as a velue-added engineering center to reduce project costs.

We also provide substantial naintenance and modification services for aging oil and gas facilities around the wotld. In connection with the refining market,
we also provide process assessments, facility appraisals, feasibility studies, technology evaluations, project finance structuring consulting services, and other
support scrvices,

Buildings
We have planned, designed, and constructed buildings for a varicty of clients and markets for more than 60 years. We

beliove our global presence and understanding of contracting and dolivery domands keep us in an excellent position to provide professional services worldwide.

Qur diversified client base cncompasses both public and private sectors and relates primarily to institutional, commercial, govemment and corporate
buildings, including projects at many of the workl's leading medical and research centers, and universities. We focus our efforts and resources in areas where capital
spending initiatives drive demand, and where changes and advances in technology require innovative, value-adding solutions. We also provide integrated Facility
management services (sometimes through joint ventures with third parties) for which we assume responsibility for the ongoeing operation and maintenance of entire
commercial or industrial complexes on bebalfof clients.

Page 13

https:/Amwww.last10k.com/sec-filings/52988/0000052988-15-000155.htm



Table of Contents

We have specific capabilities in energy and power, master planning, and commissioning for office headquarters, aviation facilities, mission-critical facilities,
municipal and civic buildings, courts and correctional facilities, mixed-use and commetcial contors, healtheare and education campuscs, and recreation complexes.

Advanced technology clients requice highly specialized buildings in the ficlds of medical rescarch, nano scicnce, biolechnclogy, and laser sciences. We
cffer total integrated design and construction management solutiens to these projects, many of which are world leaders in their functions.

We also have capabilities in the phatma-bio, data center, govorurent intelligence, corporate headquarters/interiors, and seience and lechnology-based
education markets around the globe.

Cur govemment building projects include farge, multi-year programs in the 1.8, and Burope. U.S. governinent agencies we serve include the Federal
Aviation Administration ("FAA"); the General Services Administration ("GSA"); the Internal Revenue Service (“[RS"); the U.S. Departments of State, Treasury,
Agricullure, Homeland Security, and Defense; and the Anny National Guard, aimong others. In the UK, we are leading the Custodial Services' project management
delivery programto upgrade the UK. prison stock and also certain security-led programs such as upgrading works to the Palace of Westminster and some regional
police authorities,

We are providing services to the DoD on military family housing; quality of life projects; training, naintenance, and readiness facilities; and command and
control centers, as well as military facilities suppeorting the DoD's global re-basing program, the 2005 Base Realignment and Closure ("BRAC") program.

Incustrial ond Other

We provide a broad range ol services to our clients operating in the power, pulp and paper, high-technology manufacturing, and food, beverage, and
consumer products industries and markets.

Lower

Globul energy demand is expected to giow by nearly S0 petcent ovor the next 25 years, according to the U.S. Energy Information Administration.
Significant capital spend in the power business is being driven by plant obsolescence and the need for utilities to comply with regulatory requirements and changes
in environmental legislation, Our typical projects include simplo and combined cycle power projects, cogeneration power plants, asset lifetime exiension projects, and
eimergency power genemtion stations. In addition to traditionel engineering, we offer services in procurement and commissioning of equipment, as well
as construction scrvices for the power market including therrmal, biomass, renewables, and nuclear energy facilities.

Lulp and Paper

The pulp and paper industry has been consolidating for many years, and several of our traditional pulp and paper clients have emerged as major consumer
product companies. These clients have created new opportunities [orus in non-traditional areas, such as wall board plants and facilities that manufacture diapers and
feminine care products. Typical projects range fiom small mill projects to conplex, multi-million-clollar paper machine rebuilds, milf expansions, and the construction of
new facilities.

Pulp and paper projects encompass many arcas of a mill, and our expertise also includes the converting and packaging of paper products for distribution
and consutrer use. Qur pulp and paper capability extends through our offices in the U.8,, UK., Fiance, Spain, Italy, and Mexico to clients worldwide. A significant
portion of our wotk consists of assisting our clients in their comphiance with environmentad regulations and standards that affect the pulp and paper indusiry. We
meniter all key envirommental regulations affecting our clients and offer compliance studies, permitting support, design of pollution control systems, and compliance
services regarding air pollutant stundards and hazardous air pollutant emission limits fom industrial boilers.

igh-Tech turing
We provide our core services for a variety of high tech manufacturing and test facilities, particvlaly for clients in the automotive and industrial indystries.
Typical automotive projects range ftomconcepmal design and feasibility studies to complete design-build prograns of aero-acoustic wind tunnels, engine test
facilities, acoustic enclosures, transmission test stands; powertrain, envirentmental, einissions, aliitude, and electromagnetic compatibility test facilities; in-line and
end-ofline
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component test stands; and computer-based measurement and control systerns. We also serve advanced technology and research facilities, including facilities
supporting research in fusion and fission energy, nanoscale materials, and high-powered lasers and X-rays to suppott important research activities in the 1.8,
Burope, and the LK.

In addition, we performprojects for clients operating in the semiconductor industry. Projects in the semiconductor industry are typically more complex
than many other commercial facilities, requiring a greater emphasis on cleanroomand similar high-end technologies. Our projects range fromon-site plant engineering
and tool heokups to multi-million dollar state-cf-the-art wafer fabrication and crystal growing facilities used to produce solar energy cells, microprocessors for
computers, and other consumer electronic devices.

Food, Beverages, and Congumer Products

As a provider to the food, beverage, and consumer products supply chain, our global presence and capabilities allow us to help our clients with targeted
expansion and new investiments, Our food processing services inchide hygienic design, clean-in-place ("CIP"} systems, heat transfer systems, material handling of
liquids and solids, refrigeration, and compliance with government requirements. From facility design to raw materials processing to converting, packaging, and
distribution, our vast depth of expertise helps our clients do just that. Our knowledge of food and beverage processing results in plants that are productive, efficient,
and economical,

Pharmacenticals and Blotechnology

We provide our phanmaceuticals and biotechnology clients single-point consulting, engineeting, procuremment, construction management, and validation
("EPCMW") project delivery, enabling us to execute the industry's largest capital programs on a single-responsibility basis. Typical projects in this sector include
laboratories, research and development facilities, pilot plants, bulk active pharmaceutical ingredient production facilities, fufl-scale biotechnology production
Facilities, and secondary manufacturing facilities,

As companies in this industry continue to experience pressure to decrease product time-to-mearket, reduce costs, and inciease retum en investnent, the
types of services we provide have grown over the years to include modular construetion, as well as other consulting and strategic planning to help our clients
complete capital projects faster and more efficiently.

Regulatory compliance, state-cf-the-art technolegy, and increased efficiencies are critical issues to our clients in these industries, We have expertise in
containment, barrier technology, locally controlled environments, building systems automation, and offethe-site design and fabrication of facility modules, as well as
vaccine production and purification, and aseptic processing,

Mining and Minerals

Our mining and minerals business targets the non-ferrous and ferrous metal inarkets, precious metals, energy minerals (uranium, coal, oil sands), and
industrial and fertilizer minerals (mineral sands, borates, trona, phosphates and potash), We work with many of the resources companies undertaking new and
existing facility upgrades and process plant developments. We offer project management; front-end studies; full EPCM capabilities; and completions, comimissioning
and start-up services specializing in now plant construction, brownfield expansions, and sustaining capital and maintenance projects.

For our mining and mineral clients, we provide the industry proprictary sulfuric acid production technology through our Chemetics® produci - an mportant
synergistic by-product of the smelting process and a key consunmble in mines employing ore leaching technology. We are also able to deliver value to our mining
clients by providing distinctive adjacent capabilities such as infrastructure and major equipment and materials to support their mining operations,

By focusing on mitigating our clicnts’ resource risk, we arc able to address challenges of tight labor markets by providing a reliable and familiar labor pool for

their ongoing projects. We host local offices in the most active mining geographics (Scuth Anwrica, Australia, Canada, Indiy, and South Afiica), and can thereby
effectively help our clients improve their projeci delivery and resource availability.

Backlog

Backlog represents the total dollar amount of revenues we expect to record in the future as a result of performing work under contracts that have been
awarded to us. With respect to O&M contracts, however, we include in backlog the
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amount of revenues we expect to receive for only one succeeding year, regardless ofthe renmining life of the contract, For national governent programs {other than
U.S. federal O&M contracts), our policy is to include in backlog the fll contract awand, whether funded or unfanded, excluding option pericds. In accordance with
industry practice, substantiaily all of our contracts are subjoct to cancellation, termination, or suspension at the discretion of the client, In acldition, the contracts in
our backlog are subject t¢ changes in the scope ol sarvices 1o be provided as well as adjustments to the costs relating to the contmaets. Accordingly, backlog is not
necessarily indicative of our future revenues or eamings.

Curbacidog includes expected tevenues for contracts that are based on estimates, For additional information regarding cur backlog including those risk
factors specific to backlog, pleusc refer to fiem LA — Risk Factors, and ltem 7 — Management s Discussion aind Anolysis of Financial Condition and Resulits of
Operations below, Qurbacklog at October 2, 2015 and September 26, 2014 was $18.8 billion and $18.4 billion, respectively. Subject to the factors discussed in Trem 1A
—Risk Factors below, we estitmate that approximately 7.3 billion, or 38.6%, of tatal backlog at October 2, 2015 will be realized as vevenues within the nest fiscal year.

Significant Customers,

The following table sets forth the percentage of total revenues eamned directly or indirectly fromagencies of the U.S, federal government for each of the
last five fiscal yoars:

2015 2014 2013 2012 011
2L %% 17.8% o9 2.1% 4%

Given the percentage of total revenue derived fromthe U.S, foderal govemment, the loss of U.S. federal government agencies as custowers would have a
muterial adverse effect on the Company. In addition, any or all of our govemment contracts could be terminated, we could be suspended or debarred fomall
governiment contract wotk, or paynent of our costs could be disallowed. For more infonmtion on risks relating to our government contracts, see Item 1A - Risk
Factors below. :

It s uncommon for a cotmmercial customer to contribute 10% or more of the Company s total revenues. On occasion, however, we will performa number of
field services projects for a single customer in the same (iscal year which, primarily because of the apwunt of pass-through costs (discussed below) that is inchided in
revenue, will cause total revenue fiomthat customer to exceed 10% of total consolidated revenues. For additional information regarding certam risks related to our
customer concentiration, please refer to Item 1A — Risk Factors below,

[inancial Information About Geagraphic Areas

Selected financial information regarding the geographic arcas in which we operate is included in Note 14 — Segment Information of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference. For fiscal 2013, approximately
40.9% of our revenuss was samed fromclients outside the United States. Qur intemational operations are subject to a variety of risks, which are described under
Ttem LA « Risk Factors below.

Contracts

While there is considerable variation in the pricing provisions ofthe contracts we undertake, our contracts generally fall inte two broad categories: cost-
reimbursable and fixed-price. The following table sets forth the percentages of total revenues represented by these types of contracts for each of the last five fiscal
years:

) 2015 2014 2013 1012 . 2011
Cost-refrbursable : 83% 83% LB o B - - B4%
Fixed-price 17% 17% 15% 15% 16%

In accordance with industry practice, most of our contracts (including those with the U.S. federal government) are subject to tetmination at the discrefion
afthe client, which is discussed in greater detail in ltem | A —— Risk Facfors. In such situations, our contracts typically provide for reimbursement of costs incarred
and payment of fees eamed through the date of termination.
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When we are directly responsible for engineering, design, procurement, and construciion of a project or the maintenance of a client’s plant or facility, we
reflect the costs of materials, equipment, and subcontracts in both revenues and costs, On other projects, whete the cliont elects to pay for such iters directly and we
have no associated respons ibility for such items, these amounts are not reflected in either revenues or costs, The following table sets forth the approximate amount
of such pass-through costs included in revenues for each ofthe last five fiscal years (in millions of doliars):

2015 ) 2014 ) 2013 2012 2011
5 26026 % 299 % 26248 § 23284 $ O 285

Cost-Relmbursable Contracts

Cost-reimbursable contracts generally previde for reimbursement of costs incurred plus an amount of profit. The profit eletent may be in the formofa
simple mark-up applied to the labor costs incuired or it may be in the formof a fee, or a combination of a mark-up and a fee, The fee element can also take several
forms. The fee may be a fixed amount; it may be an amount based on a percentage of the costs incurred; or it may be an incentive fee based on targets, milestones, or
petformance factors defined in the contract, In general, we prefer cost-reimbwisable contracts because we believe the primary reason for awarding a contract to us
should be our technical expertise and professicnal quaiifications rather than price.

Fixed-Price Contrac

Fixed-price contracts include beth “lomp sumbid” contrmets and “negotinted fixed-price” contracts, Under lump sumbid contracts, we typically bid
against other contractors bascd on specifications the client furnishes. This type of pricing presents certain inherent risks, incliding the possibility of ambiguities in
the specifications received, problems with new technelogies, and economic and other changes that may oceur over the contract period. Additionally, & is not unusual
for lump sumbid contracts to lead to an adversarial relationship with clients, which is contrary to our relationship-based business model. Accordingly, lunp sumbid
contracts are not our prefetred formof contract, and, as such, the Cotpany has rarely entered into individual iy sumbid contracts that are material to its financial
results, Tn contrast, under a negotiated fixed-price contract, we are selected as the contractor first and then we negotiate a price with our client. Negotiated fixed-price
contracts frequently exist in single-responsibility arrangements where we performsome portion of the work before negotiating the total price of the project. Thus,
although both types of contrasts involve a firm price for the client, the lomp sumbid contract provides the greater degree of risk to us. However, because of
economies that may be realized durng the contract term, both negotiated fixed-price and lump sumbid contracts way offer greater profit potential than other types of
contracts. Over the past five years, most of onr fixed-price work has been either negotiated fixed-price contracts or hurp sumbid contracts for project services, rather
than turn-key construction.

Competition

With respect to each ofthe four broad categories of services we provide, we cotpete with a large number of corpanies across the world, Typically, no
single company or companics dominate the market In which we provide any such services. We compete based on the following factors, among others: price of
services, technical capabilities, reputation for quality, safety record, availability of qualified personnel, ability to timely perform work, and willingness to accept
project-related risk, For more infornmtion regarding the competitive conditions in our business, please refer to Item LA—Risk Faciors below.

Employegs
At October 2, 2015, we had approximately 49,900 full-tume, staff employees {including contract staff). Additionally, as of October 2, 2015, there were
approximately 14,100 persons employed in the ficld on a project basis. The number of ficld enployeos varies in rekation to the nurmber and size of the maintenance and

construction projects in progress at any pasicular time.

rti icers of the Repistrant
The information required by Paragraph (a), and Paragraphs (¢) through (g) of tem 401 of Regulation S-K (except for infortation tequired by Paragraph
(e) ofthat Item o the extent the required infoumation pertains to our executive oflicers) and [lem 405 of Regulation S-K is set forth under the captions "The Board of
Directors and its Committees - Nominees," "The beard of Directors and its Comimittees - Continuing Directors," and "Section 16{a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
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Compliance™ in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days aller the clese of our fiscal year and is
incorporated hetein by reference.

The following table presents the information required by Paragraph (b) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K.

Year Joined the

Name Age Position with the Company Registrant

Steven I, Demetriou 57 Pregident, Chief Emdqtiva-(jﬁicer afid Director : 2015
Kevin C. Bestyman 56  Baecutive Vice President, Chief Financinl Officer 2014
Terence ID. Hagen 51 President, Acrospaee & Technology . 1987
Andrew F. Kremor 58  President, Industrial 1998
Joseph G Mandel ' ] " 55 Paes idmi;fétw’leum & Chemicals ) S L _ 20t
Phillip J. Stas gi 60 Pos ident, Builklings & Infiastructure 1977
Sanfe Rizzuto i o 55 FomerBwoulive Vive Prosident, Oporutions I ) 2013
Cora L. Carmody 57  Senior Vice President, Infonmation Technology 2008
Geoffiey P. Sanders - ) 58 Senior Vice President and Chisf Accounting Officer ) . 1988‘
Lori S, Sundberg 51 Senior Vice President, Global Human Resources 2013
ﬁMic‘haGl R, Tfylef 50 SeniorVice President and General Coungel ) o _' 201 3

Allofthe officers listed in the preceding table serve in their respective capacities at the pleasure of the Board of Directors of the Company. Messrs.
Hagen, Kremer, Stassiand Sanders as well as Ms. Carmody have each served in executive and senior management capacities with the Company for more than five
years. Below is additional information on the executive officers.

Mr. Demetriou joined the Conpany in August 2015. Mr. Demetriou served as Chairman and CBO of Aleris Corporation for 14 years, a global downstream
aluminum producerbased in Cleveland, Ohio. Over the course of his career, he has gained broad experience with companies in a range of industries including Metals,
Specially Chemicals, Oil & Gas, Manufacturing and Fertilizers,

Mt. Berryman joined the Company in December 2014, Mr. Berryman served as EVP and CFO for five years at International Flavers and Fragrances Inc., an
S&P 500 company and leading global creator of flavors and fiagrances wsed in a wide varicty of consumer products. Prior to that, he spent 25 years at Nestlé in a
nunber of finance 1oles including treasury, mergers & acquisitions, stralegic planning, and control.

Mt Mandel joined the Company in February 2011 through the acquisition of certain operating companies comprising Aker Solutions ASA, a global
provider ofproducis, systens and services to the oil and gas industry. Mr. Mandel served in various senior management roles with Aker Solutions ASA since first
Joining themin 1995,

M. Rizzuto was Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director of SKM from October 2011 until the conpany's acquisition by Jacobs in December 2013,
From 1997 to 2011 he served in a number of global operational leadership roles within SKM. As previcusly announced Mr. Rizzuto will be leaving the cotnpany in
Decernber 2015 as part of the Conpany's reorganization along global lines of business.

Mr. Sanders joined the company in June 1988, He was electod Senior Viee President and Chief Accounting Officer in May 2014. Mr. Sanders previeusly
served as Vice President, Controller of the Company for over 10 years with responsibility for various finance, tax, accounting, and other functions within the
Company,

Ms. Sundberg jeined the Company in April 2013, Ms. Sundberg served as the Senior Vice President of Human Resources and Ethics at Arizona Public
Services Company, Arizona's largest electric utility company, from November 2007 to April 2013. From 1998 to 2007 she served in a nunber of glebal HR. leadership
oles with American Express,

M. Tyler joined the Company in June 2013. He previously setved as Executive Vice President, General Counseland Secrctary of Sanmina Corporation, a
global electronics manufacturing services provider from April 2007 to June 2013, and Chief Legal and Administrative Officer of Gateway, Inc., a conputer hardware
company, fromJanuary 2004 to April 2007,

Ms. Carnody's last day with the Company was October 2, 2015,
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i Informati

You may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room lecated at 100 F Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549, In
order to obtain information about the operation of the Public Reference Rocm, a person may call the SEC at 1-800-732-0330, The SEC also maintains a site on the
Internet that contains reports, proxy and informtion statemenis, and other information regarding issuers that fik electronically with the SEC. The SEC’s website is
http//www.sec.gov. You may also read and download the various reports we file with, or fumnish to, the SEC free of charge from our website at www.jacobs com.
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Item1A. RISKFACTORS

e operate in a changing environment that Involves numerous known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could materially adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and results afaperations. The risks described below highlight some of the foctars that have affected ond could affect us in the filure.
We may also be affected by unkrown risks or risks that we currensly think are immaterial. ff any such evenls actually occur, our business, financial condition, and
results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Construction and maintenance sites are inkererdly dangerons workplaces. Y we fail to maintain saje work sites, we ean be exposed to significard finuncial
fosses and reputationad harm, as well as civil and crindnal lahilities.

Construction and maintenance sites often put our enployees and others in close proximity with large pieces of mechanized equipmont, moving vehicles,
chetical and manufacturing processes, and highly regulated materials, in a challenging environment. On many sites we are responsible for safely and, accordingly,
musl implement satety procedures. If we fail to implement such procedures or if the procedutes we inplement are ineffective, our employees and others may become
injured, disabled or even lose their lives, the completion or commencement of our projects may be delayed, and we imay be exposed to litigation or investigations.
Unsafe work sites also have the potential to increase employee tumaver, increase the cost ofa project to our clients, and raise our operating costs. Any of the
foregoing could result in financial losses or reputational harmy, which could have a material adverse inpact on our business, finuncial condition, and results of
operations.

In addition, cur projects can itvolve the handling of hazardous and other highly regulated materials, which, if improperly handled or disposed of, could
subject us to civil and/er crimingl liabilitics. We are also subject to regulations dealing with occupational health and safety. Although we maintain finctional groups
whose prinary putpose is to ensure we implerent effective health, safety, and environmental (“HSE”) work procedures throughout eur organization, including
construction sites and nnintenance sites, the failure to comply with such regulations could subject us to liability, In addition, despite the work oFour functional
groups, we cannot guarantee the safety of our persennel or that there will be no damage to or loss of our work, equipment or supplies.

Our safety record is critical to our reputation. Many of our clients require that we mee! certain safety criteria to be eligible to bid for contracts and many
contracts provide for autormatic termination or forfeiture of same or all of our contract fees or profit in the event we fil to meet certain measures. Accordingly, if we
fail to maintain adequate safety standards, we could suffer reduced profitability or the loss ofprojects or elients, which could have a material adverse impact en our
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Our vilnerability to the cyclical nature of the warkets in which eur clients aperate is exacerbated during econnmic downturns o tine of political uncertainty.

We provide technical, professional, consiruction, and O&M scrvices to clients operating in a number of markets ineluding oil and gas exploration,
production, and refining; programs for various national govemments, including the U.S, federal government; chemicals and polymers; minitg and minerals;
pharmeceuticals and biotechnology; infrastucture; buildings; power; and other, general industrial and consumer businesses and markets {such as technology and
manufacturing; pulp and paper; and food and cousumer products ). These tarkets and the resulting derand for cur sorvices have been, and we expect will continue
ta be, cyclical and subject to significant fluctuations due to a variety of factors beyond our control, including econemic conditions and changes in client spending,
particularly duting periods of econotnic or political uncertainty,

Cugrent global economic and political conditions have negatively irpacted many of cur clienis’ ability and willingness to fund their projects, including
their ability to raise capital and pay, or timely pay, our invoices. They have also caused our clients to reduce their capital expenditures, alter the mix of services
purchased, seek more tavorable price and other contract terims, and otherwise slow theit spending on our services, For cxample, in the public sector, declines in state
and local taxrevenues as well as other econonic declines may result in lower state and local govemment spending, In addition, due to these conditions many of our
competitors tmay be more inclined to take greater or unusual risks or accept terms and conditions in centracts that we might not deemacceptable, These conditions
have reduced , and may continue to reduce, the detrand for our services, which has had, and may continue to have a significant negative impact on our business,
financial condition and results of aperations.

Clrrent econoinic and political conditions also make it extrenely difficult for our clients, our vendors, and us to accurately fotecast and plan fisture
business activities and could cause businesses to continue to slow spending on our services, We cannot predict the timing, strength or duration of any econoiic
slowdown or subsequent economic recovery warldwide or in our clients” markets, In addition, our business has traditionally lagged receveries in the general
economty and, therefore, may
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not recoveras quickly as the econonty at large, A continuation or worsening of current weak economic conditions or a reduetion in government spending could have
a material adverse impact on our business, financial cendition, and results of operations,

Regardless of economic or market conditions, investment decisions by our customers may vary by location or as a result of other factors like the
availability of labor or relative construction cost. Because we are dependent on the timing and funding of new awards, we are therefore vulnerable to changes in our
clients’ markets and investment decisions. As aresult, our past resulis have varied and may continue to vary depending upon the demand for future projects in the
markets and the locations in which we operate.

Fluctuations in conmodity prices may affect our cristomers’ investment decisions and therefore subject us to risks of cancellation, delays in existing work, or
changes in the timing and fimding of new awards.

Comimodity prices can affect our customers in a nurber of ways. For example, for those customers that produce comimodity products such as oil, gas,
copper, or fertilizers, fluctuations in price can have a direct effect on their profitability and cash flow and, therefore, their willingness to continue to mvest or make
new capital investments. To the extent commodity prices decline or fluctuate and our customets defer now investments or cancel or delay existing projects, the
demand for our services decreases, which may have a nuterial adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations,

Commadity prices can also strongly affect the costs of projects. Rising commodity prices can negatively impact the potential refurns on invesiments that
are planned, as well as those in progress, and result in customers deferring new investments or canceling or delaying existing projects. Cancellations and delays have
affected our past results and may continue to do so in significant and unpredictable ways and could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

Our project execition activifies may resulf in linbility for fardly engineering services.

If we fail to provide our services in accordance with applicable professional standards, we could be exposed to large damages or even criminal violations.
Our engineering practice, forexample, nvolves professional judgments regarding the planning, design, development, construction, operations and management of
industrial facilities and public infrastructure projects. While we do not generally accept liability for consequential damages in our contracts, and although we have
adopted a range of msurance, tisk management and risk avoidance programs designed to reduce potential kiabilities, a catastrophic event at one of our project sites or
completed projects resulting from the services we have performed could result in significant professional or product Hability, and wartanty or other clairs against us
as well as reputational harm, especially if public safety is impacted, These liabilities could exceed our insurance limits or the fees we generate, may not be covered by
insurance at all due to various exclusions in our coverage, and could impact our ability to obtain insuranee in the future, Further, even where coverage applies, the
policies have deductibles, which result in our assutmption of exposure for a layer of coverage with respect to any claim filed by vs. In addition, clients or
subcontractors who have agreed to indemaify us against any such liabilities or losses might refiuse or be unable to pay us. An uninsured claim, either in part or in
whole, as well as any chim covered by insurance but subject to & high deductible, if successful and of 4 material magnitude, conld have a substantial inpact on our
operations.

We engage in a highly competitive business. If we are wnable fo compete effectively, we conld lose market sharve and onr business and results of operations could
be negatively impacted.

We face intense competition to provide technical, professional, and construction services to clients. The extent of such competition varies by industry,
geographic market, and project type. For exatpple, with respect to our conistruction and operations and maintenance services, clients generally awand large projects o
large contractors, which may give our larger conmpetitors an advantage when bidding for these projects. Conversely, with respect to our engineering, design,
architcetural, and consulting services, low barricrs of entry can result in competition with smaller, newer competitors, The extent and type of competition varies by
market and geographie area. Conpetition can place dewnward pressure on our contract prices and profit marging, and may force us to aceept contractual terms and
conditions that are less favorable to us, thereby increasing the risk that we may not realize profit margins at the same rates as we've seen in the past. If we are unable
to compete effectively, we may experience a loss of imarket share or reduced profitabilify or both, which if significant, could have a material adverse inpact on our
business, financial condition, and resulis of operations.
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Qur results of operations depesnd on the award of new confracts and the timing af the pecformance of these confracts.

Currevennes are derived fromnew contract awards. Delays in the timing of the awards or cancellations of such prospects as a result of economic
conditions, material and equipment pricing and availability ot other fictors could inpact our long-tetm projected results. It is particularly difficult to predict whether or
when we will receive large-scale projects as these contracts ficqueatly involve a lengthy and conplexbidding and selection process, which is atfected by a number of
factors, such as natket conditicns, governmental and environmental approvals. Since a significant portion of our revenucs is generated fromsuch projects, our
results of Gperations and cash flows can fluctuate significantly fromguatter to quarter deponding on the timing of our contract awards and the commencement or
progress of work under awarded contracts. In addition, many of these contracts are subject to [inancing contingencies and as a result, we ate subject to the risk that
the customer will not be able to secure the necessary financing for the project.

‘The uncettainty ofour contract award timing can also present difficultics in matching workforee size with contmct needs. In some cases, we maintain and
beuar the cost of a ready workforce that is karger than necessary undor existing contracts in anticipation of future workforce needs for expected contruct awards, Ifan
expected contract award is delayed or not received, we may meur additional costs resulting fromteductions in staff or redundancy of facilities which could have a
material adverse effect on our bysiness, financial condition and results of operations.

The ortcome of pending and future claims and figation could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and reslts of operations,

We are a party to litigation in the normal course of business. Since we engage in engineering and consiruction activities for large facilities and projects
where design, construction or systems failures can resulk in substantial injury or damage to employees or others, we are exposed to substantial clains and Jitigation
and investigations if there is a failure at any such facility or project. Such claims could relate to, among other things, personal injury, loss of life, business
intemruption, preperty damage, pollution, and environmental damage and be brought by our clients or third partics, such as those who use orreside near our clients”
prajects. We can also be cxposed to clains it'we agreed that a project will achieve certain performance standards or satisfy certain technical requirements and those
standards or requirenents are not met. In many of our contracts with clients, subcontractors, and vendors, we agree io retain or ussume potential liabilitics for
damages, penalties, losses, and other exposures relating to projects that could result in claitos that greatly exceed the anticipated prolits relating to those contracts, In
addition, while clients and subcontmetors may agree to indemnify us agninst certain liabilitics, such third parties may refiise or be unable to pay us.

We maintain insurance covetage for various aspects of our business and operations. Our insurance prograns have varying exclusions, coverage limits
and maxiimurs, and insurance companies may seek to deny clains we might make, In addition, we have clected to retain a portion of losses that may oceur through
the use of various deductibles, limits, and retentions under these programs. As a result, we may be subject to future liability for which we are only partially insured, or
cempletely uninsured.

Although in the past we have been generally able to cover our insurance needs, there can be no assurances that we can secure all necessary or
appropriate insurance in the future, ot that such insurance can be economically sccured. For example, catastrophic events can result in decreased coverage limits,
more limited coverage, increased premiumcosts or deductibles, We monitor the financial health of the insurance companies from which we procure insurance, and
this is one of the factors we take into account when purchasing insurance. Our insurance is purchased fioma nutnber of the world's leading providers, often in
layered insurance or quota share arrangements. If any of our third party insurers fail, abruptly cancel our coverage or ctherwise cannot satisfy their insurance
requirerments Lo us, then our overall risk exposure and operational expenses coukd be increased and our business operations could be interrupted.

Tn addition, the nature of our business sometimes results in clients, subcontractors, and vendors presenting claims to us for, among other things, recovery
of costs related to certain projects, Sixilarly, we ocoasionally present change orders and claits to our clients, subcontractors, and vendors for, among elher things,
additional costs exceeding the original contract price. If we fail to docurent properly the nature of our clains and change orders or are otherwise unsuccessful in
negotiating reasonable settlements with our clients, subcontractors, and venders, we could incur cost overruns, reduced profits o, in some cases, a loss for a project,
Further, these clahins can be the subject of lengthy negotiations, atbitration or litigation proceedings, which could result in the investment of significant amounts of
working capital pending the resolution of the relevant change orders and claims, A failure to pronptly recover on these types ofclaims could have a material adverse
itmpact on our liquidity and financial results. Additionally, irrespective of how well we document the nature of our claims and change orders, the cost to prosecute
and defend claims and change orders can be significant,
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Litigation and regulatory proceedings are subject to inherent uncertaintiss and unfavorable rulings can and do occor. Pending or future chitos against us
could result in professienal liability, product lability, criminal liability, waranty obligations, and other liabilities which, to the exent we are not insured against a loss
or our ingurer fails to provide coverage, could have a material adverse impact en cur business, financial condition, and results of operations.

The nature of vrir contracts, paviicalarly these that are fixed-price, subject us to rishs of cost overruns, We may experience rednced profits or, in sonie cases,
losses under these contracts If costs Increase above oy estimates,

For fiscal 2015, approximately 17.0% of our revenues were earned under fixed-price contracts, Such contracts require us to estimate the total cost of the
project in advance of our performanee. For these contracts, we may benefit fromany cost-savings, but we bear the risk of paying some, if not all, of any cost
overruns, Fixed-price contract amounts are established in part on cost and scheduling estimates that are based on a number of asswinptions, including those about
future economic conditlons, prices and availability of labor, equipment and materials, and other exigencies. If these estimates prove inaccurate, there are errors or
ambiguities as to contract specifications, or if circunstances change due to, among other things, unanticipated technical problens, difficulties in obtaining permits or
approvals, changes in local laws or labor conditions, weather or other delays beyond our control, changes in the costs of raw materials, or our vendors’ or
subcontractors’ inability or failure to perform, then cost overruns may occur and we could experience reduced profits of, in some cases, a loss for that project. These
risks are exacerbated for projects with long-term durations because there is an increased risk that the circumstances on which we based our original estimates will
change in a manner that increases costs, Ifthe project is significant, or there are one or more issues that impact nuiltiple projects, costs overruns could have & material
adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

QOur contracts that are fundamentally cost reimbursable in nature mey also present & risk lo the extent the final cost on a project exceeds the amount the
customer expected or budgeted. Like fixed-price contracts, the expected cost of cost-reimbursable projects are based in part on our estimates of the resources and
time necessary to performsuch contracts. If we are unable to properly support the costs we incur or otherwise fall to obtain proper reimbursement for all costs
incurred - for whatever reason - the project may be less profitable than we expect or even result in losses. Additionally, we may be required to pay liquidated damages
iFwe fail to meet schedule or perfornunce requirements of our contracts, which could harm our reputation and have a material adverse itmpact on our business,
financial condition, and results of operation.

Our continved success is dependent npon our ability to hire, retain, and wtifize gualified personnel.

The success of our business Is dependent upon our ability to hire, retain, and utilize qualified personnel, including engineers, architects, designers, craft
personnel, and corporaie management professionals at a reasonable cost who have the required experience and expertise. The market for these and other personnel is
competitive, Fromtime to time, it may be difficult to sttract and retain qualified individuals with the expertise and in the timeframe demanded by our clients, orto
replace such personnel when needed in a timely manner. In certain geographic areas, for exanmple, we may not be able to satisfy the demand for our services because
of our inability to successfully hire and retain qualified persennel. In addition, some of our personnel hold government granted clearance that may be reguired to
obtain govemment projects. If we were to lose some or all of these personnel, they would be difficult to replace.

In addition, in the event that any of our key personnel retire or otherwise leave the Company, we need to have appropriate succession plans in place and
to successfully implement such plans, which requires devoting time and resources toward identifying and integrating new personnel into leadership roles and other
key positions. If we cannot attract and retain qualified persennel or effectively implement apprepriate succession plans, it could have a material adverse impact on our
business, financial condition, and results of operations,

The cost of providing our services, including the exteni to which we utilize our workforce, affects our profitability. For example, the uncertainty of contract
award timing can present difficulties in matching our workforce size with our contracts. [fan expected contract award is delayed or not received, we could incur costs
resulting from excess staff, reductions in staff, or redundancy of facilities that could have a mwaterial adverse impact on our business, financial conditions, and results
of operations.
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The contracts in our baclklog may be adjusted, cancelled or suspended by omr clients and, therefore, onr backlog Is not necessarily indicative of our fature
revenes or earnings, Additionally, even if fidly performed, our backlog is not a good indicator of vur fitture gross margins.

As ofthe end of fiscal 2015, qur backlog totaled approzitmately $18.8 billion, There is 0o assurance thal backlog will actnally be realized as revenues in the
amounts repotted or, if realized, will result in profits. In accordance with ndustry practice, substantially all of our contracts are subject to cancellation, termination, or
suspension at the discretion of the client. Tn the cvent ofa project cancellation, we would generally have no contractual vight to the total revenue rellected in our
backlog, Projects can remain in backlog for extended periods of time because of the nature of the project and the timing ol the particular services required by the
project, The risk of contracts in backlog being cancelled or suspended generally inoreases during periods of wide-spread economic slowdowns.,

The contracts m our backlog are subject to changes in the scope of services to be provided as well as adjustments to the costs relating to the contracts.
The revenue for certain centracts included in backlog are based on estimates. Additionally, the way we performon ourindividual contracts cen affect greatly our
gross matging and hence, future profitability,

In some markets, there is a continuing trend towards cost-reimbursable contracts with incentive-fee anangements. Typically, our incentive fees are based
on such things as achievement of target conpletion dates or target costs, overll safety perfonmance, overall client satisfaction, and other performance eriteria, If we
fail to meet such targets or achieve the expected perfonmance standards, we may receive a lower, or even zeto, incentive fee resulting in lower gross marging.
Accordingly, thete is no assurance that the contracts in backlog, assuming they produce the revenues cwirently expected, will generate gross margins at the rates we
have realized in the past.

Contracts with the US. federal government and other governsnents and their agencies pose additionad risks relating fo fiture finding and complience.

Centracts with the U.S. federal govermirent and other govemments and theit agencies, which arc a significant source of our revenue and profit, are subject
to various uncertainties, restrictions, and regulations including oversight audits by various government authorities as well as profit and cost controls, which could
result in withhelding or delay of payments to us. Govermnent contracts are also exposed to uncertainties associated with funding such as sequestration and budget
deficits. Contracts with the U.S. federal government, for exnmple, are subject to the uncertainties of Congressional funding, Governments are typically under no
obligation to maintain funding at any specific level, and funds for govermment programs may even be eliminated.

As a result, our govemiment clients may reduce the scope or terminate our contragts for convenionce or decide not to renew our centracts with little or no
prior notice. Since government contracts represent a significant percentage of our revennes (for exanple, those with the U.S. federl govermiment represented
approxmately 21,7% of cur total revenuc in fiscal 2015}, a significant reduction in government funding or the loss of such contracts could have a material adverse
impact on our business, tinancial condition, and resnlis of operations.

Most government contracts are awarded through a rigorous conmpetitive process. The ULS. federal government has increasingly relied upon rmltiple-year
contracts with multiple contractors that genetally tequire those contractors to engage in an additional competitive bidding process for each task order issued under a
contract. This process may result in us facing significant additional pricing pressure and uncertainty and neurring additional costs. Moreover, we mmay not be
awarded government contracts because of existing policies designed to protect simall businesses and under-represented minorities. Our inability to win new centracts
arbe awarded work under existing contracts could have a negative impact on our business and resulls of sperations, .

In addition, government contracts are subject to specific procurement regulations and a variety of other socic-economic requirements, which affects how
we transact business with our clients and, in some instances, impose additional costs on our business operaticns. For example, for contracts with the U.S. federal
govemment, we must conply with the Federal Acquisition Regulation, the Truth in Negotiations Act, the Cost Accounting Standards, the Service Contract Act, and
numerous regulations governing, environmental protection, and employment practices. Govemment contracts also contain termns that expose us to heightened levels
of risk and potential Liability than non-government contracts, This includes, for example, unlimited indemnification obligations.

We also are subject to government audits, investigations, and proceedings. For examrple, government agencies such as the U.S. Defense Contract Audit
Agencey routinely review and audit us to determine the adequacy of and our compliance with
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our intemal control systens and policies and whether allowable costs are in accordance with applicable regulations, Thege audits can result in a determination that a
rule or regulation has been violated or that adjustments are necessary o the amount of contract costs we believe are reimbursable by the agencies and the anount of
our overhead costs allocated to the agencies.

[f'we violate a rule or regulation, fail to comply with a contractual or other requirement or do not satisfy an audit, a variety of penalties can be mposed
including monetary damages and criminal and civil penalties. In addition, any or all of our government contracts could be terminated, we could be suspended or
debarred fromall government contract work, er payrient of our costs could be disallowed. For exanple, in so-called "qui tam" actions brought by individuals or the
government under the U.,S, Federal False Clains Act or under similar state and local laws, treble damages can be awarded. The occutrence of any of these actions
could harmour reputation and could have a material adverse impact on our business, finangial condition, and results of operations.

Many of our federal government contracts require us to have security clearances, which can be difficult and time consuming to obtain. If our enployees
are unable to obtain or retain the necessary securities clearances, cor clients could terminate or not renew existing contracts or award us new contracts, To the extent
this oceurs, our operations and results of operations could be negatively impacted.

Our use of joint ventures and parinerships exposes us to risks and unceriainties, many of which are owtside of our control,

Ags is common in the industry, we performcertain centracts as a member of joint ventures, parinerships, and similar arrangements, This situation exposes
us to a number of risks, mchiding the tisk that our partners may be unable to tulfill their obligations to us orour clients. We cannot control the actions of cur joint
venture partners, including the nonperfonmance, default or bankptey of our joint venture partners. Our partners may be unable or unwilling to provide the required
levels of financial support to the partnerships., Ifthese ciccumstances ocour, we may be required to pay financial penalties or liquidated darmages, provide additional
services, or make additional investments 1o ensure adequate perforrmance and delivery of the contracted services. Under agreements with joint and several liabilities,
we could be liable for both our obligations and those of cur partners. These circumstances could alse tead to disputes and litigation with our partners or clients, all of
which could have a material adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial condition, and results of operations, We depend on the management effectiveness
of our joint venture pariners. Differences in views amoeng the joint venture participants may result in delayed decisions or in failures to agree on major issues, which
could materially affect the business and operations of these ventures.,

We patticipate in joint ventures and similar arrangements in which we are not the controlling partner. [n these cases, we have limited control over the
actions of the joint venture. These joint ventures may not be subject to the seme requirerrents regarding interal controls and intemal centrol over financial reporting
that we follow. To the extent the controlling partner makes decisions that negatively impact the joint venture or internal contrel problens arise within the joint
venture, it could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial conditien, and results of operations.

The failure by a joint venture partner to conply with applicable laws, regulations or client requirements could negatively impact our business and, for
government clients, could result in fines, penalties, suspension or even debarment being inposed on us, which could have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

We are dependent on third parties to complete many of onr contrcets.

Much of the work performed under our contracts is performed by third-party subcontractors we hire. We also rely on third-parly equipment manufacturers
ot suppliers to provide nuch of the equipment and materials used for projects. If we are unable to hire qualified subcontractors or find qualified equipment
manufacturers ot suppliets, our ability to successfully complets a project could be irpaited. Ifwe are not able to locate qualified third-party subcontractors or the
amount we are required to pay for subcentractors orequipment and supplies exceeds what we have estimated, especially in a lunp-sumor a fixed-price contract, we
may suffer losses on these contracts, If a subcontractor, supplier, or manufacturer fails to provide services, supplies or equipment as required under a contract for
any reason, we ay be required to source these services, equiptnent of supplies to other thind parties on a delayed basis or on less favorable terms, which could
mpact contract profitability. There is a risk that we may have disputes with our subcentracters relating to, among other things, the quality and timeliness of work
perforned, custotner concerns about the subcontractor, or cur failure to extend existing task orders or issuc now task orders under a contract, In addition, faulty
workmanship, equipment or naterials could impact the overall project, resulting in claims against us for failure to meet required project specifications.
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In the current economic envitonment, third parties may find it diflicul to obtain sufficient financing to help fund their operations. The inability to obtain
financing could adversely affect a third purty’s ability to provide materials, equipment or services which could have o material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, and results efoperations. In addition, a failure by a third party subcontractor, supplier or manufacturer to comply with applicable laws,
regulations or client requirements could negatively itnpact out business and, for government clients, could resulf in fines, penalties, suspension or even debanment
being imposed on us, which could have a material adverse inpact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Negative conditions in the credit and financial markets and deluys in receiving clicnt payments could result in liquidity problems, adversely affecting ow cost of
borrowving or our buisiness.

Although we finance much of our operations using cash provided by operations, at times we depend on the availability of credit to grow our business and
to help fund business acquisitions. In additien, some of cur clients depend on the availability of credit to help finance their capital projects. Instability in the credit
narkets in the U.S. or abroad, could cause the availability of credit to be relatively diflicult or expensive to obtain at competitive rates, on cormmercially reasonable
terne or in sufficient amounts, This situation could make it more diflicult or more expensive for us to access funds, refinance our cxisting indebtedness, enter into
agreements tor new indebtedness, or obtain funding through the issuance of securities or such additional capital may not bo available on terns acceptable to us. We
may also enter into business acquisition agreements that require us to access credit, which ifnot available at the closing of the acquisition could result in a breach of
the acquisition agicement and a resulting claim for danages by the scllers of such business. In addition, market conditions could negatively impact our clients” ability
to fund their projects and, therefore, utilize our services, which could have a material adverse nupact on our buginess, financial condition, and results of operations.

Inn addition, we are subject to the risk that the counterparties to our credit agreements may go bankrupt if they suffer catastrophic demand on their
tiquidity that will prevent them from fulfilling their contractual obligations to us. Wo alse routincly enter into contracis with counterparties including vendors,
suppliers, and subcontractors that may be negatively impacted by events in the credit markets. [fthose counterparties are unable te performtheir obligations to us or
our clients, we may be required to provide additional services or make alternate arrangements on less favorable ters with other parties to ensure adequate
petformance and delivery of services to our clients. These circumstances could also kead to disputes and litigation with our pariners or clients, which could have a
material adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial condition, and esults of operations.

In addition, we typically bill our clients for our services in atrears and are, therofore, subject to cur clients delaying or filing o pay our invoices. In weak
economic environiments, we may experience increased delays and failures due to, among other reasons, cur clients’ unwillingness to pay for alleged poor performance
or to preserve their own working capital. Ifone orimore clients defays in paying or fail to pay us a significant ameunt of our cutstanding receivables, it conld have a
nuterial adverse inpact en our liquidity, financial condition, and results of opetations.

Furthermore, our cash balances and shot-term investments are muintained in accounts held by nujor banks and financialinstitutions located primarily in
Nerth America, Burope, South America, Australia and Asia, Some of our accounts hold deposits in amounts that exceed available insurance. Although none of the
financial institutions in which we hold our cash and investmonts have gone into bankruptey or forced receivership, or have been seized by their governments, there
is arisk that such events may oceur in the fiuture. ITany such events were to occur, we would be at risk of'not being able to access our cash which may result in a
temporary liquidity crisis that could impede our ability to fund our operations, which could have a material adverse inpact on our business, financial condition, and
resulis of operations.

Mairtaining adequate bonding and letter of credit capacily is necessary for us to successfidly bid on and win seme confracts.

In line with industry practice, we are often required to provide performance or payment bonds or letters of credit to our customers, These ingtruments
indetmnify the customer should we fail to performour obligations under the contract. If a bond or a letter of eredit is required for a parlienlar project and we are unable
to oblain an appropriate bond or letfer of credit, we cannot pursue that project. Historically, we have had adequate bonding and fetter of credit capacity but, as is
typically the case, the issuance of a bond is at the surety’s sole diserction and the issuance of a letter of credit is based on the Conpany's credit worthiness, Because
ofan overall lack of worldwide bending capacity, we may find it difficult to find sureties who will provide required levels of bonding or such bonding may enly be
available at significant additional cost. Thete can be o assurance that our bonding capacity will centinue to be available to us on reasonable terms. In addition,
tuture projects may require us to obtain letters of credit that extend beyond the tennof our existing credit facilities. Our inability to obtain
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adequate bonding and, as a result, to bid on new coniracts that require such bending or letter of eredit could have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

Past and fiture envivenmental, heath, and safety laws could impose significant additional costs and fiabilities.

We are subject to a variety of environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations goveming, among other things, discharges to air and water, the
handling, storage, and disposal of hazardous or waste materials and the remediation of contamination associated with the releases of hazardous substances and
human health and safaty, These laws and regulations and the tisk of attendant litigation can eause significant delays to a project and add significantly to its cost.
Violations of these regulations could subject us and our menagement to civil and criminal penalties and other liabilities.

Various U.8. federal, state, local, and foreign environmental laws and regulations may impose liability for property damage and costs of investigation and
cleatup of hazardous or toxic substances on property currently or previously owned by us or arising out of our waste management or environmental remediation
activities. These faws may impose responsibility and lability without regard to knowledge of or causation of the presence of contaminants. The liability under these
laws is joint and several. We have potential liabilities associated with our past waste management and other activities and with our cutrent and prior ownership of
various properties. The discovery of additional contaminants or the imposition of unforeseen clean-up obligations at these or other sites could have a material
adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

When we performour services, our personnel and equipment may be exposed to radioactive and hazardous materials and conditions. We tray be subject
to liability clains by employees, customers, and third parties as a result of such exposures. In addition, we mmay be subject to fines, penalties or other linbilities arsing
under environmental or safety laws. A claim, if hot covered by insurance, could have a rmterial adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition,

Such laws, regulations and policies are reviewed periodically and any changes could affect us in substantial and unpredictable ways. Such changes could,
for example, relax or repeal laws and regulations relating to the environment, which could result in a decline in the demand for our environmental services and, in turm,
could negatively impact our revenue. Changes in the environmental laws and regulations, remediation obligations, enforcemont actions, stricter interpretations of
existing requirements, future discovery of contamination or clains for damages to persons, property, natural resomtces ot the environrment could result in materia
costs and liabilitics that we currently do not anticipate. If we fail to comply with such laws or regulations, whether actnal or alleged, we could be exposed to fines,
penalties or potential litigation liabilities, including costs, settlements and judgments, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

In addition, we and many of our clients operate in highly regulated environments, which may require us or our clients to obtain, and to comply with,
federal, stats, and local government permits and approvals. Any of these pernits or approvals may be subject to denial, revocation or modification under various
circurmstances. Failure to obtain or comply with, or the loss or modification of, the conditions of permits or approvals may subject us to penalties or other liabilities,
which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and result of operations.

Ifwe fail to comply with federal, state, local or foreign governmental requirements, onr business may be adversely affected,

We are subject to 1.8, federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations that affect our business. For example, our global opemations require importing
and exporting goods and technology across international borders. Although we have policies and procedures to comply with 1.S. and forcign international trade
laws, the vichtion of such laws could subject the Company and its suployces to civil or criminal penalties, including substantial monetary fmes, or other adverse
actions mcluding denial of import or export privileges privileges or debarment from participation in U.S. govemment contracts, and could damage our reputation and
our ability to do business.

Employee, agemt or partaer misconduct or our averall failsre to eomply with laws or regulations could wealen orr abifity to win contracts, which could resulf
in reduced reventies and profits.

Misconduct, frand, non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations, or other improper activities by one of our employees, agents or partners could
have a significant negative impact on our business and reputation. Such misconduct could include the failure to comply with government progurement regulations,
regulations regarding the protection of classified information, regulations prohibiting bribery and other corrupt practices, regulations regarding the pricing of labor
and other costs in govermment contracts, regulations on lobbying or similar activities, regulations pertaining to the internal controls over financial reporting,
regulations pertaining to cxport control, environmental laws, and any other applicable laws or regulations. For example, we routinely provide services that may be
highly sensitive or that relate to critical national sceurity matters; ifa
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security breach were to oceur, our ability to procure future govemment contracts could be severoly linsited. The precautions we take to prevent and detect these
activities may not be effective, and we could face unknown risks or losses. Our filure to comply with applicable lasws or regulations or acts of misconduct could
subject us to fines and penalties, cancellation of contracts, logs of security clearance, and suspension or debarment from contracting, which could weaken our ability
te win contracts and result in reduced revenues and profits and could have a material adverse irpact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We could be adversely affected by violations of the US. Forcign Corvapt Practices Act and similar worldwide anti-bribery laws,

The U.8, Forcign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA™), the UK. Bribery Act of 2010, and similar anti-bribery laws in other jurisdictions generally prohibit
companics and their intermediaries from making improper paytments for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. Qur policics mandate compliance with these
anti-bribery laws, including the requirements to maintain aceurate informmation and internal controls. We operate in many parts of the world that have experienced
governmental conmuption to some degree and in certain circums lances, strict cormpliance with anti-brbery laws may conflict with local customs and practiees. Despite
our training and compliance prograns, there is no assurance that our intemal control policies and procedures will protect us fromacts commilied by our employees or
agents. [f we are found to be liable for FCPA ot other violtions (either due to our own acts or our madvertence, or due to the acts or inadvertence of others), we
could suffer fromeivil and criminal penalties or other sanctions, including contract cancellations or debanvent, and loss of reputation, any of which could have a
materiel adversc inpact on our business, linancial condition, and results of operations.

The loss of or a significant veduction in business from one or a few custosers coufd have an adverse impact on 1.

A fow clients have in the past and may in the fiure account for a significant portion of our revenue and/cr backlog in any one year or over a period of
several conseeutive years. For example, in fiscal 2015, 2044, and fiscal 2013, approximately 21.7%, 17.8%, and 19.8%, respectively, of our revenue was eamed directly
or indirectly fromagencies of the U.S, foderal govemment. Although we have long-standing relationships with many of our significant clients, our clients may
unilaterally reduce, delay, or cancel their contracts at any time. Our loss of ora significant reduction in business frema significant client could have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

In addition to the risks discussed elsewhere in Risk Factors, our international operations are also exposed to additional risks and uncertainties including

wnfavorable political developments and weak foreign ecanonsies.

For fiscal 2015, approximately 40.9% of our revenues was eamed fromclients eutside the US, Our business is dependent on the continuied success of our
international operations, and we expect our international operations to continue to account for a significant portion of our total revenues. Qur intemnational
operations are subiect to a variety of risks, including:

+  Recessions and other econoumic crises in other regions, such as Europe, or speciflic foreign economies and the impact on our costs of doing business
in those countries;

+  Difficuliies in staffing and managing foreign operations, including logistical and comvmmication challenpes;
»  Unexpected changes in foreigh government policies and regulatory requirements;
+  Lackofdeveloped logal systens to enforce contractual rights;

+  Renegotiation or nullification of our existing contracts;

+  The adoption of new, and the expansion of existing, tradc or other restrictions;

»  Hmrbargoes;

»  Changes in labor conditions;

*  Acts of war, civil unrest, force majeure, and temrorisim

»  Theability to finance efficiently our foreign operations;

*  Social, political, and economic nstability;

*  Bxpropriation of property;

«  Taxincreases;

+  Currency exchanges rate fluctuations,;

«  Limitations on the ability to repatriate foreign earnings; and
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» .S government policy changes in relation to the foreign countries in which we operate, including embargoes or other trade restrictions.

The lack ofa well-developed legal system in some of these countries may make it difficult to enforce our contractual rights, In addition, military action or
continued unrest, particularly in the Middle East, could impact the supply or pricing of vil, distupt our operations in the region and elsewhere. To the extent our
intetnational operations are affected by unexpected or adverse economic, political and other conditions, our business, financial condition, and results ofoperations
may be adversely affecled.

We work intinternational locations where there are high security visks, which conld resnlt in harm to onr employees or nnanticipated cost.

Some of our services are performed in high risk locations, where the country or location is subjeet to political, social or economic risks, or war or civil unrest.
In those locations where we have cimployces or operations, we may expend significant cfforts and incur substantial security costs to maintain the safety efour
personnel Despite these activities, in these locations, we cannot guarantee the satety of our personnel and we may suffer future losses of enployees and
subcontractors.

Foreign exchange risks may affect our abilily to realize a profit fiom certuin projects.

Our reported financial condition and results of operations are exposed to the effects (both positive and negative) that fluctuating exchange rates have on the
process of translating the financial statements of our international operations, which are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, into the U.8. dollar.
While we genemlly attempt to denominate our contracts in the currencies of our expenditures, we do enter into contracts that expose us to currency fisk, particularly
to the extent contract revenue is denominated in a curency different than the contract costs, We attempt to minimize our exposure from currency risks by obtaining
escalation provisions for projects in inflationary economies or entering into derivative (hedging) instruments, when there is currency risk exposure that is not
naturally mitigated via our contracts, These actions, however, may not always eliminate currency risk exposure. Based on fluctuations in currency, the U.S. dollar
value of our backlog may from time to time increase or decrease significantly. We may also be exposed to limitations on our ability to reinvest earnings from
operations in one country to fund the financing requirements of our operations in other countries,

Ovur business strategy rélies inpart on acquisitions to sastain onr groweh, Acquisitions of other companies present certain visks and uncertaivdies.

Ourbusiness strategy involves growih threugh, among other things, the acquisition of other companies. Acquiring companies presents a number ofrisks,
including:

. Assumption of liabilities of an acquired business, including liebilities that were unknown at the time the acquisition was negotiated;

. Valation methodologics may not accurately capture the value of the acquired business;

. Failure to realize anticipated benefits, such as cost savings and revenue enhancements;

. Difficulties relating to combining previously separate entities into a single, integrated, and efficient business;

. The effects of diverting management’s attention from day-to-day operations to matters involving the integration of acquired companies;

. Potentially substantial transacticn costs associated with business combinations;

. Potential impairment resulting from the overpayment for an acquisition or post-acquisition deterioration in an acquired business;

. Difficulties relating to assimilating the personnel, setvices, and systems of an acquired business and to assimilating matketing and other
operational capabilities;

. Ditficulties retaining key personnel of an acquired business;

. Increased burdens on our staffand on our administrative, intemal control and operating systens, which may hinder our legal and regulatory
compliance activities;

. Difficultics in applying and integrating cur systemof intemal controls to an acquired business;

. Inereased financial and accounting challenges and complexities in areas sueh as taxplanning, treasury management, financial reperting and
intemal controls; and )

. The potential requirement for additional equity or debt financing, which may nel be available, or if available, may not have favorable terms.
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While we often obtain indenwmification rights fiom the sellers of acquired businesses, such rights may be difficult to enforce, the losses may exceed any
dedicated escrow funds, and the indermnitors may not have the ability to financially suppert the indenmity.

[four management is unable to successfully integrate acquired companies or implement our growth strategy, cur operating results could be hammed. In
addition, even if the opetations of an acquisition are integrated successfully, we tray not realize the full benefits of an acquisition, including the synergics, cost
savings, or sales or growth opportunitics that we eapect, These benefits may not be achieved within the antieipated time frame, or at all. Moreover, we cannol assure
that we will continue to successlilly expand or that growth or expangion will result in profitability.

In addition, there is no assurance that we will continue to locate suitable acquisition targets or that we will be able to consummate any such transactions
on terms and conditions acceptable to us. Existing cash balances and cash flow fromoperations, together with borrowing capacity under our credit facilities, may be
insuflicient {o make acquisitions Crodit market conditions may alse ke it more diflicult and costly to finance acquisitions. Acquisitions may also bring us into
businesses we have not previously conducted and expose us to additional business risks that are different than those we have traditionally experienced.

In the event we issue stock as consideration for certoin acqisitions we may muake, we cotdd dilute share ownership.

Cne method of acquiting companies or otherwise funding our corporate activities is through the issuance of ndditional equity securities, If we issue
additicnal equity securities, such issuances could have the eftect of diluting our eamnings per share as well as our existing shareholders’ individual ownership
percentages in the Company,

Or quarterly resuits snay flucinete sigrificantly, which could have i materiod negative effect on the price of enr comon stock,

Cur quarterly operating resulis nay fluctuate significantly, which could cause ouroperating results to fall below the expeetations of sceuwritics analysis
and have a material negative eftect on the price of our common stock. Fluctuations are caused by a number of factors, including:

. Fluctuations in the spending pattetns of our govemment and commercial customers;

. ‘The nurber and significance of projects executed during a quarter;

. Unanticipated changes in contract performance, particularly with contracts that have funding limits;
. The timing of resolving change orders, requoests for equitable adjustrnents, and other confract adjustooents,
. Delays incurred in conncction with a project;

+ Changes in priccs of commodities or other supplics;

. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates;

. Weather conditions that delay work at project sites;

. The timing of expenses incurred in connection with acquisitions or other corporate initiatives;

. Natural disasters or other crises;

. Stafflevels and utilization rates;

* Changes in prices of services offered by our competitors; and

. General econaomic and political conditions.

Onr actual results condid differ from the estimates and asswmmnptions used to prepare our financial statcments.

Tn prepating our financial statements, owr management is required under US, GAAP to moke estimates and assumptions as of the date of the financial
statements. These estinutes and asswmptions affect the reported values of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. Areas requiring significant estimates by our management include:

. Recogtition of contract revenue, costs, profit orlosses in applying the principles of percentage of conpletion accounting;
. Estimated anwunts for expected project losses, warranty costs, contract close-out or other costs;
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. Rocognition of recoveries under contract change orders or claims;

. Collectability ol billed and unbilled accounts receivable and the need and amount of any allowance for doubtful aceounts;

. Estinates of other liabilities, including litigation and insurance revenues/reseryes and reserves necessary for sel-insured risks;
. Accruals for estimated linbilities, meluding Litipation reserves;

. Valuation of assets acquired, and liabilities, goodwill, and intangible assets assumed, in acquisitions;

. Valuation of stock-based compensation,

. The determination of liabilities under pension and other post-retirerent benefit programs; and

. Inconme tax provisions and related valuation allowances.

Qur actual business and financial results could differ fromour estimates of such results, which could have a material negative impact on our financial
condition and results of operations.

Animpairment charge of goodwill could have a material adverse inpact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Because we have grown in part through acquisitions, goodwill and intangible assets represent a substantial portion of our assets. Under U.S. GAAP, we
are required to test goodwill carried in our Conselidated Balance Sheets for possible impairment on an annual basis based upon a fair value approach. As of
October 2, 2015, we had $3.0 billion of goodwill, representing 39.2% of cur total assets of $7.8 billion. We have chogen to perform onr annual impainvent reviews of
goodwill at the end of the third quarter of our fiscal year. We also are required to test goodwill for inpairment between annual tests if events occur or circunstances
change that would more likely than not reduce our enterprise fair value below its book value. These events or ciccumstances could include a significant change in the
business climate, including a significant sustained decline in a reporting unit’s market value, legal factors, operating performance indicators, competition, sale or
disposition of a significant portion of cur business, potential government actions toward aur facilities, and other factors.

Ifour market capitalization drops significantly below the anount of net equity recorded on our balance sheet, it might indicate a decline in our fair value
and would recuire us to flrther evaluate whether our goodwill has been impaired. If the fair value of our reperting units is less than their carrying value, we could be
required to record an impainment charge. The amount of any impainment could be significant and could have a material advesse Inpact on our financial condition and
tesults of operations for the period in which the charge is taken. For a further discussion of goodwill impairment testing, please see item 7—Management 's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulls of Operations below.

We may be requived fo contribute additional cash fo meet any underfinded benefit obligations associated with refirement and post-retirement benefif plans we
nunage.

We have various employee benefit plan obligations that require us to make coniributions to satisfy, over time, our underfunded benefit obligations, which
are generally determined by caleulating the projected benefit obligations minus the fair value of plan assets, For example, as of Qctober 2, 2013, and September 26,
2014, our defined benefit pension and posi-retirement benefit plans were projected to be underfunded by $413.1 million and $400.8 million, respectively, See Note &
—Pension Plans of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemrents beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Forrn 10-K for additional disclosure. In the futute,
our benefit plan obligations may increase or decrease depending on changes it the levels of interest rates, pension plan asset perforrmance and other factors. If we
are required to contribute a significant amount of the deficit for underfunded benefit plans, our cash flows could be materially and adversely affected,

Rising inflation, interest rates, and/or construction costs cordd reduce the demand for our services as well as decrease our profit on our existing cortracts, in
particular with respect fo ow fixed-price confracts,

Rising inflation, interest rates, or construction costs coukl reduce the demand for our services. In addition, we bearall of the risk of rising inflation with
respect to those contracts that are fixed-prive, Because a significant portion ofaur revenues are eamned from cost-reimbursable type contracts (approximately 83.0%
during fiscal 2013), the effects ofinflation on our financial condition and results of operations over the past few years have been generally minor. However, if we
expand our business into markets and geographic areas where fixed-price and lump-sum work is more prevalent, inflation may have a larger impact on our results of
operations in the future. Therefore, increases in inflation, interest rates or construction cests could have a material adverse impact on out business, financial
condition, and results of operations.
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We may be affected by paricel or regudatory responses to climate change.

Growing concerns about climate change may result in the imposition of additional environmental regulations, For example, there is a growing consensus
that new and additional regulations may be enacted conceming, among other things, groenhousc gas emissions could result in increased compliance costs for us and
our clients. Legis lation, intemational protocols, regulation or other restrictions on emissions could also affect our clients, including those who are involved in the
exploration, production or refining of fossil fuels, emit greenhouse gases through the combustion of fessil fuels or emit greenhiouse gases through the mining,
munufacture, utilization or production of materials or goods. Such palicy changes could inciease the costs of projects for our clients or, in some cases, prevent a
project [rom going forward, thereby potentially reducing the nced [or our services, which would in um have a imateral adverse impact on our business, financial
condition, and tesults ofoperations, However, these changos could alse increase the pace of projects, such as carbon capture or storage projects, that could have a
positive impact on our business. We cannot predict when or whether any ofthese various proposals may be enacted or what their elfect will be on us or on our
customers,

Cur effective tax rate may increase or decrease,

We aie subject to incotme taxes in the U.S, and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining our workiwide provision for
income taxes. [n the ordinary course of our business, there are many transactions and caleulations where the vitimate tox determination is uncertain. We are regularly
under audit by taxauthorities, Although we believe that our taxestimates and tax positions are reascnable, they could be materially affected by many factors
including the fnal outcome of tax audits and related fitigation, the introduction of new taxaceounting standards, legislation, regulations, and related interpretations,
our global mixof eamings, the realizability of deferred taxassets and changes in uncertain taxpositions. An increase or decrease in our effoctive taxrato could have a
material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Systems and information technology interruption or fuilure and data security breaches could adversely impact our ability to operate or expese us to significant
Sinancial losses and repuiationad harm,

We rely heavily on computer, nfomution, and comnunications technology and related systens in oxder to propetly operate our business. Fromtime to
time, we experience cocasional system interruptions and delays. In the event we are unable to regulatly deploy sofiware and hardware, effectively upgrade our
systerms and network infrastructure, and take other steps to maintain or improve the efficiency and efficacy of our systems, the aperation of such systems could be
intertupted or resull in the loss, cormuption, or release of data. In addition, our computer and commnication systems and eperations could be damaged or intermipted
by natural disasters, force majeure events, telecommunications failures, power foss, acts of war or temrorism, computer viruses, malicieus cede, physical or electranic
security breaches, intenticnal or inadvertent user misuse or error, or similar events or dismptions. Any ofthese or other events could cause intermptions, delays,
loss of critical and/or sens itive data.or similar effects, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, protection of intellectual
property, and results of operations, as well as those of our clients.

In addition, we face the threat to our computer systens of unauthorized access, computer hackers, computer viruses, malicious cede, organized cyber-
attacks and other security problems and systemdistuptions, including possible unauthorized access to and disclosute of vur and our clients’ propriotaty or classified
information, We rely on industry accepted security measures and technology to securely naintain all confidential and proprfetary information on cur computer
systens, but they may still be vulnetable to these threats, As a result, we nay be required to expend significant resources to protect against the threat ofthese
systemdisruptions and security breaches or to alleviate problens caused by these disruptions and breaches. Any of these events could damage our reputation and
have a material adverse effect on out business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We may not be able to protect onw intellectind property or that of onr cliens.

Qur technology and intellectual propetty provide us, in many instances, with a competitive advantage. Although we protect our property through patent
registrations, license restrictions, and similar mechanis s, we may not be able to successfully preserve our rights and they could be invalidated, circunwented,
challenged or bocowie obsolete, In addition, the laws of sone foreign countries in which we operate do not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as
the U.S, It we are unable to protect and rmaintain our intellectual property rights or ifthere are any succcssful intellectual property challenges or infringement
proceedings against us, our ability to differentiate our service offerings could be reduced. Litigation to determine the scope of intellectual property rights, even if
ultimately successtul, could be costly and could divert management’s attention away fromother aspects ef our business.
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In addition, if our intellectual property rights or work processes becoine obsoleie, we my not be able to differentiate out service offerings and seme of our
competitors may be able to offer more aftractive services to cur customers, Qur competitors may mdependently attenpt to develop or obtain access to technologies
that are similar or superior fo our technologies.

Qur clients or other third parties imay also provide us with their technology and inteflectual property, There is a risk we may not sufficiently protest our or
their information from improper use or dissemination and, as a result, could be subject to claims and litigation and resulting liabilities, loss of contracts or other
consequences that could have an adverse impact on our business, fnancial condition, and results of eperations.

Our businesses could be moterially and adversely affected by events outside of our control,

Bstraordinary or force majeure events beyend our control, such as natural or man-made disasters, could negatively impact our ability to operate. As an
cxanple, from time to time we face unexpected severe weather conditions which may result in weather-related delays that are not always reimbursable under a fixed-
price contract; evacuation of personnel and curtailment of services; increased labor and material costs in areas resulting fromweather-related damage and
subsequent increased demand for labor and materials for repairing and rebuilding; inability to deliver materials, equipment and persennel to jobsites in accordance
with contract schedules and loss of productivity. We mnay remain obligated to performour services after any such natural or man-made event, unless a foree majeure
clause or other contractual provision provides us with relief from our contractual obligations. If we ate not able 1o react quickly to such events, orif a high
concentration of our projects are in a specific geographic region that suffers froma natural or man-made catastrophe, our operations may be significantly affected,

which could have a negative inpact on our operutions. In addition, if we cannot complete our contracts on time, we may be subject to potential liability claims by our
clients which may reduce our profits.

We are subject to profissional standards, duties and statutory obligations on professional reports and opinions we issue, which could subject us to monetary
dariages.

We issue reports and opinions to clients based on out professional engineering expertise as well as our other professional credentials that subject us to
professional standards, duties and obligations regulating the perfornance of our services, For exanple, we issue opinions and reports to governtment clients in
connection with securities offerings, Ifa client or another third party alleges that our report oropinion is incotrect or it is improperly relied upon and we are held
responsible, we could be subject to significant menetary damages. In addition, our reports and other work product may need to comply with professional standards,
licensing requirements, securities regulations and other laws and rules governing the performance of professional services in the jurisdiction where the services are
performed. We could be liable to third parties who use or rely upon our reports and other wotk product even if we ate not contractually bound to those third parties.
These events could in tun result in monetary damages and penalties.

Delaware law and vur charter docrments imay impede or discourage a takeover or change of comtrol,

We are a Delaware corporation. Certain anti-takeover provisions of the Delaware general corporation law impose restrictions on the ability of others to
acquire control of us. In addition, certain provisions of our charter documents may inpede or discourage a takeover, For exanple:

. Our Board of Ditectors is divided ito three staggered classes (although ourBoard of Directors is currently being destaggered);
. Only our Board of Directors can fill vacancies on the board;

. There arc various restrictions on the ability of'a sharcholder te nominate a director for election; and

. Our Board of Directors can authorize the issuance of preference shares.

These types of provisions, as well as our ability to adopt a shareholder rights agreement in the future, could make it more difficult for a third party to
acquite control of us, even if the acquisition would be beneficial to our shareholders. Accordingly, stockholders may be limited in the ability to obtain a premium for
their shares.

lem 1B, UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

Item 2. PROPERTIES
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Qur properties consist primarily of office space within general, commercial office buildings located in major cities primarily in the following countries:
United States; Australia; Austria; Belgiunt Canada; Chile; Ching; Finland; France; Gernuny; Greece; India; Italy; Malaysia; Mexico; Morocco; The Netherlands;
Onun; The Philippines; Paland; Puerto Rico; Petu; Republic of Treland; Saudi Arabia; South Afica; Singapore; Spain; Sweden; United Arab Bmirates; and the United
Kingdom. Such space is used for operations (providing technical, professional, and other home office services), sales, and administration. Most of our properties are
leased. In addition, we cwn [acilities located in Charles ton, South Carolina which had served as our principal manufacturing and fabiication site for our modular
construction activities. We also have fabtication facilities located in Canada in Pickering, Ontario and Ldmonton and Lamont, Alserta, The total amount of'space
used by us for all of our operations is approxnntely 8,3 miflion square feet.

Wealso loase smuller, project ollices loeated throughout the US., the UK., and in certain other countries. We also rent most of our construction equipment
on a short-termbasis.

Ttem 3. LEGAIL PRCCEEDINGS

The information required by this lem3 is included in Note 11 — Contractual Guarantees, Litigation, Invesfigatlons, and Insurance of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 4. MINESAFETY ISCLOSURE

Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reformand Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act™) requires domestic mine operators to disclose
violations and orders {ssued under the Federal Minc Safizty and Health Act of 1977 (the “Mine Act”) by the federal Mine Salety and Health Administration. Under
the Ming Act, an independent contractor, such as Jacobs, that performs services or construction of a mine is included within the definition of a mining operator. We
do not act as the owner of any mines.

Infenmtion concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1503(a) of the Dodd-Frank Act and Item 104 of Regulation 8-Kis
included in Fxhibit 95,
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PARTI
Item 5. MARKET FOR REGIS TRANT'S COMMON HQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES -
Market Information

Jacobs’ common stock is listed on the NYSE and trades under the symbol JEC, We provided to the NYSE, without qualification, the required annual
certification of our Chief Executive Officer regarding compliance with the NYSE's corporate governance listing standards. The following table sets foxth the low and
high sales prices of a share of our common stock during each of the fiscal quarters presented, based on the NYSE Composite Price History:

Low Sales High Sales
Price Price
Fiscal 2015: _
First quarter $ 078 % 4994
Second-quarter I - . 37.87 4549
Third quarter 41.68 4825
Fourth quarter- ’ 36.05 4464
Fiscal 2014: '
First quarter 3 5580 § 64.27
Second quarter ) 5820 - G688
Third quarter 52.57 65.02
Fourth quarter : 49,13 55.00

Shareliolders

According to the records of our transfer agent, there were 1,116 shareliolders of record as of November 20, 2015.

Share Repmrchases

On August 19, 2014, the Board of Directors approved a programto tepurchase up to $300 million of the Conpany's common stock over a three year period.
Share repurchases may be executed through various means incliding, without limitation, open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise.
The share repurchase programdoes net oblige the Company to purchase any shares. The authorization for the share repurchase program may be terminated,
increased, or decreased by the Company's Board of Directors in its discretion at any time. The timing of our share repurchases may depend upon market condilions,
other uses of capital, and other factors. As of October 2, 2015, the Conpany exhausted the repurchase capacity under the authorization.

A sumimry of repurchases of cur comimon steck each fiscal month during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015 is as follows (in thousands, except per-share amounts):

Tetal Numbers of Shares Approximate Dollar Value
Purchasedas Part of  of Shares that May Yet Be

Total Number of Shares  Average Price Paldper  Pablicly Announced Purchased Under the
Period Purchased Share (1) Plans or Programs Plans or Programs
June 27 through July 24, 2015 44 3 40.29 404 5 532,362
Tuly 25 through August 21, 2015 289 42.88 289 519,974
August 22 through Dedober 2, 2015 536 38.63 536 500,000
Total 1,229 § 40,18 1,229 § 500,000

n Includes commissions paid.

On July 23, 2015, the Board of Divectors approved a pregram to purchase up to an additional $500 million of the Company's
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common stock over the naxt lhree years. This approval was in addition to the then available capacity remaining under the Conpany's August 2014 $500 million share
repurchasc authorization. The new share repurchase authorization is subject to the same general terms and conditions as the prior share ropurchase authorization
summarized above.

Dividends

Qur policy is to use cash flows fromoperations to fund future growth, pay down debt, and, subject to market conditions, reputchase common stock under
a stock buy-back programapproved by our Board of Directoss. Accordingly, we have not paid a cash dividend since fiscal 1984. Although our Board of Directors
petiodically reviews and considers the merits of paying cash dividends, we currently have no plans to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Unrepistered Sy i ritic:

On QOctober 14, 2013, we acquired the assets of Trompeter Enterprises, LL.C., Motion Mekanix, Inc., Teamm Workforce, Inc., and Sims Software I, Inc.
(colleetively "Trompeter"); and on December 20, 2013, we acquired the asscts of Stobbarts (Nuclear) Limited, for cash and shares ofour common stock. In connection
with thesc acquisitions, we ssued 33,947 shares of our common stock with an aggregate value of approximately $2.0 million. No underwriters ot placement agents
were involved with these acquisitions,

The issuance of our common stock in the acquisition was exempt fiom the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
"Securities Act"), pursuant to Rule 506 thereof. The offer and sale of the shares of our common stock: (i) was made as part ol a transaction that did not involve more
than 35 purchasers, (as defined in Rule 501(e) under the Securities Act) who were either aceredited investors or had such knowledge and experience in financial and
business matters that such purchaser was capable of evaluating the metits and risks ot"acquiring shares of our common stock, and (i) did not involve any general
solicitation or general advertising,
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e ANCE

The following graph and table shows the changes over the past five-year period i the value of $100 invested at the end of fiscal 2010 in (1) the common
stock of Jacobs Engineering Group Ing., (2) the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index, and {3) the Dow Jones Heavy Construction Group Index. The values of'each investment
are based on share price appreciation, with reinvestment ofell dividends, provided any were paid, The nvestments are assumed to have occurred at the beginning of
the period presented. The stock performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF 6 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN"
Among Jacods Engingaring Groug Inc., he S&P 500index
andthe Dow Jones US Heavy Construztion Index

430
520 4
58 1 . ]
Hiiah] a1t 3 4 913 414 915
—&— Jacob s Engineering G ronp inc, ~-aiee- &P 500 —-e--Dow Jones US Heavy Construction

*51080 invasied on 9/30410 in stockor indax, including relnvesiment of dividends.
Fiscaf year ending Saplembar 30.

Copyright&® 2015 S3P, & division ef McGraw Hill Financial. All righta rezerved.
Copyright® 2015 Caw Jones & Co. Allrights resarvad.

2000 2011 2012 2013 2014 2018
Tacobs Engineering Group Te. o 100.09 83.44 10447 150.34 12615 96.72
S&P 500 190,00 101,14 131.69 15717 188.18 187.02
DowJones US Heavy Construction o 100.00 . 8748 11538 14534 13873 3.3 °

MNote: The above information was provided by Research Data Group, Inc.
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ftem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selected financial data for each of the last five fiscal years. This sclected financial data should be read in conjunction with the
Consclidated Financial Statements and related notes beginning on page F-1 ofthis Annual Repott on Form 10-K. Dollar amounts are presented in thousands, except
for per share information:

1015 (a) 2014 @) 2013 012 (o) 2011
Results of Operations: .
Revenues 5 12,114832 3§ 12,695,157 % 11818376 & 10,893,778 § 10,381,664
Wet earnings attributable to Jacobs ) 302,971 ) 328,108 ’ 423093 378954 331,029
Financial Position: 7
Current ratio _ LB6L0 | © L6t 1 21410l Co207el l4Ttol
Working capital $ 1,301,810  § 1542225 § 2,151,939 % 1,865,025 § 1,011,565
Curent assets - ' _ 3,282,976 3,802,071 4,039,558 612,077 31801
Total assets 7,785,926 U BAS3659 T4, 144 6,330,433 6,199,226
Cash 460,859 A4 1256405 Lo3AST T sEn
Long-tenndebt 584,434 764,075 415,086 528,260 2,042
Total Jacobs stockhiolders” equity 4,201,745 4469255 4213 097 3722473 T 3312988
Retumn on avcfagc equity 6.92% 7.36% 10.66% 10.77% 10.73%
Bagldog: o - o ' o : ' ‘
Technical professicnal services 3 11692404 3 12,607,020 § 11,118400 % 10,266,500  $ 9,100,100
Fiekl services - ' 7,134,166 SIS 6099500 5,643,200 o SIRNT0
Total $ 18,806,570 $ 18,380,034  § 17217500 % 15909700  § 14,289,800
PorShare Infostition: ' ) S ] o
Basic curnings per share . $ 242 % 251 % 327 % 297 % 263
Diluted eamings pershare | ' o 2408 248 S 3m o2 - 28
Stackholders’ equity 34.85 33.92 3200 28,65 25.93
_Ave_rage Nutrbet of Shates of ' ' S :
Comenon. Stock and Cornon
Stock Equivalents Outstanding ) ]
(Diluted) 7 126,110 132371 130945 - 2862 17923
Comnpn Shares Outstanding 7
at Year End 123,153 131,753 131,639 129,936 127,785

(@)  Includes costs 0f$107.9 million or $0.86 per diluted share, related to the Company’s restructuring initiatives in the second, third and fowrth quarters of fiscal
2015,

(b)  Includes costs of$109.2 million or $0.82 per diluted shate, related to the Company’s restructuring initiatives in the third and fowrth quaiter of fiscal 2014,
() Includesa one-lirr.le, alter-tax gain of $4.0 million, or $0.03 per diluted share, related to the sale of the Company's intellectual property for iren ore pelletizing and

certain other related assets,
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Itemn 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Critical A ting Polici

In order to understand better the changes that oceur to key elements of our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows, 2 reader of this
Munagement’s Discussion and Analysis (*MD&A™) should be aware of the entical accounting policies we apply in preparing our consaolidated fimancial statetrents.

The consolidated financial staterents contained in this report were prepared i accordance with 1.8, GAAP. The preparation of our consolidated financial
statetments and the financial statements of any business performing long-term engincering and construction-type contracts requires management to make cortain
estinmtes and judgments that affect both the entity’s results of operations and the carrying vahuies of its assets and liabilities, Although our significant accounting
policies are described in Note 2— Significani Accounting Policies of Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on
Form L0-K, the following discussion is intended to highlight and describe those accounting policies that are especially critical to the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements.

Revenue Accounting for Confracts and Use of Joinf Venfures—In general, we recognize revenues at the time we provide services, Depending on the
commercial terms of the contract, we recognize revenues either when costs are incuned, or using the percentage~of.completion method of accounting by relating
contract costs incurred to date to the total estimated costs at completion. This method of revenue recognition requires us to prepare estimates of costs to complete
contracts in progress as of the balnce sheet dates. In making such estimates, judgments are required to evaluate the possible effects of vatinnces in schedule; the
costs of materials and labor; productivity; and the impact of change orders, clnims, contract disputes, and achieveiment of contractual performance standards. Many
of our engineering and construction centracts provide for reimbursement of costs plus a fixed or percentage fee. For contracts containing incentive fee artangements,
fees are frequently based on achievement of target conpletion dates, target costs, and/or other perftrmance criteria. Failure to meet these targets or increases in
contract costs can result in unrealized incentive fees or non-recoverable costs, which could exceed revenues recognized fromthe project.

We provide for contract losses in their entirety in the period they become known without regard to the percentage of completion, For rmltiple contracts
with a single customer we account for each contract separately.

The nature of our business sometimes results in clients, subcontractors or vendors presenting claims to us for recovery of costs they incurred in excess of
what they expected to incur, or for which they believe they are not contractually responsible. In those situations where a claim against us may result in additional
costs to the contract, we include in the total estimated costs ofthe contract {(and therefore, the estimated amount of margin to be eamed under the centract) an
estimate, based on all relevant facts and circumstances available, of the additional costs to be incurred. Similarly, and in the normal coursc of business, we may
present claims to our clients for costs we have incurred for which we believe we are not contractually responsible. In those situations where we have presented such
claims to our clients, we include in revenues the amount of costs incurred, without profit, to the extent it is probable that the claims will result in additional contract
reyenue, and the amount of such additional revenue can be reliably estimated, Costs associated with unapproved change orders are included in revenues using
substantially the same criteria used for claims,

Certain cost-reimbursable contracts with govemment customets as well as many cotrmmercial clients provide that contract costs are subject to audit and
adjustment. In this situation, revenues are recorded at the tin services are performed based upon the amounts we expect to realize upon completion of the contracts.
In those situations where an andit indicates that we may have billed a client for costs that are not sllowable under the terms of the contract, we estimate the amount of
such nonbillable costs and adjust our revenues accordingly,

As is conumon to the indusiry, we execute certain contracts jointly with third parties through vavious forms of joint ventures and consortiums. Although
the joint ventures own and hold the contracts with the clients, the services required by the contmcts are typically performed by us and our joint venture partners, or
by other subcontractors under subcontracting agreements with the joint ventures. The assets of our joint ventures, therefore, consist almost entirely of cash and
receivables (representing amounts due fromclients), and the liabilitics of our joint ventures consist almost entirely of amounts due to the joint venture partners (for
services provided by the partners to the joint ventures under their individual subcontracts) and other subcontractors. In general, at any given time, the cquity ofour
joint ventures represents the undistributed profits eamed on contracts the joint ventures hold with clients, Very fow of our joint ventures have employees. None of
our joint ventures have
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third-party debt or credit facilities, Our joint ventures, therefore, are simply mechanisms used to deliver enggineering and construction services to clients. Rarely do
they, in and of themselves, present any tisk of loss to us orto our pattners separate from those that we would carry if we were performing the contract on onr own.
Under U.S, GAAP, our share of losses associated with the contracts held by the jeint ventures, ifand when they occur, has always been reflected in our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In evaluating the Company's joint ventures {also referred o as "variable interest entities", or " VIEs") for accounting and consolidation purposes, we
performa qualitative analysis to determine whether or not the Company has a “controlling financial interest” in the VIE. The Company is deemed to have a controlling
" financial interest in a VIEif it lias (I) the power to dircet the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's econemic performance; and (if) the right to
(eceive benefits, or obligation te absorb losses, that could potentially be significant to the VIE, In making our qualitative analysis, the Company assesses each Vil to
determine those activities that most signilicantly impact the VIEs economic performance and whether the Company, another entity, or multiple entities have the
power to direct thosc activitics.

1f we determing that we have the power to direct those activities of the VIE that mest significantly impact its financial performance and have the right oe
obligation to receive benefits or absorb losses that could potentially be significant to the VIE, then we awe the primary beneficiary ofthe VIE and we consolidale the
VIE. [fwe determine that we do not have the power to direct the most significant activities of the VIE ar power is shared by fwo or more unrclated parties, then we are
not the primary beneficiary and we do not consolidate the VIE,

For the Company's unconsolidated joint ventures, we use either the equity method ofaccounting or praporijonal consolidation. The Company does not
currenily participate in any significant VIEs in which it has a controling financial interest. There were no changes in facts and circumstances in the period that caused
the Company to roasscss the method of accounting for its VIEs.

Accounting for Sfock fssued te Employees and Others— We measure the cost of emmployee services received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments based on the estimated grant-date fair value of the award. We estimate the fair value of stock options granted to employecs and directors using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Like all option-pricing models, the Black-Scholes model requires the use ofhighly subjective assumptions including (i) the
expected volatility of the market price of the underlying stock, and (ii) the cxpected term of the award, among others. Accordingly, changes in assumptions and any
subsequent adjustiments to those assumptions can causc drastically different fair values to be assigned to curstock option awards. For restricted stock units
containing service and performance conditions with measures external to the Company, compensation expense is based on the falt value of such unils determined
using Monte Carlo Simulations. Due to the uncertainties inherent in the use of assunptions and the results of applying Monte Carlo Sinulations, the amount of
expense recorded in the accompanying censolidated financial statements may not be representative of the effects on our future consolidated financial statements
because equity awards tend to vest over several years and additional equity awards may be nade in the future.

Accounting for Pension Plans— The accounting for pension plans requires the use of assumptions and estimates in order to caleulate periodic pension
cost and the value o the plans’ assets and liabilities. These assumptions include discount mtes, investment retutns, and projected salary increases, among others.
The actuarial assumptions used in determining the funded statuses of the plans are provided in Note 6 — Pension Plans of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 161

The expected rates of retumn on plan assets for fiscal 2016 range from 3.5% to 8.5% conpared to 4.5% to 8.5% for the prior year. We belicye the range of
rates selected for fiscal 2016 reflects the leng-term retums expected on the plans” assets, considering recent market conditions, projected rates of inflation, the
diversification of the plans’ assets, and the expected real rates of macket returns. The discount rates used to computc plan liabilities were changed froma ange of
1.8% to 8.8% i fiscal 2014 to a mnge of 1.6% to 7.8% in fiscal 2015. These assumptions represent the Conpany’s best estimale of the rates at which its pension
cobligations could be effectively settled.

Changes i the actuatial assumptions often have a material effect on the values assigned to plan asseis and liabilities, and the associated pension
expense. For example, if the discount rate used to value the net pension benefit obligation (“PBO™) at October 2, 2015, was higher (lower) by 0.5%, the PBO would
have been lower (higher) at that date by approsimately $102.1 million for non-U.S, plans, and by approsimately $25.8 million for U.S. plans. If the cxpeeted retum on
plan assels was higher (lower) by 1.0%, the net periodic pension cost for fiscal 2016 would be lower (higher) by approximately $9.0 million for non-U.S. plans, and by
approzimately $3.6 million for U.S. plans. Differences between actuarial assumptions and actual perfomuance (i.e., actuarial gains and losses) that are not recognized
as a cotpoenent of net periodic pension cost in the period in which such differences
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arise are recorded to accumulated other cormprehensive income {loss) and are recognized as part of net periodic pension cost in fiture periods in accordance with U.S,
GAAP. Management monitors trends in the marketplace within which our pension plans operate in an effort to assure the faimess of the actuarial assumptions used.

Contractual Guarantees, Litigation, Investigations, and Insurance— In the normal course of business, we are subject to certain contractual guarantees
and litigation, The guarantecs to which we are a party generaily relate io project schedules and plant performance. Most of the litigation in which we are involved has
us as a defendant in workers' compensation; personal injury; environmental; enployment/labor; professional Linbility; and other similar lawsuits. We maintain
insurance coverage for various aspects of our business and operations. We have elected, however, to retain a portion of losses that occur through the use of various
deductibles, fimits, and retentions under out insurance prograims. This situation may subject us to some future lability for which we are only partially insured, or
conpletely uninsured, and we intend to mitigate any such future lability by continuing to exercise prudent business judgment in negotiating the terms and
conditions of our contracts,

In accordance with U.S, GAAP, we record in our Consolidated Balance Sheets amounts representing our estimated liability relating to such guarantees,
litigation, and insurance claitns. We include any adjustments to such liabilities in our consolidated results of operations.

In addition, as a contractor providing services to the U.S. federal government and several of its agencies, we are subject to many levels of audits,
investigations, and claims by, oron behalf of, the U.S. federal government with respect to contract perfonmance, pricing, costs, cost allocations, and procurement
practices. We adjust revenues based upon the amounts we expect to realize considering the effects of any client audits or governmental investigations.

Testing Goodwill for Possible Impairment— The goodwill carried on our Consolidated Balance Sheets is tested annually for possible impaiment. In
petforming the annual impairment test, we evaluate our goodwill at the reporting unit level, For fiscal 2015 and consistent with prior years, we detetmined that we
have two reporting units, which are based on geography. We refer to these reporting units internally as *Europe™ and “Non-Europe™. Each of our reporting units
conducts the business activities described elsewhare in this 2015 Form 10-K, which includes providing professional technical services such as design, engingering,
and architectural services; construction and/or constriction management services; and operations and maintenance services.

Our geography-based reporting units reflect the Company’s organizational structure, which is based predominately on geography, as well as our
acquisition strategy, which favors acquisition targets that, among other things, previde access to new geographic areas. Qur reporting units represent rational
groupings into which substantially all of our major acquisitions (which are responsible for the goodwill appearing in our Consolidated Balance Sheets) have been
assimilated, and where all of'the operations under each repotiing unit share in the benefits of the goodwill created by our acquisitions.

During the fitst quarter of fiscal 2016, we announced a recrganization of our operations around four global lines of business. This reorganization is
mtended to better serve our global clients, leverage our workforce, help streamline operations, and provide enhanced growth opportunities, The four global lines of
business arc: Petroleum & Chemicals, Buildings & Infrastiucture, Aerospace & Technology, and Industrial. Each business unit has a president that reports dircetly to
the Company's President & CEO. As part of the reorganization, cestain support functions (.. Sales), which have been managed centrally for many years, will be
embedded in the new business unifs and will repott to the respective line of business presidents. The costs of other support functions (e.g., acconnting, legal, huran
resources, and information technelogy) and certain other activities (e.g., global insurance) will either be assigned or allocated to each new business unit using a
rationale method of assipnment / allocation, or will remain an element of corporate general and administrative expenses, In addition, the Company has significantly
maonlified its major cash incentive plan utilizing forecasted performance mefrics aligned along the new lines of business, We are in the proeess of modifying our
systens and work processes to repert the results of these business units accurately and timely. We are also developing processes for accurately eliminating inter-
unit revenue and profit. We expect to complete our systemand other process changes so that we may accurately repott operating results by line of business to the
Company's President & CEQ no later than the second quarter of fiscal 2016,

U.S. GAAP does not prescribe a specific valuation method for estinating the fair value of reporting units, The valnation technique used to estimate the
fair value ofthe reporting units requires the use of signilicant estimates and assumpiions, ineluding revenue growth raes, operating margins, discount rates and
future market conditions, among others.

For [iscal years 2014 through 2015, we used both an income approach and a market approach to test our goodwill for possible impairment. Such approaches
require us to make estinmtes and judgments. Under the income approach, fair value is )
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determined by using the discounted cash flows of our reporting units. Under the mxuket approach, the faic value of our reparting units is determined by reference to
guideline companies that are reasonably comparable to our reporting units; the fair values are estimated based on the valuation multiples of the invested capital
asscciated with the guideline companies. In assessing whether there is an indication that the canying value of goodwill has been impaired, we utilize the results of
both valuation techniques and consider the mnge of fair values indicated. The fair values foreach reporting unit exceeded the respoctive book values by over 20% Lo
40%. The key agsumptions used to determine the fair valie of our reporting units in our testing were:

Income Approach

With respect to the income approach, we utilized intemal financial projections through fiscal 2018 (for the fiscal 2014 impaivment analysis) and fiscal 2019
(for the fiscal 2015 impaiment analysis). We assumed a weighted average cost of capital of 11.00% (for the fiscal 2014 impaiment analysis) and 11.25% (for the fiscal
2015 impairrent analysis). We also agsumed a residual period growth rate of 3.00% (for both the fiscal 2014 and fiseal 2015 inpairment analyses),

Market Appreach

With respect to the market approach, for guideline publicly traded companies reasonably comparable to the Company's reporting units, the Company used
multiples ranging from5.9 to 7.6 of EBITDA {eamings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization) and 7.6 to 10.0 of EBIT (earnings before interest and
taxes ), for the fiscal vear 2014 test applied! to the projected fiscal yoar 2014 to 2016 financial results for each of o reporting units. The Company used multiples
ranging from 6.3 to 6.4 of EBITDA and 7.4 to 7.5 of EBIT, for the fiscal year 2015 test applied to the projected fiscal year 2015 to 2017 financial results for cach of our
reporting units,

It is possible that changes in market conditions, economy, facts and circumstances, judgments, and assumptions used in estimating the fair value could
change, resulting in possible impainnent of goodwill in the future. The fair values resulting from the valvation techniques used are not necessarily representative of
the values we might obtain in a sale of the reporting units to willing third parties.

The Company performs the annual goodwill impaiiment test for the reporting units at the end of the third quarter of our fiscal year. The Company will test
goodwill for iopaicent between annual tests if an event occurs or circunstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit
below its carrying amount. We have determined that the fair value of our reporting units substantially exceeded their respective carrying values for fiscal years 2015,
2014, and 2013.

Based on the most recent results of our annual inpainment tests, there were no indications of impainment of the goodwill shown in cur Consolidated

Balance Sheets at either October 2, 2015, or September 26, 2014, Furthermore, the Company performed an intenm impairment assessment at October 2, 2015, and
concluded that it was not more likely than not that the fair value of either reporting unit had been reduced to an amount below its carrying amount.
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The Company’s fiscul year ends on the Friday closest to September 30 {deternined on the basis of the nunber of workdays) and, accordingly, an additional week
of activity is added every five-to-six years. Fiseal 2015 results of operations includes an additional week of operations as compared to fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013,
which was not material to the Conpany's fiscal 2015 consolidated results of operations,

The 2015 Restciuring,

During the second quatter of fiseal 2015, the Company comnenced a series of initiatives intended to improve operational efficiency, reduce costs, and better
position itself to drive growth of the business in the future (the "2015 Restructuring"). Actions related o the 2015 Restructuring completed during the fiscal year
inchude inveluntary terminations, the abandonment of certain leased offices, combining operational organizations, and the co-location of employees into other
existing offices. We are not exiting any service types or client end-markets. The Conpany's consolidated results of operations for fiscal 2015 include a $157.2 million
pre-tax impact relating to costs associated with the 2015 Restructuring. The costs of the 2015 Restucturing are almost entirely inciuded in selling, general, and
administrtive expense in the accorpanying Consolidated Statements of Famings. The Conpany expects to largely complete the 2015 Restructuring by the end of the

fist quarter of fiscal 2016, The following table summarizes the effects of the 2015 Restructuring on the Corpany's consolidated results of opetations for fiscal 2015 (in
thousands, excepl for earnings per share):

Year Ended
October 2, 2015

Effects of 2005 Without 2015
U.S GAAP Restrwctwring  Restructuring

Consolidated pre-taxeamings (oss) $ 430,137 $ (I157.192) $ 587329

Tax (sxpense) benefit (101,255) 49278 (150,533)
Net eamings of the Group 328,882 (107,214} 436,796
Nen-controlling interests (25.911) — (25911)
Net garnings of Jacobs $ 302571 § (107914) § 410,885
Diluted carnings (loss) per share $ 240 % 086) $ 3.26

The 2015 Inter-company Debt Refinancine

During the thitd quarter of fiscal 2015, the Company completed the refinancing of certain international intercompany debt (the "2015 Intercompany Debt
Refinancing"). The 2015 Intercompany Debt Refinancing resulted in a one-time tax benefit of $23.1 million, or $0.18 per share.

201 trugturing and Other Unusual Bvents Aftecting Fiscal 2014

During the third quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company initiated the "2014 Restructuring”. In recognition of the slowdown in several of the Company's clients' end
markets, the Company implemented a serfes of initiatives which, nmch like the 2615 Restructuring, were intended to improve operational efliciency and reduce costs,
and also to accelerate the integration of SKM.

In addition to the 2014 Restructuring and the acquisition of SKM, the Company's consclidated results of operations for fiscal 2014 were affected by the following
discrete events:

+  $6.8 million, or $0.05 per diluted share, increase to net earnings due to the favorable resolution of an intemational tax matter in the first quarter of fiscal
2004; as a tesult of these events, approximately $4.1 million of accrued interest expense was reversed,

$6.4 million, or $0.05 per diluted share, inerease to net earnings related to a gain on the sale of certain intellectual property in the second quatter of fiscal
2014;
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+  $227 million, or $0.18 per diluted share, decrease to net eamnings relating to certain specific operational events at SKM and SKM transaclion-related costs
and expenses incurred during the first half olthe fiscal year; and

» $223 million, or $0.16 per diluted share, decrease to net camings due to lower marging associated with cortain projects in Burope combined with unusual
weather effects in the second quarter of fiscal 2014,

As used hetein, the term " 2014 Events" refers to the conbined effects ofboth the 2014 Restructuring and the unusual events described above. Within this
MD&A, the Conpany may disclose and discuss its results of operations before the effects of the 2015 Restructuring, the 2014 Events and/or certain other
transactions and events described herein. Although such information is non-GAAP in nature, it is presented because management believes it provides a better view
of the Company’s operating results to investors to assoess the Company’s performance and operating trends. As used hercin, the terms "adjusted eamings” and
"adjusted net camings" refer to the Company's GAAP camings as adjusted to eliminate the eflects ofthe 2G14 Events (when used in reference to fiscal 2014 results of
opetations) snd the 2015 Restiuctiring (when used in reference to fiscal 2015 results of operations).

2015 Overview

The Cotmpany’s GAAP net camings for fiscal 2015 decreased by $25.1 million, or 7.6%, compared to fiscal 2014. Tncluded in net camings for fiscal 2015 is the 2013
Inter-compatiy Debt Refinancing. Included in our fiscal vear 2015 results was a $12.1 million negative impact related to the strengthening U,S, Dollar, Bcluding the
effects ofthe 2015 Restructuring and the 2014 Restructuring, the Company's adjusted net eamings for fiseal 2015 decreased by $26.4 million, or 6.0%, compared to the
prior year,

The effects of lower prices of crude oil and certain cominoditics, including copper and iron ote, continue to present headwinds for clients operating in the
Refining-Downstream, Ol & Cas-Upstieam, and Mining and Minerals industrics and markets, Our Infrastrycture and National Government Prograns groups continue
to performwell Actions taken pursuant to the 2015 Restructuring have begun to lower the Company's overall cost structure, which is helping to offsef the negative
pressutres we are experiencing in certain of our marlets.

The Company's rosults [or fiscal 2015 when cormpared to the prior year were positively impacted by (i} the SKM acquisition, which is included for all of fiscal 2015
compared te only approximately 9-1/2 months in fiscal 2014 and, to a lesser degree, (ii) the other acquisitions completed during fiscal 2014 (described below). Also
influencing the comparability of the Cormpany's fiscal 2013 results of operations to fiscal 2014 were the 2015 Restructuting and the 2614 Bvents,

The folowing table summarizes the elfects of the 2014 Events on the Company's consolidated results ofoperations for liscal 2014 (in theusands, except for
camnings per share): '

Year Ended
Septentber 26, 2014

Effects of Without
USRS GAAP 2014 Events 2014 Events

Consolidated pre-taxeamings (loss) $ 542,166 3§ (141,541) § 683,707

Tax {(expense) benefit (190,054) 32,359 (222413)
Net earnings of the Group 352,112 (109,182) 461,294
Non-controlling interests (24,004) — (24,004)
Net carnings of Jacobs $ 328108 § (l09,182) $ 437,290

Diluted eamings (loss) per share $ 248 8 (082) % 3.30

Backlog at Octoher 2, 2015 was $18.8 billion, and represents an increase of 2.3% overbacklog at September 26, 20314, Backlog remains near record levels despite
the negative effects on backlog stemming fiom foreign exchauge, New prospects and new sales rermain strong and the Company continues to have a positive outlook
for many of the ndustry groups und markets in which our clients operate.
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During fiscal 2015, the Company repurchased and retired 9.7 million shares of its common stock underits share repurchase program. Total cash spent for the
shares repurchased during fiscal 2015 was $422.3 million. As of October 2, 2015, the Company cxhausted the $500 million approved by the Board of Directors on
August 19, 2014. On July 23, 2015, the Board of Directors approved a programto purchase an additional $500 million of the Company's contmon stock ever the next
three years.

Business Cobinations Completed During Fiscal 2014

In December 2013, the Company acquired all of the outstanding equity interests in SKM, The acquisition of SKM is described in more detail under Notes to
Conselidated Financial Statements, below, as well as on page 7 and beginning on page F-11 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We also conpleted a number of other acquisitions during fiscal 2614 including Federal Network Systerns LLC ("FNS", formerly a subsidiary of Verizon); Eagleton
Engineering, LI.C; FMHC Corporation; Stobbarts (Nuclear) Limited; Tronpeter Enterprises; and MARMAC Field Services, Inc. The results of opemtions of these
other acquisitions were not material, individually or in the aggregate, to the Company's consolidated results of operations for fiscal 2014. During fiscal 2014, we also
acquired an additional 15% intergst in Jacobs, Zame] and Turbag Consulting Enginesrs Company ("ZATE"). This transaction brought the Company’s ownership in
ZATEto 75%.

Consistent with other business combinations we have conpleted in the past, we began integrating SKM and the other businesses we acquired last year into our
existing operations almost immediately after each business was acquired, Accordingly, it is not practicable to provide complete financial information for fiscal 2015 on
a stand-alone basis for any of the businesses we acquired last year.

Results of Operati
Gengral

Qurbusiness focuses exclusively on providing technical professional services and field services to a large number of industdal, conmercial, and
govemmental clients around the world. The services we provide generally fall into four broad categories:

. Project Services (including engineering, design, architecture, interiors, planning, environimental, and similar services);

«  Process, Scientific, and Systerms Consulting Services (including services performed in connection with scientific testing, analysis, and consulting
activities, as well as information technology and systems engineering and integration activities);

+  Construction Services (enconpassing traditional field construction services as well as modular construction consultmg services, direct hire
constniction, and construction managenent services); and

*  Operations and Maintenance Services (including services performed in connection with operating large, complex facilitics on behalf of clients, as
well as services involving process plant and facilities maintenance).

The scope of services we can provide our clients, therefore, ranges fromconsulting and conceptual design services (which are often required by clients in
the very early stages of a project) to complete single-tesponsibility, design-buiki contracts, to sexvices required in the post start-up phases of a project such as Q&M
services,
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The following table sets forth our revenues by type of service for each of the last three fiscal years (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
Technical Professiorsl Setvices reveaues: . : :
Project Servicos $ 6307015 § 657604 § 5977917
Proce‘sa,S'c‘lerxtiﬂo,-andSysLems.Cmis.ulﬁing ' _..1:,:[38,413' _' 758957 ' _ " 705604 !
Total Technical Professional Services revenues 7495433 7,334,961 6,083,011
Fleld Services tevenves: _ . . . N
Construction 3291823 4138720 3,825,878
Operations and Maittenaos (FO&M™) C1327576 - 12214467 1,308,587
Total Field Scfvices revenues 4,619,399 5,360,196 5,134,765

§ 20482 $ 12695057 § 11818376,

Project Services revenues for the year ended October 2, 2015 decreased $269.0 million, or 4.1%, ftomthe corresponding period last year. The decrease in Project
Services revenues was due primarily to the lower business volumes in the Refining - Downsiream and Chemicals and Polymers markets, particularly in North
Anerican and UK., driven principally by the decline in oil and other commodity prices, combined with the effects of the strengthening U.S, dollar.

Process, Scientific, and Systens Consulting revenues for the year ended October 2, 2015 increased $429.5 million, or 56.6%, fromthe comresponding petiod last
year, The increase was due primarily to the FNS acquisition completed during the fourth quarter of fiseal 2014, The revenues in this service lype refate 10 science,
engineering, and technical suppart services provided primarily to the U.S, federal government clients and its various agencies,

Construction revenues For the year ended October 2, 2015 decreased $846.9 million, or 20.5%, from the corresponding period last year, The decrease was primarily
duc to the winding down of a U.S. project in the Mining and Minerals market combined with lower business volute in the Refining - Downstream line of business.

Operations and Maintenance revenues For the year ended October 2, 2015 increased $106.1 million, or 8.7%, fromthe corresponding period last year. The increase
was primatily due to higher volume in the Chemicals and Polymers and Refining-Downstream markets, partially offset by a decline in National Government Programs.

We focus our services on clients operating in sclect industry groups and rmarkets. We believe these industry groups and markets have sufficient common needs
to penmit cross-utilization of our resources. The following table sets forth our revenues by these indusiry groups and markels for each ef the Inst three fiscal years (in
thousands): .

) 2015 2014 2013
National Government Programs - $ 2,643,696 3 2282116 $ 2284533
Chemicals and Polymers 2,380,721 2,985,352 2,391,144
Refining - Downstream R 1,955,726 229343 2337387
Infrastructure 1,625,895 1,351,574 1,015,864
Ol & Gas — Upstream _ 919,072 863348 S SI54TE:
Buildings 901,041 834,122 738404
Indlustrialand Other _ ' TSIST : B0 899756
Phanmaceuticals and Biotechnology 474,245 452,662 523,490
Minlng & Minerals 456,929 918,608 712,320
$ 1211482 $ 12,695,157 § 11,818,376

Ravenues decreased $580.3 million, or 4.6%, from$12.7 bitlion for fiscal 2014 to $12.1 billion for fiscal 2015. Revenues for fiscal year 2015 include a negative
impact of $561,0 million related to the strengthening U.S. Dollar.
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Revenues from clients operating in the National Government Prograns market increased $361.6 million, or 15.8%, to $2.6 billion from $2.3 billion for the
corresponding period last year, The inerease was due primarily to tho FNS acquisition completed dnring the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014,

Revenues from projects for clients operating in the Chemicals and Polymers industries decreased $604.6 million, or 20.3%, to $2.4 billion from $3.0 billion for the
cotresponding petiod last year, The decrease in revenues was due primazily to the normal winding-down and conmpletion of certain projects in the ULS, the UK, and
Europe. Although we continue to receive new awards for FEED (fiont-end engineering design) and pre-FEED services, larger integrated oil companies continue to re-
evaluate their investment opportunities censidering curment oil prices, We have long-termrelationships with numerous chemical companies around the wotld, and we
believe this industry group will provide growth opportunities in the long-term The acquisition of SKM strengthened our capabilities for customers operating in this
market a5 evidenced by a significant professional services contract we were awarded for what will be the largest chlorine dioxide plant in the world, located in Asia,

Revenues fromclients operating in the Refining - Downstreammarket decreased $283.6 million, or 12.7%, to $2.0 billion from$2.2 billion for the corresponding
period last year. The decrease ogourred within our operations in Canada, Burope, and the UK,

Revenues fromclients operating in the Infrastrycture market increased $264.3 million, or 19.4%, from $1.4 billion for fiscal 2004 to $1.6 billion for fiscal 2015, The
mcrease was due primarily to increased activity in the UK, the U.S,, and Australia. We believe market conditions may continue te improve within this industry
group, particularly for transpertation, water, and certain other prejects around the globe (although there is higher uncertainty in U.S. federal funding for certain
highway projects), One exanple is the Asset Management Prograrmme (AMP6) cycle in the UK., whete we provide a full range of professional services, including
regulatory strategic consultancy, engineering, project suppert and assct maintenance.

Revenues on projects for clients opetating in the Oil & Gas-Upstream market increased $55.9 million, or 6.5%, to $919.2 million from $863.3 million for the
cotresponding period last year. The increase was due primarily to higher business volume in the U.S. and the Middle East, partially offset by a decrease in Canada.
The Company believes that the recent decline in crude oil prices has dampened our client's near-term capital spending plans. As a result, we expect certain clients to
begin deploying more of their capital budgets to sustaining capital-type programs (small-cap projects and mintenance-driven work), an area where the Cowpany is
strong,

Revenues fromclients operating in the Buildings market increased $66.9 million, or 8.0%, from $834.1 million for fiscal 2014 to $901.0 million for fiscal 2015. We
saw growth globally with health care, higher education, mission critical, and certain other technically complexbuildings and facilities supported by the acquisition of
SKM. We view the Buildings market as improving as our business in this industry group continues to shifi towards projects for clients in the private sector.

Revenues from clients operating in the Mining and Minerals markets decreased $461.7 million, or 50.3%, from $918.6 million for fiscal 2014 to $456.9 mitlion for
fiscal 2015, The dectease was due to the winding down of several projects in North and South America and Australia without significant new work being added.
Globally, continuing pressure on commiodity prices have caused our clients in these industries to behave more conservatively when it comes to new spend. [t is
possible that this situation 1may centinue for the foresceable future. Accordingly, the Company is refocusing and reallocating its resources onto brownfield and
sustaining capital-type projects. Longer-term, we believe we are well positioned to realize incremental business when the cument pricing environment inproves,

Direct costs of contracts decreased $474.9 million, or 4.5%, from $10.62 billion during fiscal 2014 to $10.15 billion during fiscal 2015. Direct costs of contracts
include all costs incurred in connection with and directly for the benefit of ¢lient contracis, including depreciation and ammortization relating to assets used in
connection with providing the services required by client projects. The level of direct costs of contracts muy fluctuate between reporting periods due to a variety of
factors inchiding the amount of pass-through costs we ineur during a period, On those projects where we are responsible for subcontract labor orthird-party
materials and equipment, we reflect the amounts of such items in both revenues and costs (and we refer to such costs as “pass-through costs™). On other projects,
where the client elects to pay for such items directly and we have no associated responsibility for such items, these amounts are not considered pass-through costs
and are, therefore, not reflected in either revenues or costs, To the exient that we incur a significant amount of pass-through costs in a period, our direct cost of
contracts are likely to increase as well.

Pass-through costs decreased $352.2 million, or 11.9%, fom $2.95 billion during fiscal 2014 to $2.60 billion for fiscal 2015, In general, pasg-thtough costs are more
significant on projects that have a higher conient of lield services activities. Pass-
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through costs are generally incurred at & specific point in the lifecyele of 2 project and are highly dependent on the needs of our individual clients and the nature of
the clients’ projects. However, because we have hundreds of projects which start at various tines within a fiscal year, the effect of pass-through costs on the level of
direct costs of contracts can vaty between fiscal years without there being a findamenta] or significant change to the underlying business.

As a percentage of revenues, direct costs of contracts were 83.8% for fiscal 2015, compared to 83.7% for fiscal 2014, Tho relationship between direct costs of
contracts and revenues will Muctuate between reporting periods depending on a variety of [actors including the mixofbusiness during the reporting periods being
compared as well as the level of margins earmed fromthe various types of services provided. Generally speaking, the mote procurerment we do on behalf of our clients
{i.e., where we purchase equipment and materials for use on projects, and/or procure subcontracts in connection with projects} and the more field services revenues
we have relative to technical, professional services revenucs, the highor the ratio will be of dircet costs of contracts 1o revenues. Because revenues from pass-
through costs typically have lower margin rates associated with them, it is not unusual for us to experience an increase or decresse in such revenues without
experiencing a corresponding increase or decrease in our gross margins and operating profit. The ratio of direct costs of contracts to revenucs was flat over the prior
year period.

Selling, general, and administrative (" SG&A™) expenses for fiscal 2015 decreased by $22.9 million, or 1.5%, to $1.52 billion, compared to $1.55 billion for fiscal
2014. The decrease in SGRA expenses was pricmarily due to lower costs siemming from the 2014 Events, which were partially offset by increased costs related to the
2015 Restruciuring. Excluding the effects of the 2015 Restructuring and the 2014 Events, adjusted SG&A expenses for fiscal 2015 decreased $67.4 million, or 4.1%4, to
$1.37 billion from$1.44 billion for the corres ponding period last year.

Net intersst expense for fiscal 2015 increased $10.5 million to $12.2 million from$L.7 milkion in fiscal 2014, Included in net interest cxpensc for fiscal 2014 was the
reversal of $4.1 million of acerued interest expense recorded in connection with income tax Habilities relating to certain contested infemational tax malters which were
favorably resolved during the first quarter of fiscal 2014. Adjusting for this reversal of expense, net interest expense for fiscal 2014 was $5.9 million.

The Company's effective income taxtate for fiscal 2015 declined to 23.5% from 35, 1% in fiscal 2014, The decrease was primarily the result of the $23.1 million, or
$0.18 per share, tax benefit related to the 2015 Intercompany Debt Refinancing discussed eadier, Also contributing to the decrease in the tax rate when compared to
prior year were the benefits realized by other, individually insignificant discrete and non-discrete items realized in the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2015,

Eiseal 2014 Compared to Fiscql 2013

The Conpany’s net carnings decreased $95.0 million, or 22.5%, from $423.1 million for fiscal 2013 to $328.1 million for fiscal 2014. In addition to the effects of the
2014 Restructuring and the acquisition of SKM, the Company’s consolidated results of opetations for fiscal 2014 wete affected by the other 2014 events described
above.

Revenues increased $876.8 million, or 7.4%, from $11.8 billion for fiscal 2013 to $12.7 billion fot fiscal 2014,

Revenues fromelienis operating in the Chemicals and Polymers industries increased $594.2 million, or 24.9%, fom $2.4 billion for fiscal 2013 to $3.0 billion for
fiscal 2014. This increase occurred throughout many of the geographic locations in which we operate. We continued to receive new awards for FEED (front-end
engineering design) and pre-FEED services.

Revenues fromelients operating in the Infrastructure market increased $345.7 miltion, or 34.0%, from §1.0 billion for fiscal 2013 te $1.4 billion for fiscal 2014. SKM
contributed approximately 50.0% of the increase, with the UK. and U.S, legacy operations contributing to the temainder of the increase.

Revenues fromelients operating in the Buildings nmarket increased $95.7 million, or 13.0%, fom $738.4 nillion for fiscal 2013 to $834.1 million for fiscal 2014.
Although SKM was responsible for most of this increase, the Company saw growth in our U.S. and Middle East markets.

Revenues fromclients operating in the Mining and Minerals markets increased $206.3 million, or 20.0%, rom $712.3 million for liscal 2013 to $918.6 million for
fiscal 2014. The increased revenues in 2014 was due primarly to SKM. Globally, our clients in these industries behaved relatively conservatively during fiscal 2014
when it cames to new spend.
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Revenues from clients operating in the Pharmaceutical and Biotechnolegy markets decreased $70.8 million, or 13.5%, fom $523.5 million for fiscal 2013 to $452.7
million for fiscal 2014. The decrease in revenues were due primarily to the normal wind-down and completion of projects, including work on several vaceine plants
located in Notth America.

Revenues fromcelients operating in the Industrial and Other category decreased $141.7 million, or 15.8%, from $899.8 million for fiscal 2013 to $758.0 million for
fiscal 2014, The decrease in revenues was due primarily to decreased activity in the Pulp & Paper market in the U.S, and the High-Technology Manufacturing market
in Irgland,

Direct costs of contracts increased $645.3 million, or 6.5%, from $9.98 billion during fiscal 2013 to $10.62 billion during fiscal 2014. Pass-through costs increased
$330.0 million, or 12.6%, from $2.62 billion during fiscal 2013 to $2.95 billion for fiscal 2014.

As a percentage of revenues, dircet costs of contracts were 83.7% for fiscal 2014, compared to 84.4% for fiscal 2013. The ratio of direct costs of contracts to
revenues over the prior year period decreased, primarily as a result of higher marging in both professional technical services and field services activities and the
acquisition of SKM.

SG&A expenses for fiscal 2014 increased by $372.4 million, or 31.7%, to $1.55 billion, compared to $1.17 billion for fiscal 2013, The mcrease in SG&A expenses
reflects the effects of the 2014 Restructuring discussed above as well as the results of operations of SKM. Also included in SG&A expenses for the current fiscal year
are transaction-related expenses incurred in connection with the SKM acquisition of $5.2 million. Also included in SG&A expenses for fiscal 2014 are due diligence
and other transaction-related costs Incurred in connection with other mergers and acquisition activity.

Net interest expense for fiscal 2014 decreased $5.8 million to $1.7 million from $7.5 million in fiseal 2013. The decrease is related to the reassessment dunng fiscal
2014 of a tax matter invelving one of our international subsidiaties which resolted in the reversal of $8.1 million of accrued interest, offset in part by the net impacts of
the SKM acquisition.

The Company’s consolidated effective income taxrate was 35.1% for fiscal 2014, compared to 33.5% in fiscal 2013, Contributing to the increase as compared io

the prior year was the effect of the 2014 Restructuring. Also contributing to the higher effective taxrate is the stamp duty paid in the first quarter of fiscal 2014 related
to the SKM acquisition.

G LObtigati
The following table sets forth certain infornetion about our contractual obligations as of Qctober 2, 2015 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Fiscal Period

1 Year 1-3 3-5 More than 5
Total or Lesy Years Years Years

Debtobligations . - 8 97198 5 - 13364 8 Co— 8 B3 8 =
Operating leases (a) 933250 152,744 255,860 185,303 338,843
Obligations under defined Ber::eﬁt pension . i C o L S S

plans (b) _ : 416725 45930 97445 105,397 . 167953
Obligations under nongualificd deferred '

compensation plans (c) 136,378 16,023 33,994 36,767 49,594
Purchase obligations {d) © 1473546 1,473,546 — — ) —
Interest (e) 25,525 7,685 14,764 3,076 —

Total . $ 358322 8 1709292 § 402063 - § 9ISATT . § 556,390 :

(a) Assumes the Company will muke the end of ease termresidual value guarantee payment of $62.4 million in 2025 with respect to the fease of an office

building in Houston, Texas. Please refer to Nole 10—Commnitments and Contingencies, and Derivative Financial Instruments of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10K

(b} Assumes that future contributions will be consistent with amounts projected te be contributed in fiscal 2016, allowing for centain growth based on rates of
inflation and salary increases, but lingited to the amount recorded as of October 2, 2015, Actual contributions will depend on a variety of factors, including
amounts required by local laws and regulations, and other funding requirerments.
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(c} Assumes that future payments will be consistent with amounts paid in fiscal 2013, allowing for certain growth, Due to the nonqualified nature of the plans,
and the fct that benefits are based in part on years of service, the payments included in the schedule were limited to the arnount recorded as of October 2,
2015,

() Represents those liabilities estimated to be under firm contractual commitments as of October 2, 2015; primarily accounts payable and acerued payroll,

() Determined based on borrowings outstanding at the end of fiscal 2015 using the interest rates in effect at that time and, for our outstanding long term

debt, concluding with the expiration date of the 2014 Facility, as defined below.
Backlog

Backlog represents the total dollar amount of revenues we expect to record in the future as a result of performing work under contracts that have been
awarded to us. We include in backlog the entire value of contracts at the time the contracts arc awarded to us or when we have otherwise been authorized by the
clignt Lo proceed with the services requited by the contracts. With respect to O&M contracts, however, we include in backlog the amount of revenues we expect o
receive for only one succeeding year, regardless of the remaining [life of the contract. For national govemment programs {other than U.S. federal O&M contracts), our
policy is to mclude in backlog the full contract award, whether funded or unfunded, excluding option periods, In accordance with industry practice, substantially alt
of our contracts are subject to canceflation or termination at the discretion of the client. In a situation whers a client terminates a contract, we would ordinarily be
entitled to receive payment for wotk petformed up to the date oftetmination and, in certain instances, we may be entitled to allowable termination and cancellation
costs. [n addition, it is not unusual for clients to change the scope of services required by the contract over the life of the project. Accordingly, backlog can fluctuate
fromone reporting peviod to the next due to the timing of when new contracts are added to backlog and when the contract revenue is recognized in our consolidated
financial statements, Many of our canitacts requite us to provide servieos that span over a number of fiscal quarters (and soretimes over liscal years),

Please refer to ltem LA—Risk Factors, above, for a discussion of other factors that nay cause backlog to ultimately convart into revenues at different
amounts.

The following table summanizes our backlog for cach of the last three fiscal years (in millions):

AL 2014 2013
Technical professional services $ 11,6924 % 12,6070 § L1184
Field services 7,114.2 5,773.0 6,099.5
Tatal $ 18,8066 $ 13,380 § 17,2179

Qur backlog at October 2, 2018 incteased by $04 billion, or 2.3%, to $18.8 billion from $18.4 billicn at September 26, 2014. The increase in backlog from
September 26, 2014 to Getober 2, 2015 was due primarily 1o new awards fromclients operating in the Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals industries, off-set in part by an
approximate $600 million reduction due to foreign exchange.

Backlog relating to wotk to be performed either directly or indirectly for the U.S. federal govemment and its agencies totaled agproximatcly $4.6 billion (or
24.6% of total backlog), $4.4 billion (or 23.9% of total backlog}, and $3.9 billion (or 22.9% of total backlog) at Octeber 2, 2015, September 26, 2014, and September 27,
2013, respectively. Most of our federal contracts require that services be provided bayond one year, In genoral, these contracts must be funded annually (ie., the
amounts to be spent under the contract st be appropriated by the U.S, Congress to the procuring agency, and then the agency must allot these surms to the
specific contracts).

We estimate that approximately 7.3 billion, or 38.6%, of total backlog at October 2, 2015 will be realized as revenucs within the next fiscal year.

Effects of Inflation

The effects of inflation on our business is discussed in bem LA—Risk Factors, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

At October 2, 2015, our primary sources of liquidity consisted of $460.9 million of cash and cash equivalents and $1,013.1 million of available borrowing
capacity under aur $1.60 bilken revolving credit facility (the “2014 Facility™).
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Additional information regarding the 2014 Facility is set forth in Note 5 - Borrowings in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page Fel of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. We finance as nuch of our operations and growth as possible through cash generated by our operations.

During fiscal 2015, ourcash and cash equivalents decreased by $271.8 million from $732.6 million at Septetrber 26, 2014 to $460.9 million at October 2, 2015,
This compares to a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $523.8 millien during the corresponding period last year. During fiscal 2015, we cxperienced net cash
inflows of $484.6 million from operating activities offset by outflows of $553.3 million ftom financing activities, $96.1 million from investing activities, and $106.9
million from the effects of exchange rate changes.

Operations provided net cash of $484.6 million during fiscal 2015. This compares to net cash inflows of $721.7 million and $448.5 million during fiscal 2014
and 2013, respectively, The $237.1 million decrease in cash provided by operations in fiscal 2015 as compared to fiscal 2014 was due primarily fo a $264.6 million
unfavorable change in the Company's working capital accounts and a $23.2 million decrease in net eamings attributablk to the Group partially offset by a $31.2 million
change related to the Company's defined benefit pension plans.

Because such a high percentage of our revenues are earned on cost-phus type contracts, and due to the significance of revenues relating to pass-through
costs, most of the costs we incur are included in invoices we send to clients. Although we continnally monitor our accounts receivable, we manage the operating
cash flows of the Company by managing the working capital accounts in total, rather than by the individual elsments. The primary elements of the Company’s
wotking capital accounts are accounts receivable, acccunts payable, and billings in excess of cost. Accounts payable consists of obligations to third parties relating
prirnarily to costs incurred for projects which are generally billable to clients. Accounts receivable consist of billings to vur clients — a substantial portion of which is
for project-related costs. Billings in excess of cost consist of billings to and payments fromour clients for costs yet to be incurred.

This relationship between revenues and costs, and between receivables and payables is wnique to our industry, and facilitates review of our liguidity at the
total working capital level. The changes in cash flows relating to our working capital accounts were due simply o the timing of cash receipts and payments within our
working capital accounts and is not indicative of any known trend or fundamental change to the underlying business. We still continue to experience delays in
certain paynents and have seen an increase in the Jength of payment tenrs with certain customers. We believe that this situation does not present a significant risk
to the Company's cash flows, We believe the risk of not collecting substantially all of the Company's cutstanding receivables is remote. Though the Commpany
provides services in a number of countries outside the U.8., we believe our credit risk is not significant. Qur private sector customers are comprised principally of
large, well known, and well established muiti-national companies. Our government customers are conprised of national, state, and local agencies located principally in
the U.S. and the UK. We have not historically experienced significant collection issues with either of our governmental or non-govemnmental customers.

We used $96.1 million of cash and cash equivalents for investing activities during fiscal 20t5. This cornpares to $1.5 billion and $157.1 million during fiscal
2014 and 2013, respectively. This decrease was primarily the result of minimal acquis ition activity in fiscal 2015 as compared to the Company's acquisition of SKM for
$1.2 billion ($1.1 billion net of cash acquired) in fiscal 2014, There was also inimal acquisition activily in fiscal 2013,

Additions to property and equipment totaled $88.4 million, $132.1 million, and $127.3 million for fiscal years 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively. Included in
fiscal 2015 and 2014 activity are significant expenditures for leasehold inprovements relating prismarily to the conselidation of certain office space, expansion of office
space and relocations of certain office space, all occurring in a number cf locations.

Our financing activities resulted in net cash outflows of $553.3 million during fiscal 2015 as compared 1o net cash inflows of $304.9 million and net cagh
outflows of $59.7 million during fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively. The $858.2 million in incremental cash outflows during fiscal 2015 as compared to the previous year
was due pritnarily to (i) a $502.7 million increase in cash used to pay-offlongstermdebt during fiscal 2015, combined with {if) $343.9 million used to repurchase shares
of Company common stock (discussed in further detail in Part I, Hem 5 of this Annual Report on Fonn 10-K). Substantially all of the amounts borrowed during fiscal
2014 under our 2014 Facility was used to fund the Company's business acquisitions completed last year.

The Company had $460.9 million of eash and short termequivalents at October 2, 2015, Of this amount, approximately $99.9 million was held ja the U.S. and $361.0

million was lield outside of the U.S,, primarily in Canada, the UK., and the Burozone. Other than the tax cost of repatriating fimds held outside the U.S. to the U.S,
(see Note 9—fncome
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Taxes of Notes to Congolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 ofthis Annual Report on Form 10-K), there ate ne impediments to repatriating these
funds to the U.S.

The total amount utilized under the 2014 Facility at Qctober 2, 2015 was $586.9 million ($584.4 million in the formof direct borrowings and $2.5 million utilized
in the form of letters of credit), Please refer to Note 5——Borrowings of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for additional information regarding the 2012 facility and the 2014 Facilicy,

We believe we have adequate liquidity and capital resources to fund our operations, support our acquisition strategy, and scrvice our debt for the next
twelve imonths. We had $460.9 million in cash and cash equivalents at October 2, 2015, compared to $732.6 million at September 26, 2014. Our consolidated working
capital position at October 2, 2015 was $1.3 biflion; a decrease ol $240.4 million from Septenber 26, 2014

Additionally, thore was $1.0 billion of borrowing capacity available at October 2, 2015 under the 2014 Facility. We believe that the renaining capacity, terms
and conditions of our revolving credit facility, combined with cash on-hand and the other committed and uncommitted facilities we have in place, are adequate for our
working capital and general business requirenents.

The Company had $236.4 million of letters of credit outstanding at October 2, 2015. OF this anount, $2.5 million were issued under the 2014 Facility and
$233.9 million were issued under separate, committed and uncormmitted letter-of-credit facilities.

Off-Balance Sheet Arpangements

We arc party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet tisk in the formof guarantecs not reilected In our balance sheet that arise in the nomal course
of business. However, such off-balance sheet arrangerments are not reasonably likely to have an offect ot our financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of
operations, liquidity, capital expenditures orresources that is material to investors. See Note 10— Commitments and Contingencies, and Derivative Financial
Instrnments of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 ofthis Annual Report on Form 10-K.

New Accounting Pronopncements

Fromtime to time, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB"}issues acconnting standards updates (each being an "ASU") to its Accounting
Standards Codification (" ASC™), which constitutes the primary source of U.S. GAAP. The Company regularly monitors ASUs as they arc issued and considers their
applicability to its business. All ASUs applicable to the Company are adopted by the due date and in the manner prescribed by the FASB. A discussion ofthose
tecently issued ASUs most likely to affect the presentation of the Company's consolidated financial siatements [ollows.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-00-~Revenue fiom Contracts with Customers. The new guidance provided by ASU 2014-09 is intended to remove
inconsistencics and perceived weaknesses in the existing revenue requirerments, provide a trore robust fiamework for addressing revenue issues, improve
carpaability, provide mote useful information and simplify the preparation of financial statements, ASU 2014-09 was initially effective for annual and interim
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, On July 9, 2015 the FASB approved a one year deferal of the effective date of this standard. The revised
effective date for the standard is for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and intetim periods therein, The FASB alse approved changes
allowing for catly adoption of the standard as of the original effective date. The Company continues to evaluate the impact that the new guidance may have on the
consolidated financial statements. :

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03—Simplifving the Presentation of Debi Issuance Costs. ASU 2015-03 was issued to simplify the presentation
of debt issuance costs by requiring such costs to be presented as a deduction fomthe corresponding debt liability. Through this ASU, the FASB intends to make
the presentation of debt issuance costs consistent with the presentation of debt discounts or premiums, The guidance is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after Decermber 15, 2015, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permilted. The Company does not believe the adoption
ofthis ASU will have a material effect on its consolidated financial staterments.

In May 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-07—Disclosures for Inveséments in Certain Enbifies that Caleulate Net Asset Value Per
Share (or ifs Equivalent). ASU 2015-07 rermoves the requirement to categorize within the fair value hierarchy investments for which fair values are estimated using
the net asset value practical expedient provided by
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ASC 820—Fair Value Measurement. Disclosures about investients in certain entities that calculate net asset value per share are limited under ASU 2015-07 to those
investients for which the entity has clocted to estimate the fair value using the net asset value practical expedient. ASU 2015-07 is effective for entities (other than

public business entities) for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, with retrospective application fo all periods presented. Barly application is permitted, The
Company is evaluating the impact of the ASU, but does not expect the impacts to be material to its consolidated financial statements.

Page 53

https:/fwww.last10k.com/sec-filings/52988/0000052988-15-000155.him



Table of Contents
Itein 7A. QUANTITATIVEE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Wa do not enter into derivative financial insteuments for trading, speculation or other purposes that would expose the Conpany to market risk. In the
notmwl course of business, our results of operations are exposed to fsks associated with fluctuations in intetest rates and cumreney exchange tates,

Please refer to the discussion of the 2014 Facility and the 2012 Facility in the liquidity and capital resources discussion in Management's Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Rosults of Operations in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and Note 5 - Borrawings in Notes Lo Consolidated Financial
Staterents beginning on Page F-1 of this Annual report on Form 10-K.

Forei errency Ris

In situations where our operations incur conlract costs in cumencies other than their functioual currency, we attermpt to have a poution of the related
contract revenues denominated in the same cutrencies as the costs. In those situations where revenues and costs are transacted in different currencies, we
sometimes enter inte foreign exchange contracts in order to limit our cxposure to fluctuating foreign currencies, We follow the provisions of ASC815-10 - Derivatives
and Hedging in accounting for our dervative contracts. The Company does not cumrently have exchange rate sensitive instruments that would have a material effect
on cur consolidated financial statements or results of operations.

ftem 8. FINANCTAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The inforoution requirad by this tem 8 s subimitted as a sepatate section beginning on page F-lof this Annval Report on Form [0-K and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 9, CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
Ttem 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCFDURES

Bxlyati  Disc] Control 1P fnres
The Company’s management, with the participation of its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the

Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as defined by Rule 13a-15(2) of the Securities Bxchange Act 0f 1934, ag amended {the “Exchange Act™) as of

QOctober 2, 2015, the end of the peried covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Bvaluation Date™). Based on that evaluation, the Chiel Executive Officer and

Chicf Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the Bvaluation Date.

IEnagement’s Annual Report on Ints i

Management is respensible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal controls over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) underthe
Exchange Act. Management, with the participation of its Chicf Exeeutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has assessed the effectiveness of the Conpany’s intemal
control over [inaneial reporting as of the Evaluation Date based on the framework established in “fiternal Control—Integrated Framework ”, issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management has concluded that the Conpany’s intemal controls
over financial reporting as of the Evaluation Date were effective, The Company’s independent registered public accounting firmy, Brust & Young LLP, has issued an
attestation repoit on the Conpany’s intemal eontrol over financial reporting which appears later in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Infernal Control

There were no changes in the Company’s internal contmol over financial reporting during the Conpany’s fiscal quarter ended October 2, 2015, that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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Limitations on Fffeetiveness of Controlg

The Company's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that its disclosure controls and procedures
or its systemofinternal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all emors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed or operated, can
provide only reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the system of internal control are met, The design of the Conpany’s control system
reflects the fact that there are resource constraints, and that the benefits of such control system nust be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the
inhereni limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control failures and instances of fraud, if'any, within the
Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur
because of sitmple error or mistake, Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the intentional acts of individuals, by collusion of two or more people, or by
management overide of the controls. The design of any system of controls is alse based in part on cerfain assunptions about the likelihood of future events, and
there can be no assurance that the design of any particular control will always succeed in achieving its ebjective under all potential future conditions.

Item 9B, OTHER INFORMATION

On November [9, 2015, the Hurmnn Resource and Conpensation Committes of the Board of Directors ofthe Company {the "Conpensation Committee")
approved a new Management Incentive Plan (the “Managemment Incentive Plan™), The Management Incentive Plan replaces the Company's Incentive Bonus Plan
beginning in fiscal 2016, Specific measures and targets will be assigned to each participant based on their respective role in the organization. Select officers and
managers of the Conpany are eligible to participate in the new Management Incentive Plan, and the Chief Executive Officer automatically participates. Goals under
the Management Incentive Plan will be defined at the corporate and business unit level.

Also on Novenber 19, 2015, the Compensation Committee approved a new formofrestricted stock unit agreement under the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.
1999 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated. This new formofaward agreement provides for the award of performance-based restricted stock units based on
growth in eamings per share from fiscal year to fiscal year (the " Award Agreement), This metric considers the Company’s net earnings as a factor in the award, and
divides such net earnings by the weighted average number of shares of the Company’s conmon stock outstanding during each fiscal year to reflect the growth in
earnings per share frorn fiscal yearto fiscal year,

The loregaing sumimaries do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entivety by reference to the terms of the Management Incentive Plan and
the Award Agreement, copies of which are filed herewith as Exhibits 10.43 and 1045, and are incorporated herein by reference.
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PART N1

Ttem 10. BIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Dircetors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons

The informution required by Paragraph (a), and Paragraphs (c) through (g) of iem401 of Regulation S-K (except for information required by Paragmph
(c) of that Itemto the extent the required information pertains to our execntive ollicers) and Item 405 of Regulation S-K is set forth under the captions “The Board of
Directots and its Conunittees - Notminees,” “The Board of Directors and its Committees - Continuing Directors,” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close ofour fiscal year and is
incorporated herein by reference, Tho information required by Paragraph (b) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K., as well a3 the information required by Paragraph (g) of
that Item to the extent the required information pertains to our executive officers, is sed forth in Part L, Iten: 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading
“Bxgcutive Cfficers of the Registrant.”

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics for our chief exccutive, chief financial, and principal accounting officers; a code of business cenduct and ethics for
menbers of our Board of Directors; and cotporate governance guidelines, The full text ofthe codes of ethics and comporate governance guidelings is available at our
website at www.jacobs.com In the event we make any amendment to, or grani any waiver from, a provision of the code of ethics that applies to the principal
exacutive officer, principal financial officer or principal aceounting officer that requires disclosure under applicable SEC rules, we will disclose such amendment or
waiver and the reasons therefor on our website, We will provide any person without chatge a copy of any of the aforementioned codes ofethics upon receipt ofa
wiitten request. Requests shoukd be addressed to: Jacabs Ingineering Group Inc., 155 S, North Lake Avenue, Pasadena, California 91101, Attention: Corporate
Sccrefary.

Corporate Gowernance

The infonmation required by Items 407(d)(4) and (d)(5) of Regulation S-K is set forth under the caption *The Beard of Directors and its Commiitees - Committecs
ofthe Beard of Directors - Audit Committee” in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuatt to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of
our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by relerence.

Item11. EXFCUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item s set forth under the captions “The Board of Directors and its Committees - Compensation of Directors for Fiscal
2015, “The Board of Directors and its Committees - Comimittees of the Board of Direciors - Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,”
“Compensation Committee Report,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” and “Exccutive Compensation™ in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of our fiscal yearand is incomporated hereln by reference.
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Ttem 12, STCURITY OWNERS HIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICTAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED S TOCKHOLDFR MATTERS
urities Authorized for Is ce Under i ompensation Pl

The following table presents certain information about our equity compensation plans as of October 2, 2015:

Column A Column B Column C
Murmler of sceuritics to be Mumber of securitics remaining
issued upon Weighted- average available for futwre isswnce wider equity
exeroise o outstanding exercise price of compensation
options, outstanding options, plans (exchuding seeirities reflected in
Plan Category werrants, and cights warrants, and rights Column A)
Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders (a) ) 4072707 5 46.06 7:144.884
Equity compensation plans not approved by shareholders — —_ —_
Tatal ) 4072707 § 46.06 7,144,884
(@) The number in Colurm A excludes purchase rights accruing under our two, broad-based, shareholder-approved employcee stock purchase plans: The

Jacobs Engingering Group Inc, 1989 Erployee Stock Purchase Plan (the * 1989 ESPP™), and the Global Employee Stock Purchase Plan {the “GESPP”),
These plans give enployees the right to purchase shares at an ampunt and price that are not determinable until the end of the specified purchase periods,
which occur monthly. Our shareholders have authorized a total of27.8 million shares of common stock to be issued through the 1989 ESPP and the GESPP.
Fromthe inception of the 1989 ESPP and the GESPP through October 2, 2015, a tetal of 26.5 million shares have been isgued, leaving 1.3 million shares of
cotnmon stock available for future issuance at that date.

The information required by Item 403 of Regulation S-K is set forth under the caption “Security Ownership” in our definitive proxy statement to be filed
with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days afier the close of cur fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

Ttem 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Itemis set forth under the captions “The Board of Directors and its Comimittees - Independence of Directors,” “The
Board of Directors and its Cotnmiftees - Cormnittees of the Board of Directors,” and “Cerfain Relationships and Related Transactions™ in our definitive prosy
statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 144 within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

Ttem 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this [tem is set forth under the captions “Report of the Audit Committee”™ and “Audit and Non-Audit Fees™ in our definitive
proxy statement to be filed with the SBC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART 1V
Hem15, EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMINT SCHEDULES

(a} Docwnents filed as part of this repont:

{1} The Company's Consolidated Financtal Statements at October 2, 2015 and Seplember 26, 2014 and for each of the three years in the period
ended October 2, 2015, Scptember 26, 2014 and September 28, 2012 and the notes thereto, together with the report of the independent
auditers on those Consolidated Financial Statements are hereby filed as part of this report, beginning on page F-1.

(2 Financial staterment schedules — no financial statement schedules are presented as the required information is either not applicable, or is
included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

3 See Pxhibits and Endex to Exhibits, below,
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Bxhibits and Indexto Bshibits:

21

22

31

32

41

4.2

10.1#

10.2#

10.3#

10.4#

10,54

10u6#

1074

10.8#

Merger Implementation Deed between Sinclair Knight Merz Managetrent Pty Limited and Sinclair Knight Merz Holdings
Limited and Jacobs Bagineering Group Ine. and Jacobs Australia Holdings Corpany Pty. Ltd, dated as of September 8, 2013,
Filed as Exhibit 22 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incerporated herein by reference,

Sales Agreement between Sinclair Knight Merz Management Pty Limited, Sinclair Knight Merz Holdings Limited, Tacobs
Engineering Group Inc. and Jacobs Australia Holdings Company Pty, Ltd., dated as of December 13, 2013, Filed as Exhibit
2.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fist quarter of fiscal 2014 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, Filed as Bxhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8K on January 28, 2014 and incorporated hetsin by refetence.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant, Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Qurrent Report on Form 8- on July
16, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

See Sections 3 through 18 of Exhibit 3.1,
See Article IT, Seciion 3.03 of Auticle I, Article VI and Section 7.04 of Article VII of Exhibit 3.2,

The Jacebs Engineering Group Inc. Incentive Bonus Plan for Officers and Key Managers as amended and restated on May
22,2014, Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2015 and
incorporated herein by reference,

The Executive Securlty Programof Jacobs Engineering Geoup Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2014 Annual
Repoert on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference,

Amendment to the Bxecutive Security Programof Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., dated December 23, 2008, Filed ns Bxhibit
10.3 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2014 Annual Report on Fonn 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to the Bxecutive Security Programof Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., dated May 31, 2009, Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to
the Registrant’s fiscal 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Croup Inc. 1991 Executive Deferral Plan, effective June 1, 1991, Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s
fiscal 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated hercin by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc, 1993 BExceutive Deferral Plan, effective Decerber 1, 1993, Filed as Exhibit 10,6 to the
Registrant’s fiscal 2012 Annual Report on Form 104K and incomporated herein by reference,

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1995 Executive Deferral Plan, effective January 1, 1995, Filed as Thibit 10.7 {0 the Registrant’s
fiscal 2014 Annual Repert on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference,

Jacobs Engineeting Group Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Deforral Plan, Filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s fiscal
2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated hercin by reference.
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10.12#
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10.14%
10,154
10.1.6#
10.KH
10.18#

10.19#

10.20#

1621

The Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1989 Foployee Stock Purchase Plan, as Armendod and Restated-effective Junuary 22,
2009, Filed as Bxhibil 10.9 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2014 Annual Report on Form 10K and ingorporated herein by reference.

The Jacobs Bnginecring Group Inc. Global Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.1G o the Registrant’s fiscal
2011 Annual Report on Form 10-I and incotporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Eagineering Group Inc, 401(k) Plus Savings Plan and Trust, as Amended and Restated April 1, 2003. Filed as Bxhibit
10.12 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2012 Annual Report on Form: [0-K and incorporated herein by reforence,

Jacobs Engineeting Group Inc, 1999 Stock Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated. Filed as Bxhibit 10,1 to the Registrant’s
Curent Repert on Form 8-K. (File No, 333-157014) on January 28, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference.

Formof Indenmification Agreement enteted into between the Registrant and certain of its officers and directors, Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2012 and incorporuted herein by
reference.

TFormofJacobs Engineering Group Inc. Non-Qualificd Stock Option Agreement. Filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on FormS-8 filed on Janwary 29, 2009 and incorporated herein by reforence.

Formof Jacobs Fngincering Group Inc. Restricted Stock Agrecment, Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2012 and incorporated herein by reference.

Formof Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement. Filed as Bshibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repert on Form 10-Q for
the second quarter of fiscal 2812 and incorporated herein by reference.

Formofl Restricted Stock Awnrd Agreement, Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on June |,
2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

Jacohs Engincering Group Inc. 1999 Outside Director Stock Plan, as Amended and Restated. Filed as Fxhibit 10.21 to the
Registiant’s fiscal 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference,

Fonnof Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Performance Shares - Net Earnings Growth 2013 Award), Filed as Bxhibit
10:3 to the Registtant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2013 and incorpotated herein by
refcrence,

Formof Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement. (Performance Shares - TSR 2013 Award). Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2013 and incorporated herein by reference.

Credit Agreement dated as of March 29, 2012 among Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and certain ofits subsidiaries as
borrowers, and the Bank of America, NLA, (as Administrative Agent); BNP Paribas, and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (as Co-
Syndication Agents); Union Bank, N.A. (as Docunntation Agent); Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (as
Sole Book Manager); and Menrili Lynch, Pierce, Fenmer & Sniith Incotporated, BNP Paribas Securities Cotp, and Wells Fargo
Securities, L1.C (as Joint Lead Anangers). Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
second quarter of fiscal 2012 and incorporated herein by reterence.
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Employment agreement between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and Michael Tyler dated May 28, 2013, Filed as Exhibit 10,2
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2013 and incorporated herein by referencs.

Retirenent Agreement dated April 14, 2014 between the Registrant and Thomas R, Hammond., Filed as Exhibit 1C.1 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Repert on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2014 and incosporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 2005 Executive Deferral Plan, cffcctive January 1, 2005. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

Agreemment between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and Noel G Watson dated July 1,2010. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report en Form 10- fer the third quarter of fiscal 2010 and incorporated herein by reference,

Consulting Agreement between Jacabs Engineering Group Inc, and Noel G Watson dated July 1, 2010, Filed as BExhibit 15,2
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

Anendment No, 1to Consulting Agreement between the Registrant and Noel G Watson dated July 1, 2011, Filed as Exhibit
10.1 to the Registmnt’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2011 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Amendment No. 2 to Consulting Agreement between the Registrant and Nocl G Watson dated July 1, 2013. Filed a3 Exhibit
10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repost on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2013 and incorporated herein by
reference.

TermLoan Agreement dated Januvary 27, 2011 between Jacobs Engineering UK, Limited and Royal Bank of Scotland Finance
{Ireland), Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repott on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2011 and
incotporated herein by reference.

Senior Term Loan Facility dated January 26, 2011 between Jacobs Nederland B.V. and BNP Paribas. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to
the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

Senior TermLoan Facility dated January 26, 2011 between Jacobs Engincering UK. Limited and Bank of America, N.A.,
London Branch. Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quartetly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 201 1
and incorporated herein by reference.

Senior Term Loan Facility dated January 26, 2011 between Jacobs Australia Pty Limited and Bank of America, NA.,
Australian Branch. Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Quasterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal
2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

Fomn of Guaranty among certain subsidiaries of the Registrant and Royal Bank of Scotland Finance (Irclancl), BNP Paribas,
Bank of Anerica, NA., Lenden Branch, and Bank of America, N.A ., Australian Branch, Filed as Bshibit §0.5 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 201 | and incomporated herein by reference.

Eoployment Agreement dated December 23, 2010 between the Registrant and Gary Mandel. Filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the
Registrant's Quatterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quartet of fiscal 2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of February 7, 2014 ammong Jacobs Engineering Group Ine. and certain of
its subsidiaries as borrowers, and the Bank of America, N.A. (as Administrative Agent); Bank of America, N.A., BNP Paribas,
and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (as Co-Syndication Agenis); The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, LTD, and TD Bank, N.A. (as
Co-Documentation Agents); Meunill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (as Sole Book Manager); and Merrill Lynch,
Dierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, BNP Paribas Securities Cotp, and Wells Fargo Securities, LTC (as Joint Lead
Arrangers). Filed as Exhibit 10,1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Foxm 8-K on February 11, 2014 and incorporated
herein by reference.
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Formof Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreenent (Performance Shares - Net Earnings Growth - 2014 Award). Filed as Exhibit
{0.1 to the Registrunt’s Quarierly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2014 and incorporated herein by
referonce.

Formof Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Perfornance Shares - TSR - 2014 Award). Filed as Bxhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the thied quarter of fiscal 2014 and incorperated herein by reference.

Amendment No. 3 to Consulting A greement between the Registrant and Neel G. Watson dated July 1, 2014, Filed as Exhibit
1040 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incerporated herein by reference.

Offer Letter by and between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and Kevin C. Berryman, effective November (2, 2014, Filed as
Exhibit 99.1 to Amendment No. ! to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A on November 17, 2014 and incorperated
herein by reforence,

Transition Agreement with Craig L. Martin, dated as of Decerrber 19, 2014. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Repott on Form §-K on Decembor 23, 2014 and incorporated herein by reforence.

Letter Agreement with Noel G Watson, dated as oFFebruary 25, 2015. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K on March 2, 2015 and incorporated horein by reference,

Amendment Agreemont, dated as of March 4, 2015, among Jacobs Engincering Group, Inc., certain subsidiaries thereof party
thereto, each lender party thereto, each issuer of letters of credit party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as Adminisirative
Agent and Swing Line Lender. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Curmrent Report on Forn 8K on March 3, 2015 and
incorporated herein by reference. :

Form ol Transition Agreement, Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report en Form 10-Q for the second quarter
of fiscal 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

Fonm of Stock Option Agreement (December 2014 grants ), Filed as Bxhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quartterly Repont on Form
10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

Offer Letter with Steven J. Demeirion, dated as of July 10, 2015. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Repont on
Form 8K on July 16,2015 and incerporated herein by reference.

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Porm 10-Q for
the third quarter of fiscal 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Performance Shares - Net Farnings Growth). Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) for the third quatter of fiscal 2015 and incorporated herain by reference.

Separation Agreement with Santo Rizzuto dated October 16, 2015. Filed as Exhibit 1.1 to the Registrant’s Cument Repott on
Form 8-K on October 22, 2015.

Separation Agreement with Cora Canmody, effective September 15, 2015.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Management Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated, effective MNoverrber 19, 2015,
Formof Restricted Stock Agreement (awarded pursuant to the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (awarded pursuant to the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan).

Formof Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares - Earnings Per Share Growih),

Formof Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Petformance Shares - TSR),

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Cash Settled Non-US Enployees),
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1id.56 Form of Nonqualitied Stock Option Agreement (1999 Stock Incentive Plan).
121, List of Subsidiaries of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.
123. Consent of Emst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
1311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
131.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
1321 Centification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 US.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
1322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
195, Mine Safety Disclosure,
TI0LINS XBRL Instance Docunent
+101.SCH XBRLTamnomy Extension Schema Document
1101.CAL XBRL Taxcnomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docurment
TIOLDEF XBRL Taxcnomy Extensien Definition Linkbase Document
T10LLAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
1101 PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
+ Being filed herewith.
# Management confract ot compensatory plan ﬁr arrangement,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant 10 the requitements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalt' by the undersigned, thersunto duly authorized.

JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC.
Dated: /8/ Steven J. Denetrion
Steven J. Denetriou
President, Chicf Executive Officer, and Director (Principal
Brxecutive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Eschange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

November 23, 2015 By:
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Signature Title Date,
5/ Steven J, Denetrion P[?;:::&TEP%;:?]E:E E:lg;‘;:i\?eﬁ‘g;ci?;i November 23, 2015
Steven J. Demetrion
S/ Noel G Watson Chairman of the Board November 23, 2015
Noel G Watsen
/8 Joseph R. Bronson Directot MNovember 23, 2015
Joseph R. Bronson
{8/ John F. Coyne Director Movember 23, 2015
Jehn F, Coyne .
Director November 23, 2015
Juan Jose Suarez Coppel
5/ Robert C. Davidson, Ir. Director November 23, 2015
Robert C. Davidsen, Jr.
/5/ Ralph E. Ebethart Director Noverber 23, 2015
Ralph E. Boerhart
S/ Edward V., Fritzky Director Noverber 23, 2013
Edward V. Fritzky
7S/ Dawne S, Hickton Director MNovember 23, 2015
Dawne S. Hickton
/8/ Linda Fayne Levinson Dircctor November 23, 2015
Linda Fayne Levinson
8/ Peter I Robertson Director November 23, 2015
Peter I. Robertsen
/8 Christopher M.T. Thempscn Director November 23, 2015

Christopher M.T. Thompson

Executive Vice Prosident,
Chief Financial Officer
1S/ Kevin C, Bemyman (Principal Financial Officer) Novenber23, 2015
Kevin C. Benyman

Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
8/ Geofftey P. Sanders (Principal Accounting Officer) Novenber 23, 2015
Geolfiey P. Sanders
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ASSFETS
Current Assets:
Cashand cash equivalents
Receivables
Deferred incomne tages
Prepaid expenses end other current assets
Total current assets .
Property, Equiprhcnt, and Improvements, Net
Other Noncument Assets:
Goeodwill
Intangibles
Miscellancous
Total other noncurent assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ BQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Notes payralﬂe

Accounts payable

Avcrued liabilities

_Billings in excess of costs

" Tatalcurrent lizbilities
Long-term Debt
Other Deferred Liabilities
Commitments and Contingencies
Ktockholders® Equity:

Capital stock:

JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thous ands, except share information)
At October 2, 2015 and September 26,2014

Pretened stock, $1 par valug, nuthofized—l,ﬂbﬂ;ﬂ()ﬂ shares; issned and -0utstandi11‘g.——116ne
Common stock, §1 par value, authorized—240,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding—
123,152,966 shares and 131,752,768 shares, res pectively

Additional paid-in capitai
Retained earnings
Accunmlated other comprehensive loss
Total Jacabs stockholders’ equity
Nencontrolling interests
Total Gronp stockholders® equity

See the acconpanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterments,

F-3

215 2014

3 460859 § TIGHT
2,548,743 2,867,555

166,208 169,893

113076 121,976

3,282,976 3,802,071

131,238 456797

3048778 3026340

353419 440,192

719,515 © 638250

428702 4,104,794

$ 7,785926  $ 8,453,659
$ 13364 % 36732
566,866 622,875

1,090,985 1,279,556 |

309951 410,683

1,981,166 2,349,846

584,434 764,075

263,868 34,078

123,153 131,753

L3144 1173858

1496212 3,527,193

“EA764) (363,549)'

4291743 4,469,255

w713 36,405

4,356,458 3,505,660

3 1785926 $ 8,453,659
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF TARNINGS
For the Fiscal Years IEnded Octeber 2, 2015, September 26, 2014, and September 27, 2013

Rﬂvenues
Costs and Fxpenses:
Direct costs of contracts
Sellmg, geneml and admmls tratlve expenses
Operating Profit
Gther Income (Expense): .
Interest income
Interest expense
Cain on sale of intellectual praperty
Miscellaneous income {expense), net
Total otheri NCorme (cxpcns c)ynel
Eammgs Before Tamq
Tncome Tax’ Expcnse
Net Eamings of the Group
Net Eamings Attrbutable to Non‘con‘trcf]liﬁg Thterests
Net E‘ammgs Attributable to Jacobs
Net Eammgs Per Shate:
Basic
‘Diluted

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In theus ands, except per share information)

For the Fiscal Years Inded October 2, 2015, September 26, 201 4, and September 27, 2013

Net Famings of thie Group

Other Cénpwhensive Loss:
Foreign curency translition adjustroents
Cﬁangein i)ensioh Iis;bilify o
Gainson cash flowhedges:

Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income Before Income Taxes

Ineowe TaxBeirefit Grpense); '
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Chang.t.: i penision ﬁabiljly
Losses on cash flow hedg,es

Total Tiscotne TaxBenefit (Expense)

Net OtherComprehens ive Loss

Net. Cnn-prehenswe Income ofthe Gmup o

Net Comprehensive Income Attributable to Noncontrollmg Iuterests

Total: Compt'ehenswe Incnme Atmbutable e Jacobs

2015 2014 2013
121148352 § 12,695,157 3 11818376
©(10,146,494) {10,621,373) (9,976,057)
(1,522,811 (1,545,716) (L,173,310)
445,577 528,068 668,979 -
7253 9,603 5,395
(19,503) (11,437) {12,906)
— 12,147 R
(3,149) 3,695 80
{15,390) 14,098 - (7431)
430,137 542,166 661,548
(101,255 (190,054 . (221,366,
328382 352,112 340,182
@5y C(24,004) {17,689,
302971 § 5108 5 423,093
242 % 251 § 327
240§ 248§ 323

2015 2014 2013
328887 § 352,112 % 7 Mp182
- (136,168) (36 (23,704
13,208 (15,303) 4,496
2949 o 46T
(100,011) (47,597) (17,741
— 3,250 —
{438y (4562) 3040y
(768) 513) (550)
(1,.204) " {1L525) {4499y
{161,215) (59.422) (22.240)
2I66T 202,690 41702
25911) (24,004) (17,089)
20175 § 268,686 § 400,853 -

Sce the acconpanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Staiements including the Company's note on Other Conprehensive Income for a presentation of amounts

reclassified to net income during the period
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® FQUITY

For the Fiseal Years Fuded October 2, 2015, September 26, 2014, and September 27,2013

(In thous ands)
Accomilated Total Total
Other Comp- Jacols Growp
Additional rchensive Sack- Non- Sack=
Cominon Paickin Retained Tneoms holdors controlling holders’
) ) ) Stock Capital Earnings (Loss} Equity Inieresis Fity
Bakances a¢ Septentber 28, 2012 $ 129936 5. 953983 B 2900041 & (WLBSD § 57247 % 36416 5 3,758,889
Mot carnings — — 423,003 - 423,093 17,089 440,182 )
Forsign-ourrency translation adjestiments e L . 22,704) 23,704 - - (;_-3,'704)'E
Pension liability, net of deferred b
cxpense of $3,949 — — — 547 547 — 541
Gain on derivatives, net-of deferred tax :
expense of $550 — — — 917 917 — 97,
Nonconlrelling interest acquired /
consolidted — 11,087 — — 1087 (10293 794
Distribu_tions to noncartiralling interests — — — — — T (7974)!
[ssuances of equity securities, net of
(k_zf‘er!‘ec_l_lax expense of $3,_l 1 1_ 2,864 137,592 — — 140,456 — ) 140,4576 )
Repurchascs of eqity secwities {L161) {15,078) (42,573) — (61772).. — {67
Bgl:}negs at September 27; 2013 131,639 1,084,624 3,300,961 (304,127) 4,213,097 35238 . ‘4,24_8,33757 )
et carninigs R T = _ 328,108 — 328,108 24,004, 352,142
Toreign cuwrcnoy translation
adiistrments, net of deforred tax benefit
of $3,230 - - — — (30,066) (30.066) — (30,066)
Pension liability, net of deferred tax : R
expense of §14,562 _ _ — — — (29,865) (29.365) — {29,865).
Ghin on derivatives, net of doferred tax
expense of $513 — — — 509 509 — 509
Noncoritrolling interest acquired: . : ] :
cansolidsed 7 — 4779 {15,704 — (13,925) (17,720 (28,649)
Distribations to nencontrolling interests — — (968) —_ (968) (5,113) (6,081)
Tssuances of equity sectritics, nct of : S : o
deferred tax expense.of $1,264 - 2,254 ; 1$4,953 - — — 117,207 — 117,207 ;
Repuwchases of equity securities (2,140 {30,493) {85,204 — {117,842 - (117,842}
Balances at Septembier 26, 2014 131,753 1,173,858 3,527,193 (363,549) FA60.255 364405 4,505,660 °
Det earnings —_ — 02971 — 302971 25911 328882
Foreign carrency translation adistments = - - (136,168) © (136,168) — (136,168),
Pension liability, net of deferred tax
expensc of $438 — — — 32,770 32,770 ] — 32,770 )
Gain on derivatives, net of deforred tax i e ;
expense of $766 - . — — — 2,183 - 2,183 — 2183 ;
Noncontrolling interest acquired /
consolidated — — (9,709 — {5,709) 9,627 (82)
Digtributionsto nencentrolling inlerests — — _ — e (7,230% Co(7,230,
Issuances of equity securities, net of
deferred tax expense of $10,332 1,590 80,801 — — 82391 — 82391
Repurehases of equity seourities (10,090) (LI7.513) e T - 1 s o (451,948}
Balances at October 2, 2015 5 123,153 § L137,144 & 3496212 § d464,764)  § 4,291,745 % 64713 § 4356458

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS
For the Fiscal Years Ended October 2, 2015, September 26, 2014, and Septomber 27,2013

(In thousands)
. 2015 2014 2013
Cash Flows fromQOperating Activities:
Net earnings attributable to the Group $ 328882 % 352,112 % 440,182
Adjustments to reconcilenet camings to net eash flows frombperafions: C - ' ' oo
Depreciation and amortization:
Property, equipment ard improvenzents : N 99,924 OS2 . 69880
Intangible assets 49,368 46,820 28,985
Loss on sale of business ' : 2509 ' = e
Gain on sale of intellectual property — (12,147 —
Stock based conmpensation 7 ._ . . 41,4'12 ) 43400 ’ 39,518
Taxdeficiency (benefit) fromstock based compensation (1,237) 1,344 3213
Equity in ¢amings of investees ' ' 5483 C (839 C 4140
Change in penston plan obligaticns (5,980 (37.218) (8,714
Changein deferred conpensation plans ~ : (32 gos {8915y’
(Gains) Losses on disposals of assets, net 30,985 (4,668) 519
Changes in a_-sseis and liabilities, a_)&:lud_in§ the effects of businesses acc.luin;d-: N . o ) ' ' o T ) !
Receivables 172,958 107,944 {234,804)
Prepaid expenses. and othesument ésscts '. ) ) ] : L - . - ‘ o 6644 (7,217) ) . €] 5;398)'.
Agcounts payable : (28,943) 108,241 82,380
Accrued liabilities ' . (120,847) 2,172y (18,21),
Billings in excess of costs (52,441) 29,833 84,043
Income taxes payable _ o (22,685 (17,373 (12,245)
Deferred income taxes @BLITH 30,799 2,711
Other deterred liabilities ) . . : {15,755 3,925 (2,199)
Deferred gain on synthetic lease transaction 23,343 — —
Change in long-term fecsivables o _ . — 2,828 15815
Long-term insurance prepayment — {17411 —
Other, net ' _ ' ' ' 4962 9,740 . (3,059
Net cash provided by operating activities 484,572 721,716 448,516
Cash Flows fiom Tnvesting Activities:
Additions to property, equipment, and improvements (88,404) (132,146) {127,270)
Disposals of property, equipment, and 'inq}mvelmms ‘ ' ) 369 10,414 4,276
Change in cash related to consclidation of joint ventures — — 5,344
" Purchases ofinvestments _ - o — ' (25,137) {15)
Sales of investments 13 58 11
Sale ofjntellectual property 12,371 S =
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (8,101} (1,384,342) (39,429)
Net cash used for investing ‘ao’ti\'si'ties . : ) ' £96,123) - {1,518,782) (157,083)

See the accompanying Noetes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JACOBS ENGINFFRING GROUP INC. AN} SUBS IDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS
For the Fiscal Years Ended October 2, 2015, September 26, 2014, and September 27, 2013

(Tn thons ands)
Continued
7 2015 2014 2013
Cash Flows fromFinancing Activities: o '
Procesds from long;rcrmborrowings . 1,768,639 819,681 —
Repayments of long-term Betrowings S {L,507,109) U s (g3,
Proceeds tromshort-term borrowings 362,433 207,8'.'.6 59,094
Repayments of short-term borrowings - o : | (382,190) (26091 N - (35400).
Preceeds fromissuances of common stock 33,222 44,704 46,079
Common stock tepurchases ' ) . 422,319 . ) -.(18,399) . ——
Tax (deficicney) benefit fromstock based compensation 1,237 (1,344) (3,213)
" Distriuticns towonconttoling interests o .y Go8 {7.974),
Net cash provided by (uscd for) financing activities (853,314) 104,920 (59,707)
Effect of Bichange Rate Changes o ; . _' (ossamy Gls) (.778),
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {271,788) (523,758) 223,948
Cash and Cash Tquivalents at Beginting of Period _ k _ W 1256405 4,082457
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 450,859  § 732647 % 1,256,405

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JACOBS ENGINFERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

Description of Business

We provide a broad range of technical, professional, and construction services including engineering, design, and architectural services; construction
and construction management services; operations and nuintenance services; and process, scientific, and systems consulting services. We provide our services
through offices and subsidiaries located primarily in North America, South America, Burope, the Middle East, India, Australia, Aftica, and Asia. We provide our
services under cost-reimbursable and fixed-price contracts. The percentage of revenues realized fromeach of'these types of contracts for each of the last three fiscal
years was as follows;

2015 2014 2013
Costreimbursable . 83% 83% 85%
Fixed-price 1% 17% 15%
Basis of Presentation, Definition of Fiscal Yeor, and Other Matters

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and include the accounts of Jacobs
Engineering Group Inc. and its subsidiaries and affiliaies which it controls. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
censolidation.

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Friday closest to September 30 (determined on the bagis of ihe nutber of wotkdays) and, accordingly, an
additional week of activity is added every five-to-six years,

Please refer to Note 16—Definitions for the definitions of certain terms used in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and these Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

2, Significant Accounting Policies
Revenye Accoynting for Contracts and Uze of Jnint Venture

In general, we recognize revenues at the time we provide services. Depending on the commercial terms of the contract, we recognize revenues either when
costs are incurred, orusing the percentage-of-completion method of accounting by relating contract costs incused to date to the total estimated costs at completion.
Contract losses are provided for in their entirety in the period they becoire known, without regard fo the percentage-ofcompletion. For multiple contracts with a
single customer we account for each contract separately. We also recognize as revenues, costs associated with chims and unapproved change orders to the extent it
is probable that such claims and change orders will result in additional coniract revenue, and the amount of such additional revenue can be reliably ostirmated,

Certain cost-reimbursable contracts elude incentive-fee artangements. These incentive fees can be based on a variety of factors but the mest commoen
are the achievement of target cornpletion dates, target costs, and/or other performance criteria. Pailure to meet these targets can result in unrealized incentive fees. We
recognize incentive fees based on expected resulis using the percentage-of-corrpletion method of accounting. As the contract progresses and more information
becones available, the estitmte ofthe anticipated incentive fee that will be eamned is revised as necessary. We bill incentive fees based on the terns and conditions
of the individual contracts. In cettain silvations, we are allowed to bill a portion of the incentive fees over the performance period of the contract, In other situations,
we are allowed to bill mcentive fees only alter the target criterion has been achieved. Incentive fees which have been recognized but not billed are included in
receivables in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Certain cost-reimbursable contraets with govemment customers as well as certain commercial clients provide that contract costs are subject to audit and
adjustment, In this sitwation, revenues are recorded at the time services are performed based upon the amounts we expect to realize upon sonpletion of the contracts.
Revenues are not recognized for non-recoverable costs, In those situations where an audit indicates that we may have billed a client for costs not allowable under the
tems of the contract, we estimate the amount of such nonbillable costs and adjust our revenues accerdingly,

When we are ditectly tesponsible for subcontractor labor or third-paty materials and equipnwent, we reflect the costs of such items in both revenues and
costs (and we refor to such costs as “pass-through” costs). On those projects where the client elects to pay for such items directly and we have no associated
respongsibility for such itens, these amounts are not reflected in either revenues or costs.

The following table sets forth pass-through costs included in revenues for each of the last three fiscal years (in mitlions );

2015 2014 2013
$ 26026 $ 0 29549 5 26048

As is contmon to the industry, we execute cettain contracts jointly with third parties through varlous forms of joint ventures and consortiums, Although
the joint ventures own and hold the contracts with the clients, the services required by the contracts axe typically performed by us and our joint venture partners, or
by other subcontraciors under subconiracting agreements with the joint ventures. The assets of our joint ventures, thersforg, consist almest entirely of cash and
receivables (representing amounts due fromclients), and the Labilities of our joint ventures consist almost entirely ef atmounts due to the joint venture partners (for
services provided by the partners to the joint ventures under theit individual subcontracts) and other subcontractors. In general, at any given tite, the equity ofour
joint ventures represents the undistributed profits eamed on contracts the joint ventures hold with clients, Very fow of our joint ventures have enployees, None of
our joint ventures have third-party debt or credit facilities. Our joint ventures, therefore, are simply mechanisns used te deliver engincering and censtruction services
to clients, Rarely do they, in and of themselves, present any risk of loss to us orto our partners sepamnte from those that we would camry if we were performing the
contract on cur own. Under U.S. GAAP, our share of losses associated with the contracts lield by the joint ventures, if and when they ccour, has always been
reflected in our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Certain of our joint ventures meet the definition ofa VIR In evaluating our VIEs for possibk consolidation, we perform a qualitative analysis 1o determine
whether or not we have a “controlling financial interest” in the VIE as defined by U.S. GAAP. We consolidate only those VIEs over which we have a controlling
financial interest,

Forthe Conpany’s unconsolidated joint vetitures, we use either the equity method ofaccounting or proportional consolidation. The Commpaty does not
currently participate in any significant VIEs in which it has a controlling financial interest that it does not consolidate.

There were no changes in facts and circiumstances during the petiod that caused the Company to reassess the method of sceounting for its VIEs,

Fuair Valie Meashrements

The net catrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables, and notes payable approximate Fair Value dug to the short-term
nature of these instruments, Similarly, we believe the canying value of long-termdebt also approximates Fair Value based on the interest rates and scheduled
maturities applicable to the outstanding botrowings. Certain other assets and labilities, such as forward centracts and an interest rate swap agreetent we purchased
as cash-flow hedges discussed in Note 10—Cemmmitments and Contingencies - Derivative Financial Instruments are required to be cartied in our Consolidated
Financial Statements at Fair Value.

The Fair Value of the Company’s reporting units (used for purposes of'determining whether there is an indication of possible impaitiment of the carrying
value of goodwill) is determined using both an income approach and a market approach, Both approaches require us to make certain estimates and judgments, Under
the income approach, Fair Value is detenmined by using the discounted cash flows of our reporting units. Under the market approach, the Fair Values of our reporting
units are determined by reference to guideline conpanies that are reasonably comparable to eur reporting units; the Fair Values are estimated based on the vahsation
multiples of the invested capital associated with the guideline companies. In assessing whether there is an indication that the carrying value of goodwill has been
impaired, we utilize the results ofboth valuation
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techniques and consider the range of Fair Values indicated. The range of values (both ends of the range) for each reporting unit exceeded the respective book values
by over 20% to 40%.

With respect to equity-based commpensation (ie., share-based payments), we estinmte the Fair Value of stock options granted to employees and directors
uging the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Like all option-pricing models, the Black-Scholes model requires the use of highly subjective assumptions including
(i} the expected volatility of the market price of the underlying stock, and (i) the expected termof the award, anong others. Accordingly, changes in asswinptions and
any subsequent adjustments to these assuroptions can cause drastically different Fair Values to be assigned to our stock option awards. For resfricted stock units
containing service and market conditions, cotopensation expense is based on the Fair Value of such units using a Monte Carlo sinmilation, Due to the uncertainties
inherent in the use of assunptions and the results ofapplying Monte Carlo simulations and because squity awards tend to vest over several years and additional
equity awards may be made in the fiture, the amount of expense recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial staternents may not be representative of'the
effects on our fiture consolidated financial statements.

The Fair Values of the assets owned by the various pensicn plans that the Company sponsors are determined based on the type of asset, consistent with
U.S. GAAP, Equity securities are valued by using market observable data such as quoted prices. Publicly traded corporate equity securities are valued at the last
reported sale price on the last business day of the year. Securities not traded on the last business day are valued at the last reported bid price. Debt securities are
valued at the last reported sale price on the last business day applicablo, Real estate conaists primarily of common or collective trusts, with underlying investments in
real estate. They are valued using the best information available, including guoted markei price, market prices for similar assets when available, internal cash flow
estinmtes discounted at an appropriate interest rate, or independent appraisals, as appropriate. Insurance contracts, investments in infrastructure/raw goods, and
hedge funds are valued using actuarial assumptions and values reported by the faond managers.

The methodologies described above and elsewhers in these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements may produce a Fair Value measure that may not
be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of fature Fair Values, Furthermare, while the Company believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent
with other matket participants, the usc of different methodologies or assumptions to detenmine the Fair Value of certain financial insfruments could result in a different
Bair Value measyrement,

Caslt Eguivalents

We censider all highly liquid investments with original maturities of less than three months to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents at October 2, 2015
and September 26, 2014 consisted primarily of money market mutual funds and overnight bank deposits.

Receivgbles and Billings jn Ex.

“Receivables” inchude billed receivables, unbilled receivables, and retentions receivable. Billed receivables represent mmounts mivoiced to clients in
accordance with the terms of our client contracts. They are recorded i our financial statements when they arc issued. Unbilled reecivables and retentions receivable
represent reiimbursable costs and amounts eamed and reimbursable under contracts in progress as of the respective balance sheet dates, Such amounts become
billable according to the contract tenms, which usually consider the passage of tine, achievement of certain milsstenes or completion of the project. We anticipate
that substantially all of such unbilled amounts will be billed and collected over the next fiscal year,

Centain contracts allow us to issue invoices to clients in advance of providing services. “Billings in excess of costs” represent billings fo, and cash
collected from, clients in advance of work performed. We anticipate that substantially all such amounts will be camed overthe neat twelve months.

Property, Equipment, and Improvements

Property, equipment and improvements are carried at cost, and are shown net of accutrulated depreciation and amortization in the accompanying
Consolidoted Bulance Sheets. Depreciation and amortization is computed pringrily by using the straight-line mothod over the estimated useful livos of the assets, The
cost of leasehold improvements is amortized using the straight-line methed over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset or the remmining termofthe related
lease. Estimated useful lives mange from 20 to 40 years for buildings, from3 to 10 years for equipment and from4 to 10 years for leasehold improvements.
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Goodwifl and Other In ih sl

Goodwill represents the excess ofthe cost of an acquired business over the Fair Value of the net tangible and Intangible assets acquived. Goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized; instead, we test goodwill for possible impaivment. We conduct such tests annually (or more frequently if
evenls oceur o circumstances change that would more fikely than not reduse the Fair Values of our reporting units below their respective canying values). The first
step in the test is to compare the Fair Value of each of the Cotnpany’s reporting units to their respective carrying amounts, including goodwill. In the event that the
carrying value of'a reporting unit exceeds its Fair Value, a second tesi is performed to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any. In performing the annnal
Impaitment test, the Company evaluates goodwill at the reporting unif Jevel, We have determined that our operating segment is comprised oftwo reporting units
based on geography. Based on the results ol'these tests, we have determined that the Fair Value of our reporting unifs substantially exceeded their respective
carrying values for fiscal years 2015, 2014, and 2013,

The following table provides certain information related to the Company’s acquired intangible assets lor each of the fiscal years presented (in
thousands);

Cstomer
Relationships,
Contracts, and Developed Trade
Backlog Technology Names Other Totat
Balances, Septomber 28, 2012 $ 27,79 § W44 5 3082 % 5507 8 M7,
Argrtization o omn (1333 (e - (LB (24008
Foreign cumency translation {L47) — (289 (50) (1,850}
Balarices, Septeriber 27,2043 : S T Taessy - wen o zlw 1287 - . 217904 |
Acquisitions 249,164 —_ 15,049 —_— 204,213
Amaptization B Cws - @y 0wy oy
Foreign cumency translation 1,087 — 171 31 1,289
‘Balances, Septemier 26, 3014 ' ' TaspM 17s®. . Me . @5 #oin,
Acquisitions @315) —_ (1,202) 300 (5.307)
Anvrtization ' (996T 1,533) ATy e sy
Foreign cutrency translation ' (34418) — (1,085) {14) (35,517
Balances, October2,2015 - $ - 3/IM 0§ 1585 § 7399 8 64§ 35349
Wei.ghfed. élvefﬁge amrtiﬁltion period (;years) 972 103 44 6.0 92

The weighted average amortization period includes the effects of foreign currency translation,

The above table excludes the values assigned to those intangible assets embedded in the Company’s investment in AWE Management Lid, (*AWE”Yand
Guimar Engenharia LTDA (' Guimar"). Those amounts arc included in the carrying value of the Conpany’s investment in AWEand Guimar. The amount of
amortization expense we estinate we will record during each of the next five fiscal years relating to intangible assets existing at October 2, 2015, including those
associated with AWE and Guimar, is: fiscal 2016 - $46.5 miltion; fiscal 2017 - $44.5 million; fiscal 2018 - $43.7 nillion; fiscal 2019 - $42.7 miflion; and fiscal 2020 - $40.4
million. The amounts reperted for future amortization include the effect of exchange rate changes,

The change in goodwill during the three year period ending October 2, 2015 was due primarily to businesses acquired during fiscal 2014,

Business Comnbinations

Cn December 13, 2013, the Company acquired all of the outstanding equity interests in Sinclair Knight Merz Managemeznt Pty Limited and Sinclair Knight
Merz Holdings Limited (collectively, "SKM™), a provider of engineering, design, procurement, construction and project management services, fromthe SKM
shareholdets, The Company pruchased SKM forapproxinately $1.2 billion in cash. SKM's results of operations have been ingluded in the Company's consolidated
results of operations since the date of acquisition. The acquisition agreement includes customary representations, warranties, and indetmities supported by an
escrow account.
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Included in selling, general and administrative expense for fiscal 2014 is $9.2 million of incremental, transaction-related expenses.

The following table presents the final purchase price allocation for SKM (in thousands):

Assets:
Cash and cagh equivalents $ 152,051
Receivables and other current assets 371,331
Property and equipment and other ’ o 74,630
Intangible nssets 202,166
Total assets ) ' . ——m
Liabilities: '
Comrenit linbilicies . 31381
Deferred tax liabilities 72,656
Tongtermlighilities o “20416°
Total liabilities 444,423
Netidentifiableassets acquired m
Goodwill 866,919
Net assets aequired m

The following table presents the values assigned to the acquired SKM intangible assets {in thousands):

Cistorerelationships  backlog . R -5 193.260:
Trade names ) 8,906
Total . ' 3 202066

The preliminary useful lives of the intangible assets acquired from SKIM range from 3 to 12 years,

Some of the facters contributing to the recognition of goodwill include: (i} access to a lavge, highly-trained and stable workforce; (i) the opportunity to
expand our client base in Australia, Asia, South Awreriea and the UK, {iii} the opportunity to cxpand our presence in maltiple industrics, including: mining,
infrastructure, buildings, water and energy; and (iv) the opportunity {o achieve opermting synergies,

The following table presents the unaudited, pro fornm consolidated results of operations (in millions, except per share amounts) for fiscal year 2014 as if
the acquisition of SKM operations had occurred as of September 28, 2012, The pericd end dates of SKM are different fromthose of the Company and, accordingly,
certain adjustiments were made to conform SKM's period end dates to those of the Company. Management believes these adjustments make the comparative data
more representative of what the combined resulis of operations would have been over the pro forma period, The pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of (i)
the resulis of opetations that would have occurred had we actually acquired SKM on September 28, 2012; or (ii) future results of operations:

2014
Revenues m
Net eamiitgs attributableto Jacobs ~ § 335658
Basic earnings per share 3 2.57
Diluted eamings persharu $ 254

The pro forma eamings for fiscal year 2014 were adjusted to exclude §21.4 million of transaction-related costs incurred by both parties. For fiscal year 2014,
the pro fornm earnings were adjusted to reduce interest expense by $2.3 million
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(for a total of $2.1 million). For fiscal year 2014, the pro foroa earnings were adjusted to include net incremental intangible amortization of $2.5 million (for a total of
$19.9 million).

The pro forma eamings for fiscal year 2014 include an expense fiom SKM of $24 million related to a settlement with certain SKM sharchelders regarding
provisions of their shareholding plan that was scttled and paid prior to the closo of the business combination and recorded during the three month period ended
December 27, 2013

During fiscal year 2014, the Company also acquired Federal Network Services LLC (formerly a subsidiary of Verizon), Eagleten Engineering, LLC, FMHC
Corporation, Stobbarts (Nuclear) Limited, Trompeter Enterprises, and MARMAC Field Services, Inc. The operations of these acquisitions were not material to tho
Company's consplidated results for fiscal 2014. During fiscal 2014, we also acquired an additional 15% interest in Zamel and Turbag Consulting Engineers Conmpany
("ZATE"), a refining, chemicals, infrastructure and civil engineering company headquartered in Al Khobar, Saudi Arabia. This transaction brought the Company's
ownership in ZATE te 75%.

Foreign Currgncies

In preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements, it is necessary to translate the financial statements of out subsidiaries operating outside the 1.S.,
which are denominated in currencies ether than the U.S. dollar, into the U.S. dollar. In accordance with U.S, GAAP, revenues and expenses of operations outside the
U.S. ate translated into U.S. dollars using weighted-average exchange rates for the applicable period(s) being translated while the assets and liabilities of operations
outside the U.8. are generally translated into U.S, dollars using period-end exchange rates. The net effect of foreign currency translation adjustments is included in
stockholders’ equily as a compenent of accurmulated ether comprehensive incorre (loss) in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Skeets.

Share-Based Pavinenis

We measure the value of services received fromemployees and directors in exchange for an award of an equity instrument based on the grant-date Fair
Value of the award. The computed valse is recognized as a non-cash cost on a straight-line basis over the period the individual provides services, which is typically
the vesting pericd of the award with the exception of awards containing an internal performance measure which is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period subject to the probability of meeting the performance requirements and adjusted for the number of shares expected to be earned. The cost of these awards is
recorded in selling, general and administrative expense in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements,

The following table presents our stock-based conpensation expense for the various Lypes ef awards made by the Company for each of the fiscal years
presented (in thousands):

Award Type 2015 2014 2013
Restricted Stock and Restricted oo ’ ) : :

Stock Units (excluding Market and . ) o o o '.
Performance Awards) § 20779 3 17307 § 0 12,836

StockOptions o R - R
Market and Performance Awards ~ © 99 15264 L Isa0
Total Expense § 41412 5 43400 $ 39,518

The Company has two incentive plans whereby eligible enmployees and directors of Jacobs may be granted stock options, restricted stock, and/or
restricted stock units,

Stock Options—Substantially all of the stock options granted dwring the year were awarded on the same date (although the date s different for

employees and directors). The following table presents the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing mode! during each of the last three fiscal ycars for
awards made to employees and directors:
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Awards Made to Employees Awvarck Mads to Directors
) 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Dividend yleld ' 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 27.00% 34.25% 38.37% 20.28% 35.30% 37.65%
Riskefree interest rate ' o L6 L79% L% L63% 176% . 095%
Expected termof options (in years) 5.82 5.82 582 5.82 582 5.82

Performance Awards— Duting fiscal years 2014 and 2013, the Cotrpany granted restricted stock units containing service, performance, and market
conditions. The restricted stock unit award for these years is split equally between Relative TSR Restricted Stock Units and Net Eamings Growth Restricted Stock
Uhits. During fiscal year 2015, the Company only granted Net Famings Geowth Restricted Stock Units.

The number of Relative TSR Restricted Stock Units in which the employee may ultimately vest shall be equal to the Relative TSR grant multiplied by the
TSR Performance Multiplier. The TSR Performance Multiplier will be determined by comparing the Company's total stockholder retum to the total stockholder return
of cach of the companics in a specified industry peer group over the three-year period imimediately following the award date. For purposes of computing total
stockholder return, the beginning steck price will be the average closing stock price over the 30 calendar day period ending on the awand date ("Performance
Period"), and the ending stock price will be the average closing price over the 30 calendar day period ending on the last day of the performance period. Any dividend
payments made over the Performance Period will be deemed re-invested on the ex-dividend data in additional shares of the related Company.

The following table presents the basis on which the Relative TSR Restricted Stock Units are determined:

Conmmpany TSR Percentile Rank TSR Performance Multiplier
Below 30th-percentile ) . =
30th percentile 50%
S0th percentile 160%
70th percentile or above . 150%

If the Company's total stockholder return over the Performance Period falls between any of the brackets described above, the TSR Performance Multiplier
will be detesmined using straight line interpolation based on the actual percentile ranking.

Substantially all of the TSR restricted stock units awarded duting the year are awarded on the same date. The following table presents the assunptions used
to value the TSR restricted stock units:

. ) 2014 2013
Dividend yield _ . o — %
Expected volatility 24.77% 29.18%
Rikfeoimionstrate  omm 0%
BExpected term (in years) 3 3

The number of Net Eamings Growth Restricted Stock Units awarded in fiscal year 2013 in which an employee may ultimately vest shall be equal to the sumof
the following: (1) an amount, not less than zero, equal fo one-third of the eamed Net Famings Growth Restricted Stocl Units grant multiplied by the Nei Eamings
CGrowth Performance Multiplier (or, "NEGPM?", as defined) determined basced upon the growth in the Company's Net Famings {as defined) over the period starting on
the first day of the Company’s third quarter of fiscal 2013 and ending on the last day of the Conpany's second quarter of fiscal 2014; plus, (2) an amount, not less
than zeto, equal to (A) two-thirds of the eamned Net Famings Growth Restricted Stock Units grant multiplied by the NEGPM determined based upon the average
growth in the Company's Net Barnings over the period starting on the first day of the Company's third quarter of fiscal 2013 and ending on the last day of the
Company's second quarter of fiscal 2015, minus (B) the amcunt determined pursuant to {1) above; plus, (3) an amount, not less than zero, equal to (A) the earned Net
Famings Growth Restricted Stock Units grant muliiplied by the NEGPM detennined based upon the average growth in the Company's Net Eatnings over the period
starting on the first day of the Company's third quarter of
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fiscal 2013 and ending on the last day of the Company's second quarter of fiscal 2016, minus (B) the amount determined pursuant to {I) and (2) above.

For Net Farnings Growth Restricted Stock Units awarded in fiscal years 2014 and 2015, all ofthe eviteria teferenced in the paragraph above are the same over
the three year vesting period with the exception of the performance period. The performance perieds for fiscal years 2014 and 2015 are based upoen the Company's Net
Famings (as defined) over the period starting on the first day of the Company's third quarter of fiscal 2014 and ending on the last day of the Company's second
quarter of fiscal 2017 and the Company's Net Eamings (as defined) over the period starting on the first day of the Company's third quarter of fiscal 2015 and endingg
on the last day of the Company's second quarter of fiscal 2018, respectively.

[fthe Company’s average growth in Not Eamings aver the applicable fiscal years during the respective performance periods is between 5% and 10%, 10%
and 15%, or 15% and 20%, the Net Eamings Growth Performance Multiplier will be determined using straight line interpolation based on the actusl average growth in
the Company's consolidated net eamings attributable to Jacobs.

The following table presents the basis on which the Net Eamings Growth Restricted Stock Units are detenmined:

Net [unings Growth
Average Net Perforimnce
Earnings Growth Multiplier
Loss than 5% . - —Y.
5% 0%
10% ' L 100%
15% ot

Unless stated otherwise, all other awards are valued based on the closing price of the Company's common stock as reported in the NYSE Compaosite Price
History on their respective grant dates.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

QOur cash balances and cash equivalents are maintained in accounts held by major banks and financial institutions located primarily in North America, South
America, Burope, the Middle East, India, Australia, Afiica, and Asia. Tn the normal course of business, and consistent with industry practices, we grant credit to our
clients without requiring collateral. Concentmtions of credit risk is the risk that, if we extend a significant amount of credit to clients it a specific geographic area or
industry, we may eaperience dispreportionately high levels of default if those clients are adversely affected by factors particular to their geographic arca orindustry.
Coneentrations of eredit tisk relative to trade receivables are limited due to cur diverse client base, which includes the U.S, federal government and multi-national

cotporations operating in a broad range of industries and geographic arcas. Additionally, in order to mitigate credit tisk, we continually evaluate the credit worthiness
of our major commercial clients,

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to employ estimates and nuke assurptions that affect the reported
amounis of certain assets and lLiabilities; the revenues and expenses repotted for the periods covered by the financial statements; and certain amounts disclosed in
these Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Although such estimates and assumptions are based on management’s most recent assessment of the
underlying facts and circunstances utilizing the most current information available and past experience, actual results eould differ significantly fiomthosc estimates
and assunptions. Our estimates, judgments, and assurnptions are evaluated periedically and adjusted accordingly,

Earlier in these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements we discussed three significant accounting policies that rely on the application of estimates
and assumptions: revenue recognition for long-termconstruction contracts; the process fortesting goodwill for possible inpairment; and the accounting for share-
based payments to employees and directoss. The following is a discussion of certain other significant accounting pelicies that rely on the use of estimates:
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Accounting for Pensions— We use certain assumptions and estimates in order to caleulate periodic pension cost and the value of the assets and
liabilities of our pension plans. These assumptions involve discount rates, investment refums, and projected salary increases, among others, Chianges in the actuatial
assunptions may have a material effect on the plans’ liabilities and the projected pension expense.

Aceounting for Income Taxes— We determine our consolidated incotre taxexpense using the asset and liability method preseribed by U.S, GAAP, Under
this method, deferred taxassets and liabilities are recognized for the terperary differences between the camying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
repoiting purposes and income taxpurposes, Such deferred taxassets and liabilitics arc adjusted, as appropuiate, to reflect changes in tax rates expected to be in
effect when the temporary differences reverse. Ifand when we determine that a deferred tax asset will not be realized for its full amount, we will recognize and record a
valuation allowance with a comesponding charge to eamings. Judgment is required in determining our worldwide provision for income taxss. In the normeal course of
business, we may engage in numercus tansactions every duy for which the ultimaie tax outcome {including the period in which the transaction will ultinntely be
included in taxable income or deducted as an expense) is uncertain. Additionally, we file income, franchise, gross receipts and similar taxreturns in nany jurisdictions,
Our tax returns are subject to audit and investigation by the Internal Revenue Service, most states in the U.S,, and by various government agencies representing
many jurisdictions outside the U.S.

Contractual Guarontees, Lifigation, Investigations, and Insurance— In the normal course of business, we are subject to certain contmctual guarantees
and litigation. We record in the Consolidated Balance Sheets amounts representing our estimated Lability relating te such guarantees, litigation, and insurance claims.
We performan analysis to detenmine the level of reserves to establish for both insurance-telated claims that are known and have been assetted against us as well as
for insurance-related claims that are believed to have been incuired based on actuarial analysis, but have not yet been reported to our claims administrators as ofthe
respective balance sheet dates, We Include any adjustments to such insurance reserves in our Consolidated Statements of Eamings. In addition, as a contracior
providing services to various agencies of the U.S, federal government, we are subject to many levels of audits, mvestigations, and claims by, or on behalf of, the U.S.
federal government with respect to contract performance, pricing, costs, cost allocations, and procurement practices. We adjust revenues based upon the amounts
we expect to realize considering the effects of any client audits or governmental investigations.

Aeccounting for Business Combinations— .S, GAAP requires that the purchase price paid for business combinations accounted for using the acquigition
method boe allocated to the assets and lHabilities acquired based on their respective Fair Values. Determining the Fair Value of contract assets and liabilities acquired
often requires estimates and judgments regarding, among other things, the estimated cost to complete such contracts. The Company nuist also make cestain estinntes
and judgments relating to other assets and liabilities acquired as well as any identifiable intangible assets acquired.

New Accounting Pronguncenents

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09—Reveinue from Confracts with Cusiomers. The new guidance provided by ASU 204409 is intended to
remove inconsistencies and perceived weaknesses in the existing revenue requirements, provide a nore robust framework for addressing revenue issues, improve
comparability, provide more useful information and sinplify the preparation of financial statements, A St 2014-00 was initially ¢ffective for annual and interitm
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, On July 9, 2015 the FASB approved a cne vear deferral of the effective date of this standard. The revised

- cffective date for the standard is for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods therein. The FASB also approved changes
allowing for early adoption of the standard as of the original effective date, The Corgpany continues to evaluate the impact that the new guidance may have on the
consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03—Simplifping the Presentotion of Debt Issuance Costs. ASU 2015-03 was issued to sinplify the presentation
of debt issuance costs by requiring such costs to be presented as a deduction from the corresponding debt liability. Through this ASU, the FASB intends to make
the presentation of debt issuance costs consistent with the presentation of debt discounts or premiums. The guidance is effective for financial statements issued for
fiseal years beginning after December 15, 2015, snd interim perfods within thosc fiscal ycars. Barly adoption is permitted. The Company does not believe the adoption
of this ASU will have a material etfect on its consolidated financial statements,

In May 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-07—Disclosures for Invesiments in Certain Entities that Calculate Net Asset Value Per
Share {or its Eguivalent). ASU 2015-07 removes the requirement to categorize within the fair value hierarchy investments for which fair values are estimated using
the net asset value practical expedient provided by ASC 820—Fuir Value Maastirement, Disclosures about investments in ceriain entitics that caleulate net asset
value per share are limited under ASU 2015-07 to those investments for which the entity has elected to estimate the fair value using the net
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asset value practical expedient. ASU2015-07 is effective for entities (other than public business entities) for fiscal years beginning after Decenber 13, 206, with
retrospective application to all periods presented. Eatly application is permitted. The Company is evaluating the impacts of the ASU, but does not expect the impacts
to be material (o its consolidated financial statements.

3, Employee Stock Purchase and Stock Option Plans
of-Based, Emplovee Stock Purchase
Under the 1989 ESPP and the GESPP, eligible employees who elect to participate in these plans are granted the right to purchase shares of the common

stock of Jacobs at a discount that is limited to 5% of the per-share market value on the day shares are sold to employees. The following table summarizes the stock
igsuance activity under the 1989 ESPP and the GESPP during each ofthe last three fiscal years:

2008 2014 2013
Aggregate Purchase Price Paid for Shares Sold: ' :
Undier the 1989 ESPP $ W0 $ 30354723 $ 30,012,848
| Underthe GESPP L 3l 306 306
Total $ 2,157219 8 33,668,709 § 33,081,426
Aggregati Numborof'Shares Sold: . T ' T
Under the 1939 ESPP T T o6 S3200 0 G675
Under the GESPP . 361 50883 64963
Total 781,214 613,084 707,638

At October 2, 2015, there remains 1,163,967 shares reserved for issuance under the 1989 ESPP and 127,824 shares reserved for issuance under the GESPP.
Stock Incentive Plens

We also sponsor the 1999 SIP and the 1993 ODSP, The 1999 SIP provides for the issuance of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, share
appreciation rights {'SAR™), restricled stock, and restricted stock units to employees. The 1999 ODSP provides for awards of shares of common stock, restricted
stock, and restricted stock units, and grants of nonqualified stock options to our outside {i.e.,, noncimployee) directors. The following table sets forth certain
information about the 1999 Plans:

1999 SIP 1999 ODSP ‘lotal
Nurber ot shares authorized T 850,000 800,600 30,650,000
Number of rermining shares reserved for issuance at .
QOctaber 2, 2015 10,394,091 323,500 11,217,591
Nuvber of shares relating t_b outstanciii;g stock o . . L o
options at October 2,2015 - 3,790,332 ’ _28;,375 4,072,707 -
'Numbcr of shaics availablo fér ﬁltum'awavds:
At October 2, 2015 o 703759 aLi2s . TAedg)
At September 26, 2014 ’ 7,118,672 90,125 7,208,797

Effective Septenber 28, 2012, all grants of shares under the 1999 SIP are issued on a fungible share basis. An award of an option or SAR counts as 1.0¢
share issued under the 1999 SIP Plan. A grant other than an option or SAR counts as 1.92 shares issued under the 1595 SIP Plan,
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The following table presenis the Fair Value of shares (of restricted stock and restricted steck units)} vested during each of the last three fiscal years {in
thousands):

] 2015 2014 2013
Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units {service _ )
condition} ) 18,568 6,820 13,054
Restricted Stock Units (setvice, matket, and petforrmance
conditions at target) 11,264 18,675 —
Total $ 29,832 § 25495 § . 13,054

The following table presents the Company’s total pre-tax compensation cost relating to share-based payments included in the acconmpanying
Consolidated Statements of Barnings (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
$ 4,412 8 43,400 3 39,518

At October 2, 2015, the amount of compensation cost relating to nonvested awards not yet recognized in the financial statements is approximately $109.8
-million. The majority of the unrecognized compensation costs will be recognized by the first quarter of figcal 2019, The woighted average renmining contractual tetm
of options currently exercisable is 5.4 years years.

Stock Options

The following table summarizes the stock option activity for each ofthe last three fiscal years:

Weighted
Number of Average
Stock Ixerclse
L . o o o o Options Price
‘Gutstanding at September 28,2012 - . - 5756734 3 T 4723
Granted 753450 § 54,71
Pirercised. - PR . o (L782371) § A0
Cancelled or expired (121,601) $ 50.22
Outstanding at September 27, 2013 - - S . 4606212 - % 5233
Granted 602,525 % 53.51
Fiercised o _ - _ (TIB.065) § 478!
Cancelled or expired : (269,525 % 5446
Outstanding at Septeimber36, 2014 - 422,147 § 5328,
Granled 614,759 % 43.56
Bwtolsed S {34,000} % 31,54
Cancelled ot expired (729,199 § 86.15
Outstanding at Cetober2, 2015 L . 4,072,707 § 46:06‘;

Stock options outstanding at Octeber 2, 2015 consisted entirely of nonqualified stock options. The following table presents the total intrinsic value of
stock options exsreised during each of the last three fiscal years (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
3 442§ 9,390 § 22,163
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The total intrinsic value of stock options excreisable at October 2, 2015, was approxinately $0.2 million. The following table presents certain other
information regarding cur 1999 Plans:

2018 2014 2013

At fiscal yearend; '

Range of exercise prices for options

outstanding $32.51-580.63 $25.87-594.11 $20.98-$94.11

Mumberofoptions exercisable ) ) 2,590,560 2723980 3,034,111
For the liscal year:

Renge of prices. relating to options exercised $25.87-342.74 $20,98-$57.54 $1849-$36.95

Estimated weighted average Fair Values of

options granted § 1341 % 1904 $ 20.64

The following table presents certain information regarding stock options outstanding, and steck options exztcisable at October 2, 2015;

Options Quistanding Options Exgreisable

‘Weighted

Average

Remaining Welighted

Contractual Weighted Average

Life Avernge Exereise

‘Range of Exercise Prices o 7 Number {years) Price Number Price
sest-swm T segs - e®3 L ma . oA s 5
$3743 - $46.37 o 727,0577,7967 ) 75.867 ) 4_2,74__ o 1,429_,_'.'_’_61_ 42.40
$A7.11-955.53 - : I O T X B TwEeT 7 s
$6(_).08-$8_0.__6_3 o S _ - 94,075 i 5.98 65.33 56,475 68.64
o ' L ADZIOT. - 656 % .. 4606 2SS §.. . MBH

The 1999 Plans allow participants to satisfy the exercise price of stockoptions by tendering shares of Tacobs conmon stock that have been owned by the
participants for at least sixmonths, Shares so tendered ate retired and canceled, and are shown as repurchases of common stock in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders”’ Equity.

The following table presents the nurber of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units issued under the 1999 SIP during each ofthe last three
tiscal vears:

2015 2014 2013
Restricted stock - 507,882 TsEo150 445200
Restricted stock units (service éondition) 126,635 287,545 107,500
Restricted stock units (Eervice, matket, and .
performance conditions attarget) - 219965 432,700 - o 4TL250°
Nates.,

The amount of restricted stock units issued for awards with performance and market conditions in the above table are based on the target amount.
The number of shares ultimately issued, which could be greater or less than target, will be based on achieving specific performance conditions
described in Note 2— Significant Accounting Policies.

The share amounts in the above tables reflect the non-fungible share counting of | shares for each share of restiicted stock and restricted stock unit
issued.
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The following table presents the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units cancelled and withheld for taxes under the 1995 SIP during
each of the last three fiscal years:

20615 2014 2013
‘Restricted stock - © 326,480 147248 128,923°
Restricted stock units (service condition) 70,296 12,333 3,385
Restricted stack units {service; markef, and _ ]
performance conditions-at targef) - 19016 52,000 32,000
Notes:

The amount of restricted stock units cancelled for awards with market and performance conditions in the above table is based on the target amount.

The share amounts in the above tables reflect the non-fungible share counting of 1 shares for each share of restricted stock and restricted stock unit
issued.

The restrictions attached to restricted stock and restricted stock unifs generally relate to the recipient’s ability to sell or otherwise transfer the stock or

stock units. There are also restrictions that subject the stock and stock units to forfeiture back to the Conpany until earned by the recipient through continued
employment or serviee.

The following table provides the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units outstanding at October 2, 2015 under the 1999 SIP, Shares

granted prior to September 29, 2M2 were granted on a 1-to-1 basis ("Not Fungible™). Shares Granted after September 28, 2012 were issued on a 1.92-to-1.00 basis
("Fungible"):

o Mot Fungible Fungibte Tatal

Restricted stock 7 . 459000 138E7R 1,810,832

Restricted stock units {service condition) 87,960 455245 543,205

Restricted stock units (service, market, and performance conditions ) ‘ ) Lo ) ;

at target) ’ — . 884,219 © 884,219

The following table presents the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units issued under the 1999 ODSP during each of the last three
fiscal years:

. 2015 2014 2013
Restricted stockunits {serviee condition) IR © 13500 15,000 ) : 13,500

The following table provides the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units outstanding at October 2, 2015 under the 1999 ODSP:

) 2015
Pestricted stock

- ) 000
Restricted stock units (service condition)

76,000
Allshares granted under the 1999 ODSP are issued on a [-to-1 basis.
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4, Earnings Per Share
Basic and Diluted Farnings Per Share

The (ollowing table (i} reconciles the denominator used to compute Basic EPS to the denominater used to compuie Diluted EPS for ¢ach of the last three
{iscal years, and (ii} discloses the nuber of antidilutive stock options, sharcs of restricted stock, and restricted stock units outstanding at the end cf each ofthe
fiscal years indicated (in thousands):

- 2015 2014 2013
Shargs used to caleulnte EPS:
Weighted average shares outstanding
(denominater used to compute basic EPS) 125,007 130,483 129,288
Etfect of stock options and restricted stock h ©OLl03 1,388 | 1687
Denominator used to compute diluted EPS 126,110 132,371 130,945
Antidilutive stock options, shares of restricted stock, and . -
restricted stock units . 3,237 . 2,074 2,603

Share Renurchases,

On August 19, 2014, the Company's Board of Dircctors authorized a share repurchase program of up te $500 million of the Company's common steckovera
three year period (the "20!4 Share Repurchase Program). As of October 2, 2015, the Cormpany exhausted the repurchase capacity under the authorization, As
authorized, share repurchases may be executed through various means including, without limitation, open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions or
otherwise, The share repurchage propramdid not obligate the Company to purchase any shares, and would have expired on August 19,2017

The following table sumimarizes the activity under this programdurning fiscal 2015 (in thousands, except per-share amounts):

Amount Shares
Authorized Average Price  Total Shares Repurchased
(in thousands)  Per Share (1) Retired
$ 500,000 $ 43.33 9,746 422313,657 9,746

(1) Inchudes comunissions paid and calculated as the averags price per share sinee the repurchase
program authorization date.

On July 23, 2013, the Board of Ditectors apptoved a program to purchase up Lo an additional $500 million of the Company's common stock over the next thres
years (the "2015 Share Repurchase Programt'). The new share repurchase authorization is subject to the same general terrs and conditions as the prior share
repurchase authorization sumnerized above.

5. Borrowings

Short-Term Credit Arrangements

The Conpany maintains both commitied and uncommitted credit armangements with several banks providing for short-tennborowing capacity and overdraft
protection. There were borrowings of $13.4 million outstanding under these short-term credit facilities at a weighted average interest rate ot 2.3% at October 2,2015,
and there were bonowings of 36,7 million outstanding under these short-term credit facilities at September 26, 2014,
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Long-term Debht

On February 7,2014, Jacobs and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a $1.6 billion long-termunsecured, revolving credit facility {the "2014 Facility") with a
syndicate of large, U.S. and intermational banks and financial institutions. The following table presents certain information regarding the Conpany’s long-term
revolving credit facilities at October 2, 2015, and September 26, 2014 (dollars in thousands):

2015 2014
Principal Range Principal Range
Balance of Interest Balance of Interest
Outstanding Rates Outstanding Rates
3 584434 L0%— 151 & - 764075 1.0%— 1.51%

The total amount outstanding under the 2014 Facility in the formof direct borrowings at October 2, 2015 was $0.6 billion. The Company has issued $2.5 million in
fetters of credit leaving $1.0 billion of available borrowing capacity under the 2014 Facility at Ogtober 2, 2015, In addition, the Company had $233,9 million issued
under separate, committed and unconmitted letter-of-credit tacilities {or total issued letters of credit of $236.4 million at October 2, 2015.

The 2014 Facility expires in February 2019 and peuits the Cormpany 1o borrow under two scparate tranches in U.8. dollars, certain specified foreign currencies,
and any other cumrency that may be appreved in accordance with the terns of the 2014 Facility. Depending on the Company's Consolidated Leverage Ratio,
botrowings under the 2014 Facility will bear interest at either a eurocwirency rate plus a margin of between 1.0% and 1.5% ot a base rate plus a margin of between 0%
and 0.5%. The 2014 Facility also provides for a financial letter of credit subfacility of $300.0 million, permits performance letters of credit, and provides fora $50.0
million subfacility for swingline loans. Letters of credit are subject to fees based on the Company's Consolidated Leverage Ratio at the time any such letter of eredit is
issued. The 2014 Facility also provides an accordion feature that allows the Company and the lenders to increase the facility amount to $2.1 billion, The Company
pays a facility fee of between 0.100% and 0.25% per annumdepending on the Company's Censolidated Leverage Ratio. Amounts oufstanding under the 2014 Facility
may be prepaid at the option ofthe Company without premium or penalty, subject to customary breakage fees in connection with the prepayment of enrocurrency
loans. The 2014 Facility contains affinrative, negative, and financial covenants customary for fmancings of this type inchiding, among other things, limitations on
certain other indebtedness, loans and investments, liens, mergers, asset sales and transactions with affiliates. In addition, the 2014 Facility contains customary events
of default. We were in compliance with cur debt covenants at Cetober 2, 2015,

The following table presents certain additional information regarding the Company’s long-termdebt for the fiscal years shown:

_ _ 2015 2014
Maxinutivamount outstanding at any . :
anonth-end during the fiscal year . $.. - 1006899 § 1,036,066
Average amount outstanding during the

year § 043258 § 866,264
Weighted average interest rate during : :

theyear - = o 128% ] 1.18%

The following table presents the amount of interest paid by the Company during each of the last three fiscal years (in thousands):

015 2014 2013
$ 15506 $ 1380 S 6685

6. Pension and Other Postretirement Benetit Plans
0 = : sored Plarns

We sponsor various defined benefit pension plans covering employees of certain U.S, and international subsidiaries. The pension plans provide pension
benefits that arc based on the enployee’s compensation and years of service, Our funding pelicy is to fund the actuaxially determined ncorued benefits where
applicable, allowing for projected compensation increases using the projected unit method.
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The accounting for pension and other post-retirement benefit plans requires the use of assuzmptions and estimates in order to calculate periodic benefit
cost and the value of the plans® assets and benefit obligations. These assumptions include discount rates, investment retums, and projected salaty mercases,
amongt others. The discount rates used in valuing the plans’ benefit obligations were determined with reference to high quality corporaie and government bonds
that are appropriately maiched to the duration of each plan's obligations. The expected long-termrate ofreturn on plan assets is generally based on using country-
‘specific sirmlation models which select a single outcome for expected return based on the target assct allocation, The expected leng-fermrates of return used in the

valuation are the annual average returns generated by thesc assumptions over a 20 year period for each asset class based on the expected long-termrate of refurn of
the underlying assets.

The following table sets forth the changes in the plans’ combined net benefit obligation {segregated between plans existing within and outside the U.S,)
during each ofthe fiscal years presented (in thousands):

U.S. Pension Plans Non-U.S, Fengion Flans
2015 2014 2015 2614
Net benefit obligation at the .- _ ) ) e R _ -
beginning ofthe year R 495788  § 468439 . % . 1,196,520 - 3 1,307,331 -
Saervice cost : 12,045 12,077 21,374 25374
Tnterestoost : 20,620  mo e 54,208 ;
Participants * contributions 7 2,743 3,005 ‘ 4,402 9,082
Actiarial losses L ame T 3038 0 1esgss
Benefits paid (40,289) (35,634) (35,662) {33,387)
Curtailments and settlements - - S GBI (eesshy
Plan amendiments 7 — (1,306) . (1,612)
ot s ehanges T ewsey T g
Net benefit obligation at the end
ofthe year $ 533,665 495788 % 1,155,592 § 1,196,520

The following table sets forth the changes in the combined Fair Value of the plans’ assets (segregated between plans existing within and outside the U.S.)
during each of the fiscal yeurs presented (in thousands):

U.8. Pension Plans Non-U.S. Pensien Plans
2015 2014 2015 2014
Fair Value of plan assets at the : ' . R : :
~ beginning of the year . $ 415350 3 0777 5§ 0 - 87,171 8 - 982479
Actual retum on plan assets (1,754) 45,484 86,411 130,665
Employer contributions R o 3857 s W03% 57T
Barticipants” gontributions 2,743 . 3,095 4,402 9,082
Gross benefits paid - ' o @ese) 3584 (350667 (33,387)
Curtailments/settlements — — (1,646) (208,486)
Difact o'f'exchange _raté c‘hangés . . - '{72,7@4) : ) ‘ (2, 159);
Fair Value of plan assets at the
end ofthe year $ 70907 % 415350 % 896,298 $ 876,171
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The following table reconeiles the combined funded statuses ofthe plans recognized in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at October 2,
2015, and September 26, 2014 (segregated between plans existing within and outside the U.S.) (in thousands):

U.S. Pension Plans Non-11.5. Pension Plans
_ ) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Net benefit obligation at the end ] l S ) .
of the year - i I . < 495788 § 1,155592 .5 1,196520
Fair Value of plan assets at the end
ofthe year 379,907 415,350 896,298 876,171
Under-funded amount recognized o : . _ :
at the end of the year . 3 153,758 3 A8 3 259,294 % 320,349

The following table presents the accurmnlated benefit obligation at October 2, 2015, and September 26, 2014 (segregated between plans existing within and
outside the U.S,) (in thousands):

U.8. Pension Plans Non-U.S. Pension Plans

o L 2015 2014 2015 2014
Accumulated benefit obligation at the. T ‘ . o ' R
end of the year o C $__ ’ 48_8,024 § 455245 § 1,1'13.016- & o LI287s -

The following table presents the amounts recognized in the accompanying Conselidated Balance Sheets at October 2, 2015 and September 26, 2014
(segregated between plans existing within and outside the U.S.) {in thousands):

U.8. Pension Plans Noun-U.8. Pension Plans
) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Prepaid benefit cost ingluded in )
" prepaid assets " : S — 8§ — §. 4054 §- 7,123
Accrued benefit cost included in
current liabilities — — 381 1,447
"Accrued benefit cost incladed in . R C S T
noncurent ]jébi}ities B _ o - 153,758 80438 262967 . 326028
Net atmount resopgnized at the end of
the year b 153,758 § 80438 $ 259294 § 320,349

Included in the tables are amounts relating to a U.S. pensien plan, the participating employees in which are assigned to, and work exclusively on, &
specific operating contract with the U.S, federal government, It is the intention of the parties to this contract that the ¢ost ofthis pension plan will be fully reimbursed
by the U.S, federal government pursuant to applicable cosl accounting standards. Aceordingly, included in “Miscellaneous Noncurrent Assets” in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet at October 2, 2015 is a receivable from the U.S. federal government of approximately $115.5 million ($61.1 million at
Septermber 26, 2014) representing the underfunded amount for this pension plan.

The following table presents the significant actuarial asswuptions used in determining the funded statuses and the following year's benefit cost of the
Company’s U.S. plans for cach fiseal year presented:

) . o . 2045 2014 2013
‘Weighted avenge discountmtes * ' 3.9% 10 410% - 3%%044% 44%t0 5.0%
Rates of conmpensation increases ' 3.00% 2.95% 2,80%
-Eqiected long-tefm-rates ofetum ' B - R . ' ' -
on plan assets . _ T4% 1% R,
24
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The following table presonts the significant actuarial assumplions used in determining the funded statuses and the following year's benefit cost ofthe
Conpany’s non-U.S. pension plans for each fiscal year presented:

. _ 2015 2014 2013
Welghted average discount rates ' S LE%teT8% . L8%w8s% 0.4% to 9.3%;
Rates of conpensation increases 24% to 7.5% 2.6% to 7.5% 2.5%to 7.5%
Fpected Iung—-tchnmte's ofretym o ' ' o . y o

on plan assets 3. to8.5% 4.5% to 8.5% Q4% 1o 85%

The following table presents certain amounts relating to our 1.5, pension plans recogmzed in accumnlated other conprehensive loss at October 2, 2015,
September 26, 2014 and September 27, 2003 (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
Auising during the period: o . :
Net actuarial (gain) loss $ 12237 § 1378 $ " (15850)
Reclassification adjustments: ' o . '
Net actuarial gain N =) {2,255) (2,674
Tomt . $ 980 $ @M S s

The following table presents certain amonnts relating to our non-U.8. pension plans recognized in accumulated other conprehensive loss at October 2,
20135, Sepiember 26, 2014 and September 27, 2013 (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
Avising during the period: o - S :
Net actuarial loss (gain) s e s mmms zag
Priurscwic:éi:osi'('bémf;ﬁt) - I . -(1512) - 'il)_ I _ 7
Total (28,677) 48,751 27714
Rﬁclassiﬁwtioﬁadjustnﬁms: ' o - ] N : .7 . _. - ) h
Net actuatial gain (14,034) (129149 {9,778)
Prlor service oost(benellt) '_ : Sy . (:19) . -. . o 41u
Total {13,083) (12,933) 9,737
Total =~ o S (@0 5 BRI § . 19T

The foliowing table presents cettain amounts relating to our pension plans recorded in accunmiated cther comprehensive loss that have not yet been
recognized as conponents of net periodic benefit cost at October 2, 2015, and Septerbar 26, 2014 (segregated between 118, and non-U.8, plans) (in thousands):

I1.S. Pension Plang Non-U.S, Pension Plans

2015 214 2015 2014
Netacuarialloss s 59458 3§ 656§ 208929 § 263,913 .
Prior service cost —_ — (1,947} . (437)-
Total S s 59458 § 49,569 S - W6982 § - 26346

The following table presents the amount of accumulated comprehensive income that will be amortized against eamings as part of our net periodic benefit
cost in fiscal 2016 based on 2015 exchange rates (segregated between U.S. and non-U.8. plans) (in thousands):

U.s. Non-U.8,
Pension Pension
_ _ o Plans Plans
Unrecognized net actuarial loss $ 8876. 3 14,176
Unrecognized prior service cost (235) (245)
Accurmulated comprehensive loss to be recotded against : ‘
eamings $ . Bp4l 5 - 1393]
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We consider various factors in developing the estimates for the expected, long-termrates of return on plan assets. These factors include the projected,
long-term ates of retums on the various types of assets in which the plans invest, as well as historical retums. In general, investment allocations are determined by
each plan’s trustees and/or investment committees. The cbjectives of the plans” investment policies arc to (i) maximize retums while preserving capital; (i) provide
returns sufficient to meet the current and long-term obligations ofthe plan as the obligations become due; and (iii) mintain a diversified portfolio of assets s0 as to
reduce the risk associated with having a disproportionate amount of the plans’ total assets invested in any one type of asset, issuer or geography. None of our
pension plans hold Jacobs common stock directly (although some plans may hold shares indirecily through investments in mutual funds). The plans’ weighted
average asset allocations at October 2, 2015, and September 26, 2014 (the measurement dates used in valuing the plans’ sssets and linbilities) were as follows:

U.8. Pension Plans Non-U.S. Pension Plans
. 2015 2014 2015 2014
Bouity secutities 0% . 75% 25% 29%
Debt securities 21% 21% 31% 32%
Bealestate investments .. _. L% . —% T T
Other % % 3% 32%

The following table presents the Fair Value of the Company’s Domestic ULS. plan assets at October 2, 2015, segregated by kevel of Fair Value measurement
inputs within the Fair Value hierarchy promulgated by U.S. GAAP {in thousands):

Fair Values By Level of
Fair Value Measurement [npuis
Level 1 Level 3 Total
‘Domestic equities : % 25362 3 — 8 225,362
Overseas equities 41,414 — 41,414
Domostic bonds S RN ¥ — . 80304
Cash and equivalents 6,041 — 6,041
Iigﬁlesftate o - SR | e . .9?_9.1_2‘. | o 9;914_;
Hedge funds — 16,372 16,372
Total L 5. wmel s %68 5 319907

The following table presents the Fair Value of the Company’s non-U.S. pension plan assets at October 2, 2015, segregated by level of Fair Value
measurement inputs within the Fair Value hierarchy promulgated by U.S. GAAP (in thousands):

Fair Values By Level of
Fair Value Measwement Inputs
Level | Level 3 Total
Domesticequities R s 28007 8 3 28,007
Overseas equities 198,309 —_ 198,309
Dorestic bonds o R L w26 — 3266
Overseas bonds 71,545 — 71,545
Cash and equivalents R _ : ) o _39,933‘ — 7 35,933
Real estate — 61,996 61,996
Jnsumncecapimcis ) o ) } C L = ) 32,522 o5
Hedge funds — 260,720 260,720
Total $ 541060 $ 355238 % 896,208
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The following table presents the Fair Value ofthe Cotopany’s U.S. pension plan assets at September 26, 2014, segregated by level of Fair Value
measurement inputs within the Fair Value hietarchy promuigated by U.S, GAAP (in thousands):

The tllowing table presents the Fair Value of the Company’s Non-U.S. pension plan assets at September 26, 2014, segregated by level of Fair Value

Fair Values By Level of
Fair Value Measureruent Inputs
Level | Level 3 Total
Donestic equities 2R674 § — % © 268,673
Overseas equities 40,587 — 40,587
Domesticbonds 85,853 : — 85853,
Cash and equivalents 3,932 — 3,932
Hedge fands — 63 16,304
Total 399,046 § 16304 % 415,350

measurerment inputs within the Fair Value hierarchy promulgated by U.S. GAAP (in thousands):

At October 2, 2015 and Septermber 26, 2014, the Company heolds no assets in the U.S. or non-U.S. pension plans that use Level 2 fair value meas urement

Fair Values By Level of
Fair Value Measurerment Inputs

) Level | Level 3 Total
Flomestic equities B2 § = T
Overseas equities 218,779 — 218,779
Diomestic bonds gy . — s
Overseas bonds 76,349 e 76,349
Cashand equivalents TR, — - msy
Real estate — 59,966 59,966
Insurance contracts —_- _7 37,468 . 37!',468g
Hedge fands — 213,936 213,936
Total ' 564,801, § 30§ 876171 -

inputs.
The following table sunmmarizes the changes in the Fair Value of the Company's U.S. Pension Plans® Level 3 assets for the year ended Octeber 2, 2015 (in
thousands):
Real Hedge
Estate Funds
Balance, beginning of year 3 =3 16;3@4%
Purchases, s.ales, Emd settlerments 10,616 - —
Realized and unmalizcd'gail_:ls'(losses) _ B — - : ﬁ8
Trans fers (702) —
Balﬁnée', -endloi-‘_year Ty 9914 S 16,372
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The following table swmmarizes the changes in the Fair Value of the Company’s non-U.S. Pension Plans’ Level 3 assets for the year ended October 2, 2015
(in thousands):

Real Insurance Hedge
] Estate Conkracts Funds
Balnee, beginning of year ' 3 39,966 - § 37468 $ 213,936+
Purchases, sales, and settlements 1271 526 4,760
Realized and unrenlized gains ' ' 5,390 1353 s
Trans.fexs — — —
Efffect ofexchinge rate changes o {#,631) . (6325) (12695
Balance, end of year $ 61,996 3 32522 § 260,720

The following table swnmarizes the changes in the Fair Value of the Company’s U.S. Pension Plans’ Level 3 assets for the year ended Septernber 26, 2014
(in thousands):

Real Hedee

Estate Funds
Belance, beginning of yaar E $ B 4411 3§ 15,511
Sales _ o (4,411} _
?Réaliz':%d'»a'ni:'l_.un_t_ealized losses o S . — c73
Balance, end of year $ — 3§ 16,304

The following table sumimarizos the changes in the Fair Value ofthe Company’s non-U.S. Pension Plans' Level 3 assets for the year ended September 26,
2014 (in thousands):

Infrastructure Real Inswrance Hedge

{ Raw Goods Estate Conlracts Fnds .
Ba]ance,_béginning.ﬁfyeur o $ 7076 § 51173 8 21;21‘4_ § 246389
Purchases, sales, -an-d settlements - {8,125) (6,022) 975 4,945
Realized and unrealized gains S es s Tes o dLmey
Transfers — — 15756 —
Effectof exchange rate changes -~ ~ . 24 ' a7 {1,403 7S
Balance, end of yoar $ — 8 59966 % 37468 S 213,936

The following table presents the amount ot cash contributions we anticipate making into the plans during fiscal 2016 (in thousands):

Non-tl.S.
u.5. Pension

Pension Plans Plans

§F 1500 § 303

The following table prescnts the total benefit payments expected to be paid to pension plan patticipants during each of the next five fiscal years, and in
total for the five years thereafler {in thousands):

Non-U.5.
U.5. Pension Plans Pension Plans

2016 § a5 5 30,242

2017 47442 31,632

L2018 a8 39w

2019 44,240 35,833

: 2020 age 35369

For the periods 2021 through 2025 216,232 224452
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The following table presents the components of net periodic benefit cost for the Conpany’s U.S. pension plans recognized in the accompanying

Consolidated Statements of Barnings for each ofthe last three fiscal years (in thowsands):

) 2015 2014 2013
Sefvice cost $ 245 % C1207 § 13,814
Interest cost 20,629 22,041 18,569
Bapeeted return on platy assets (29;526) B {28495) ‘ ) ' o (255326)2
Actuarhlloss 3,756 3,608 8,030
Prior servies ost . . @9 s . (o
Net pension cost, before special iterms 6,665 9,128 14,484
Speviattermination benefits . - —_ S
Total net periodic pension cost recognized 3 6,665 § 9,128 § 14513

The following table presents the conponents of net periodic benefit cost for the Corpany’s Non-U.S. pension plans recognized in the accompanying

Consolidated Statements of Earnings for each of the last three fiscal years (in thousands):

) 2015 2014 2013
Service.cost $ T $ 253H S AV
Interest cost S . 44,659 54,203 7 a 5i,331
_Expe_ctﬁ Iétglfh -on_-_]_jli:m_?,ss_etﬁ ) CSS{E)SQ) o (56,394) T (35438_—1751
Actuarial loss 17,398 15,993 13,276
Prior setvice cost ’ : 96 (28) (43):
Net pension cost, before special

ftetos 30,283 39,153 39,8064
Curtailents and settlements 255 (15,894) {383)
Total net periodic pension cost ' _ - . .

‘recognized - . $ 30,538 § 23,259 5 . 39481 :

Multiemplover Plans

In Canada and the U.S., we contribute to vatious trusteed pension plans covering hourly construction employees under industry-wide agreements. We
also coatribute to various trusteed plans in Australia and certain countries in Europe covering both hourly and certain salaried etoployees. Contributions are based
on the hours wotked by employses covered under these agreements and are charged to direct costs of contracts on a current basis.

The nujority of the contributions the Company makes to nultienployer pension plans is outside the U.S. With respect to these naltierployer plans, the
Company's liability to fund these plans is generally limited to the contributions we are required to make under collective bargaining agreements.

Based on our review of our multienployer pension plans under the guidance provided in ASU 201 1-09—Conipensation-Retivement Benejfits-
Multiamployer Plans, we have concluded that none of the multiesrployer pension plans into which we contribute are individually significant te our Consolidated

Financial Statements.

The following table presents the Company’s contributions to these multienployer plans during each of the last three fiscal years {in thousands):

) 2015 2014 2013

Canada ' $ 255 % 56341 § ~ 2660

Europe 10,002 12,693 12,930

Unifed States S _ 598 A48 - 4366

Total $ 0445 § 73519 89,956
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7. Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents amounts reclassified fiomchanges in pension liabilities in other comprehensive income to direct cost of contracts and selling,

general and adminisirative expenses in the Cepany's Consolidated Staterments of Eamings for the periods presented related to the Company's defined benefit
pension plans (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013

Amottizfion of Defined )

Benefit Jtems: ) : B ) .
Actuarial losses § @2L153 § (19,601) § (7,550
Priorservioe benefit S % 28 _ 43

Total Before Income Tax (21,057 (19,573) (1751

Tneome Tax Benafit 477 4385 5859

Total reclassifications after-

tax $ (16330) $ {15188) § (11,652)

8. Savings and Deferred Compens ation Plans

Savings Plans

We sponsor various defined contribution savings plans which allow participants to make voluntary contributions by salary deduction. Such plans cover
substantially all of our derestic, nonunicn enployees in the U.S, and urg qualified under Section 401(k) of the U.S. IRC. Similar plans outside the U.8, cover various

groups of enployees of our interational subsidiacies and affiliates. Scveral of these plans allow the Company to match, on a veluntary basis, a pottion of the
employee contributions. The following table presents the Company’s contributions to these savings plang during each of the list three fiscal years (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
§ 8T S BRYST § 74,686

Cur Executive Security Plan and Fxecutive Deferral Plans are nonqualified deferred compensation programs that provide benefits payable to dircctors,
officers, and certain key employees or their designated beneficiaries at specified future dates, upon retirement, or death. Benefit payments under both plans are
funded by a combination of gontributions from participants and the Company, and most of the participants are covered by life insurance policies with the Company
designated as the beneficiary. The fellowing table presents the amount charged to expense for the Company’s deferred compensation plans during each ofthe last
three fiscal years (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
iy 55% S 5321°% 4470
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9. Income Tuxes

The following table presents the components of our consolidated income tax exponse for cach of the last three fiscal years (in thousands):

2015 2014 013
Current incore taxexpense: ' _
Federal ' $ 2,840 3 102450 $ 121,302
Sate , I [ " R 18,698 . B 2346
Foeign 43,344 38107 74,107
Total current laxexpense TN 159255 218,655
Deferted incoire taxexpense (benckit):
Tedoral ' R A 7561 - @718
State ' 2,295 2,789 (582)
Forelgn {16,309) 20440 T gl
Total deferred incorme tax
expense (benefit) _ @ALITH 30,799 2,711
‘Consolidated incoms tax expense $ 01,255 8 o5 % - 220366

Deftrred taxes reflect the taxcffects of the temporary differences between the amounts recorded as assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the comparable amounts recorded for income tax purposes. Defemred taxassets and liabilities are measured using the enacted taxrates and laws that will be in

effect when the differences are expected to reverse. The following table presents the components of our net deferred taxassets at October 2, 2015, and September 26,
2014 {in thousands);

ws . A
Deferred taxassets:
Obligations relating to: ] .
Defined benefit pension plans $ 64644 § 67,822
Qther ervplayeo bonofit plans S BEWL 25860
Net Operating Losses 34,467 64,063
Contractrevenues and costs i 7- 7 o 25,5"1'9 . . 39,734 :
Deferred Rent 9,428 6,008
Other . 13,565 1703
Valuation Allowance (60,320) (54,651)
Gross deferred taxassets . I Y064 340,542 -
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization ’ CIR7,009) © {493,726
Other, net (3,994 (1,372)
Giross deferred tax liabilities ' (191,093) - (185,098)
Net deferred taxassets . $ 182971 § 145,444

A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce deferred taxassets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized based on an assessment of
positive and negative evidence, including estimates of future taxable income necessary te realize future deductible amounts. The valuation allowance at October 2,
2015 and September 26, 2014 was $60.3 million and $54.7 million, respectively.

Net operating loss earry forwards of foreign subsidiaes at October 2, 2015 and Septenber 26, 2014 totaled $455,1 million and $205.8 millior, respectively.
Ifunused, foreign net operating losses of $127.8 million will expite between 2017 and 2035, Net operating losses of $327.3 million can be carried forward indefinitely.
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The following table presents the income tax benefits realized from the exereise of nonqualified stock options and disqualifying dispositions of stock sold
under our employee stock purchase plans during each of the last three fiscal years {in millions);

2015 2014 2013
$ 0z 3 34 3 73

The following table reconciles total income taxexpense using the statutory U5, federal income taxrte to the consolidated incone taxexpense shown in
the aceompanying Consolidated Statements of Eamings for each of the last three fiscal years (dollars in thousands):

2015 2014 2013

Statutory ampunt o 5 141479 3 189758  § . oL
State taxes, net of the federal

beneflt 7 12,857 7 o 12,750 o 14,892
Taxdifferential on foreign C ' ' fo

eamings (60,151} (8,311) ) o (20,253)
Uncertain tax positions 2281 (2,847} _ 1,553
Other,net -~ S C o 4me. 604 . (6,368
Consolidated incone faxexpense 5 101,235 % 190,054 3 221,366
Rates used to compute statufory _ B o ) i C ] :

amount . ) BO% 350% L 350%
Consolidated effective income

taxrate 23,5% 35. 1% 33.5%

The Company’s consolidated effective income taxrate was 23.5% for fiscal 2015, compared to 35.1% in fiscal 2014, Contributing to the decrease as
compared Lo the prior year's periods were the effects of a foreign currency loss and deductible costs associated with the 2015 Restructuring. Also contributing to the
lower effective taxrate was the reduction of certain taxreserves due to statute expiration.

The following table presents income taxpayments made during each ot the last three fiscal years (in millions):

2015 2014 2013
g UsES 0 U IB6 § 2358

The following table presents the components of our consolidated eamings before taxgs for each of the last three fiscal years {in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
‘Uhited States eamings s 283,504 % 288,800 % ' 352,404 :
Foreign earnings 146,633 253,366 309,144
- ' o g 430137 § 542,166 $ 661,548 |

United States income taxes, net of applicable credits, have been provided on the undistributed earings ofthe Company’s foreign subsidiaries, except in
those instatices where the eatnings have been pemmanently reiovested. At October 2, 2015, approximmately $26.1 million of such undistributed eamings of certain
foreign subsidiaries have been permanently reinvested. Should these eamings be repatriated, approximately $4.9 million of income taxes would be payable.

The Company accounts for unrecognized tax benefits in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Tncome Taxes. Tt accounts for interest and penalties on
unrocognized taxbenefits as interest and penalties (i.e,, not as part of incors taxexpense). The Cormpany’s liability for gross unrecognized tax benefits was $42.7
million and $41.9 million at Ceteber 2, 2015 and September 26, 2014, respectively, all of which, if recognized, would affect the Company’s consolidated effective
income taxrate. The Company had $42.1 million and $39.2 million in accrued interest and penalties at October 2, 2015, and Sepiember 26, 2014, regpectively. The
Company estimates that, within 12 months, $4.7 million of gross, primarily non-U.S.
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unrecoghized taxbenefits will reverse due to the anticipated cxpiration of time to assess tax. As of October 2, 2015, the Company’s U.S. federal income taxreturns for
taxyears 2012 through 2015 remmin subject 1o examination,

The following table presents the reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized taxbenefits for the years presented (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
Balarce, beginning of year ) o S ae § 0 ST § 36T
Additions based on taxpositions related to the curent year 6,440 - 0,528 5447
Redustions fortaxpositions qurihr_g'rcé'rs - S (5,697 (16,375 ' 6,354)
Sefllerment — — (960)
Balanca, onct of year _ _ § 2es6 3 M3 S 51,70

1¢. Commitments and Contingencies, and Derivative Financial Instruments

Commitments Under Operating Legses

We lease certain of our facilities and equipment under operating leases with net aggregate fitus lease payments of approximately $913.8 million at October2,
2015, payable as follows (in thousands):

In fiscal years,

- 2016 - _ $ L 1M4
2017 - 138,081
wis e i
2019 _ ' 98,626
00 B 14
Thereafter o S ' 338,843

- R ' 933,250
Amounts representing sublease income (17.401)
Total, netaggregate futurc leass payments ) s ST eisp0!

We recognize rent expense, inclusive of landlord concessions and tenant allowances, over the lease termoon a straighi-line basis, We also recognize rent
expensc on a straight-ine basis for leases containing fixed escalation clanses and rent helidays. Contingent rentals are included in rent expense as accruable.
Operating leases relating to many of our major offices generally contain renewal options, and provide for additional rental based on escalation in opetating expenses
and real estate taxes.

The following table presents rent expense and sublease income offietting the Company’s rent expense during each of the last three fiscal years (in thousands):

o 2015 2014 2013
Fentospense ST TITseT 8 194795 % 173,340
Sublease income 5275 (6,102) 7914)
Netrent _ e o 169792 § - 1856M § - 165,426

Guarantee

We are party to a synthetic lease agreement involving certain real and personal property located in Houston, Texas that we use in our opetations. A synthetic
lease is a type of off-balance sheet transaction which provides us with certain tax and other financial benefits. Significant terms of the lease are as follows:

End of lease term ) o 7 . N i E '_ . - ] 2025

End of termpurchase option (in thousends) 3 76,950

Residual value guaranty (in-thousands) _ $ 62412
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The Company refinanced the synthetic lease agreement effective July 28, 2015 with a ten year term. The new lease agreement continucs to gives us the right to
request an extension of the lease term. We may also assist the owner in selling the property at the end of the lease term, the proceeds fromwhich would be nsed to
reduce our residual value guarantee. The minimum lease payments required by the lease agreement is included in the above lease pay-out schedule. We have
determined that the estimated Fair Value of the aforementioned financial guarantee was not significant at October 2, 2015,

Deslvative Fluancial §

In situations where our operations incur contract costs in cunencies other than their finctional currency, we attempt to have a portion of the related contract
revenues denominated in the same currencies as the costs, In those situations where revenues and cosis are transacted in different cumencies, we sometimes enter
into foreign exchange contracis in order to lindt our exposure to fluctuating foreign cumencies. The Company does not currently have exchange rate sensitive
instruments that would have a material effect on our consolidated financial staterments or results of oporations.

Letters of Credit
Letters of credit outstanding at October 2, 2015 totaled $236.4 millicn. Of this amount, $2.5 million has been issued under the 2014 Facility and $233.9 nillion are
issued under separate, commmitted and uneommitted letter-of-credit facilities.

11. Contractual Guarantees, Litigation, Investigations, and Insvwrance

In the normal course of business, we are subject to certain contractual guarantees and litigation. The guarantees to which we are a paity generally relate to
project schedules and plant performance. Most of the litigation in which we are involved has us as a defendant in workers' compensation; personal injury,
environmental; employtment/labor; professional liability; and other similar lawsuits.

We maintain insurance coverage for varicus aspects of our business and operations. Qur insurance programs have varying covetage limits and
maximns, and nsurance companies may seek to not pay any clains we might nake, We have also elected to retain a portion of losses that eccur through the use of
various deductibles, limits, and retentions under cur insurance prograns, As a result, we may be subject to fiture liability for which we are only partially insured or
conmpletely uninsured, We intend te mitigate any such future hability by continuing to exercise prudent business judgment in negotiating the terms and conditions of
our contracts. Our insurers are also subject to business risk and, as a result, one or more of themmay be unable to fulfill their insurance obligations due to insolvency
or otherwise.

Additionally, as a contractor providing services to the U.S. federal govemment and several of its agencies, we are subject to many levels of audits,
investigations, and claims by, or on behalfof, the U.S. federal government with respect to our contract perfosmance, pricing, costs, cost allocations, and procurement
practices. Furthermore, our income, fiunchise, and similar taxreturns and filings are also subject to audit and investigation by the Intemal Revenue Service, most
states within tho U.S, as well as by various government agencies representing jurisdictions outside the U.S.

We record in our Conselidated Balance Sheets amounts representing our estimated liability relating to such claims, guarantees, litigation, and audits and
investigations, We perform an analysis to determine the level of reserves to establish for insurance-related claims that are known and have been asserted against us,
and for insurance-related claims that are believed to have been incurred based on actuarial analysis, but have not yet been reported to our claims administrators as of
the respective balance sheet dates. We include any adjustiments to such insurance reserves in our consolidated results of operations.

The Company believes, after consultation with counsel, that such guarantees, litigation, U.S. govemument contract-related audits, investigations and
claims, and income taxaudits and investigations should not have any materfal adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements.

On Angust 9, 2014, tho Conpany received a Notice of Arbitration from Motiva Enterprises LLC (*Motiva"). The arbitration is pending in Houston, Toxas
before the Intemational Institute for Conflict Prevention and Resolution. In 2006, Motiva contracted with Bechtel-Jacobs CEP Port Arthur Joint Venture (“BITV™"), a
joint venture between Bechtel Corporation and Jacobs to perform professional services in connection with the expansion project at the Motiva Pert Arthur, Texas
refinery. In the Notice of Arbitration, Motiva agserts various causes of action and alleges fraud and breach of fiduciary duty and entitlement to equitable and
monetary relief in excess of $7 billilon. BIIV has denied liability and is vigorously defending these chains. The arbitration hearing is currently scheduled to begin on
September 26, 2016, The Company does not expect this matter to have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial statements.
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On Septerber 30, 2015, Nui Phao Mining Company Limited (“NPMC”) comimenced arbitration preccedings against Jacobs E&C Australia Pty Limited, The
arbitration is pending in Singapore before the Singapore Intemational Arbitration Contre. In March 2011, Jacobs E&C was engaged by NPMC for the provision of
anagerent, design, engineering, and procurement services for the Nui Phao mine/imineral processing project in Vietnam, In the Notice of Arhitration, NPMCasseris
varfous causes ofaction and alleges that the quantumofits claimexceeds $136.0 million. Jacobs has denfed liability and is vigorously defending this claim No
hearing date has been sot. The Company does not expect this matterto have a muaterial adverse effect on its consolidated Bnancial statements.

On August 7, 2015, Facobs and Jacobs Fiekl Sexvices N.A. Inc. {collectively the *“Jacobs Parties™) filed a demand for arbitration before the AAA against
Frecport-McMoran Corporation (“Freepott™) alleging breach of contract for failure to pay invoices and for statutory penalties for failure te pay, and assent they are
entitled to damages in the amount of $71.0 million. On August 28, 2015, Freeport filed an answering statement detrying the Jacobs Parties’ claims and asserting
counterclaitms against the Jacebs Parties for breach of contract and alleging damages of $116.0 million. The Jacobs Parties have denied liability and are vigorously

defending these claims. No hearing date has been set. The Company does not expoct this matter to have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial
statements.

Cn December 7, 2009, the Judicial Council of California, Administrative Office of the Courts (“AQC”) initiated an action in the San Francisco County
Superior Cowt against Jacobs Factlities Inc. (*“JFI"} and Jacobs Praject Management (“JPM"). On June 6, 2011, AOC filed an operative Second Amended Conplaint,
which added Jacobs as a defondant, The action arises out of a coniract between AQC and JFI pursuant to which JFI agreed to provide regular maintenance and
repairs at cettain AOC court facilities. AOC alleged three causes of action: (1) breach of contract based on the expiration of JFI's contractor’s license before the
assignment and assurmption agreement was executed; (2) disgorgement of all fees paid to JFland JPM under the contract pursuant to California’s Contractors’ State
License Law (“CSLL*); and (3} breach of Jacobs’ parent guarantoe agreement, JPM cross-claimed for unpaid sums for services that the licensed JPM had performed
pursuant to the assigned contract between August 2009 and Noverber 2009. A jury trial was held on the parties’ CSLL claims in April 2012 and, on May 2, 2012, the
juty retumned a special verdict in favor of the Jacobs entities, finding, among other things, that JPM was owed approximately $4.7 million in unpaid fees and that JFI
was not required to disgorge the approximate $18.3 willion that AOC had paid for its work under the coniract. AOC subsequently dismissed its cause of action for
breach of contract, and JPM dismissed its cross-clains other than those for its unpaid invoices. AOC’s third cause of action for breach of the parent guaranty was
resolved by a stipulation, which provided that if AQC obtains a judgment against JFI, the judgment will also be against its parent, Jacobs. The trial court entered
judgment in the Jacobs entities’ favor and awarded themapprowimately $2.4 million in attorney foes, On August 20, 2015, the California Court of Appeal for the Fist
Appellate District reversed the juty’s verdict, holding that JFT had violated the CSLL. The Court of Appeal remanded for an evidentiary heating fo determine whether
JFLand JPM had “substantially complied” with, and may thotefore avoid disgorgement under, the CSLL. The court also reversed the award of attomey fees, On
September 29, 2015, the Jacobs entities filed a petition for review, seeking California Supretre Court review of the Court of Appeal’s decision that JFT and JPM had
violated the CSLL. That petition was subsequently denied (fudicial Councif of California, Administrative Qffice of the Courts v. Jacebs Facilities, Inc., et al ). The
Jacobs cntities have contested, and will continue to vigotously contest, the AOC’s claims and will vigorously litigate JPM's claim for unpaid sums. The Cormpany
does nat expect this matterto have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial staterments.

12. Conimon and Preferred Stock

Jacobs is authorized to issue two classes of capital stock designated “common stock” and “preferred stock™ (each has a par value of $1.00 pershare), The
preferred stock may be issued in one or more series. The number of shares to be included in a series as well as each seties’ designation, relative powers, dividend and
other preforences, rights and qualifications, redemption provisions, and restrictions are to be fixed by the Beard of Directors at the time each series is issued. Ixcept
as may be provided by the Board of Directors in a preferred stock designation, or otherwise provided for by statute, the holders of shares of common stock have the
exclusive right to vote for the election of Directors and all other matters requiring stockbolder action. The holders of shares of cormon stocl are entitled to dividends
ifand when declaved by the Board of Directors from whatever assets are legally available for that purpose.
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13, Other Finaneial Information
Receivables

The following table presents the components of “Receivables” as shown in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at October 2, 2015, and
September 27, 2013 as well as certain other related information (in thousands):

_ _ 2015 2014
‘Amounts billed,net N I 123892 § - 1425341
TUnbilled receivables and other 1,252,500 1,368,482
Retentions receivablz ) ) - '82;342 o 73;732 ;
Total receivables, net 3 2548743 § 2,867,555
Other infosmation about receivables: ' : :
Atounts due from the UIulitSd VStratres federal
governnent inglided above, net of
advanced billings b 327157 % 324,928
Claine receivable . . 3 B 25l 8 - 186M

Billed receivables, net consist of amounts invoiced to clients in accordance with the tenms of the client contracts and are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts, We anticipate that substantially all of such billed amounts will be collected over the next twelve months,

Unbilled receivables and retentions recelvable represent eitrbursable costs and amounts earned and reinbursable under contrac(s in progress as of the
respective balance sheet dates. Such ameunts become billable according to the contract terms, which usually consider the passage of time, achievement of certain
mifestones or completion of the project. We anticipate that substantially all of such unbilled amounts will be billed and collected over the next twelve months.

Claims receivable are included in “Recsivables” in the accompanying Conselidated Balance Sheets and represent certain costs incurred on contracts to
the extent it is probable that such claims will result in additional contract revenue and the amount of such additional revenue can be reliably estinated.

Property, Equipment, and fmprovements, Net,

The following table presents the conponents of cur property, equipment, and improvements, net at October 2, 2015, and September 26, 2014 (in
thousands):

2015 2014

Land” L o 8 BT § 21497,
Buildings 97,597 128,584
Fquiproent L - S 502491 . 6315
Leasehold htqﬁrovemants 259,544 287,314 7
Lonstruction inprogress : R 7. B 20059
990,618 1,092,369

Acounulited depreviation and amortization o _ (609;380) C {635,572
5 38,238 § 456,797
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iz Assel:

The following table presents the conponents of “Miscellancous noncurrent assets” shown in the accompanying Conselidated Balance Sheets at
Qctober 2, 2615, and Scptember 26, 2014 (in thousands):

] 2015 . dna :
Deferred income taxes 3 213,767 § 176,649
Casirsurendervalue of life insusancé policies . 115,440 : 116,686 :
Investments 222941 226,628
Nefes nec.e':lvabl_é o - R . ) 13,197 - T 8,007
Reimbursable pension costs (a) o 119,548 71,710
Other - S ez 38,570
Total $ 719,515 & 638,250

{a}  Consists prinntily of costs incurred relating to a defined benefit pension plan covering employees providing setvices on a contract with, and for
the benefit of, the U.S, federal govemment pursuant to which such costs are fully roimbursable,

Aceryed Lighilities

The following table presents the components of “Accrued liabilities™ showm in the accompanying Consclidated Balance Sheets af October 2, 2015 and
Septeber 26, 2014 (in thousands):

2015 2014
Avcrued payrolland related liabiliies ~ -+ s 623,297 % R
Project-related accruals - 130401 140,-938
Non projectirolited aceruals . - . s N (-5 - S %
Insurance liabiities 59,081 52,820
Seles and other similar taxes ' o - o ) - 53,.476_ . o '532;3&'3';
Deferred rent ' 03,040 96,120
ober o R R
Total 5 1090985 % 1,279,556

Other Dofevved Linhifities,

The following table presents the components of “Other defened liabilities™ shown in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at October 2, 2015
and September 26, 2014 (in thousands): ’

W15 2014

Liabilities relating to defined henefit pension - }

and garly retirerment plans 3 416725 - 8 . 407263
Liabilities relating to nonﬁuaﬂﬁéd deferred

cotnpensation arangements 129,982 114,325
Deferred income taxes - ' ' 191093 195,098
Miscellaneans ’ ' 126,068 117,302
Total ~ - T% 0 8e3E8 $ . glgm:
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Total Accunptiated Gther Comprehensive Loss

The following table presents the conpanents of “Accunmlated other comprehensive loss” shown in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at
October 2, 2015, and September 26, 2014 (in thousands }:

_ o 2015 2014
Foreign currency translation adjustments ; (199,087 $ (62,919
Adjustments relating to defined benefit pension plans (266,440) £299,210)
Other - S 763 (L0
Total {6d,764) $ (363,549)

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

During fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014, the Company acquired businesses for cash and stock of $8.10 million and $1.4 billion, respectively, The following table
presents the non-cash adjustments relating to these acquisitions made in preparing the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (in thousands):

_ - _ _ _ _ _ 2015 2014
Working capital : : T 3 {8749 $ L 48327
Property and equipment 71 59,216
Nonoument assets S @ | 262450
Deferred liabilities (1,316) 7 (7,855)
:Nnn—cdiaerH;tig 'ihte;BSts. ) . T o - . _ . . 16,*5—72%
Foreign cuneﬁcy translation — - 1,768
Goodwill ' - 49" 1005923

14, Segment Infor mation

We provide a broad range of technical, professional, and construction services including engineering, design, and architectural services; construction
and construction management services; operations and maintenance services; and process, scientific, and systems consulting services. We provide our services
through offices and subsidiaries located primarily in North America, South America, Furope, the Middle Fast, India, Australia, A frica, and Asia. We provide our
services under cost-refmbursable and fixed-price contracts,

Allof our operations share similar economic characteristics. For example, all of our operations are highly influenced by the general availability of qualified
engineers and other technical professional staff, They alse provide similar services as well as share similar processes for delivering our services. There is also a high
degree of similarity of the workforces employed among the various categories of services we provide. For cxarmple, engineering and design services {ie., services
pravided by persons whe are degreed, and in certain circumstances licensed, professionals such as engineers, architects, scientists, and economists) exist in all four
service categories. In addition, there is o high degree of simifarity among a significant component of the workforces we employ to perform construction and
operations and maintenance projects. In providing construction and cperations and naintenance services, we elvploy a large nuiber of skilled craft labor personnel,
These include welders, pipe fitters, electricians, crane operators, and other personngl who wotk on very lorge capital projects (in the case of projects classified within
the conslruction services calegory) or on smaller capital projects {in the case ol maintenance projects classified within the operations and maintenance services
category). In addition, the use of technology is highly similar and consistent throughout our organization, as is our client base (with the cxception of our operations
outside the U.S., which perfonn very little work for the U.S. federal government), and our project delivery and safety protocols and programs. Furthermore, the types
of information and internal reports used by the Company’s chief operating decision maker and other members of managenent to monitor performance, evaluate
results of operations, allocate resources, and otherwise manage the business support a singlo roportable segment. Accordingly, based on these operational
similarities and the way ranagement tronftors the Company’s results of operations, we have concluded that our operations nay be agpregated into one reportable
segment for purposes of this disclosure.
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The following table presents certain financial information by peographic arca for fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013 (in thousands}:

20158 2814 2013

Revenues: : . ) ) -
United States $ 7154433 § 7078366 § 6,993,594
Eirope _ e 20737 202399 . 248504
Canada o ‘ O L065651 1,344,632 1,652,386
Asia I : o 43 . 09086 - 204203
India ' 163,871 148,453 . 158,908
Australia and New Zealand - R stz 09,379 11507
Souih America and Mexico ' ' 143,014 M213 241,590
Middle Eastand Affica , L 597,362 N 2T
Total 5 2114832 § 12,695,157 § 11,818,376
Long-Lived Assetss N ) B ' R R o .
United States ' $ 208,155 $ 40501 § 230281
Furope S R T - v & I Cosse R AV
Canada 36,647 51622 R
e , . S e pg e e o
India S 16264 17,960 15,040
Austalla I oMde0 - Tdgae o - 839
South Anerica and Mexica ' Y B 11,084 6,150
Middlo Bast and Africa R o L 2Tols S BE® - 69%
Total 3 38238 § 456,797 37996

Revenues were carned iomunafiiliated clients located primatily within the various and respective geographic areas shown. Long-lived assets consist of
property and equipment, net of accummlated depreciation and amortization.

The following table presents the revenues camed directly or indirectly fromthe U.S. federl govemment and its agencies, expressed as a percentage of
total revenues, for fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013:

2015 2014 2!];3
A% - 18 9%

During the fitst quarter of fiscal 2016, we announced a reorganization of aur aperations around four global lines of business, This reorganization is
intended to better serve our global clients, leverage our workforce, help streamline operations, and provide enhanced growth opportunities. The four global lines of
business are; Petroleum & Chemicals, Buildings & Infrastructure, Aerospace & Technology, and Industrial. We are in the process of modifying our systems and work
processes to report the results of these business units accurately and timely. We ate also developing processes for accurately eliminating inter-unit revenue and
profit. We expect to conplete our systemand other process changes so that we may accurately report operating results by line ot business to the Company's
President & CEO no later than the second quarier of fiscal 2016
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15. Selected Quarterly Information — Unaudited

The following table presents selected quarterly finaricial infermation for each of the last three fiscal years, Amounts are presented in thousands, except for

per share amounts:

First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
Quarter Quarler Quarler Quarter A Year
Revenues 3 3,187,005 § 2,903, 332 3 2907 541 $ 3 116 954 12,114, 832
{Operating profit (a) ComEmE - mes o w0gd T sgs odassir
Eamings before taxes 154,605 128,962 97,188 49292 430 137
Net eamings of the Group 106195~ 8Bl S M a8
Net eamings attributabls to
Jacobs 100,079 81,967 b) 91,062 (b) 29,863 (] 302,971
Eammgspetsharﬁ' 7 . . :.. 7 . . R . K 7 .:7 B
Basic 0 0 65 0. 25 o) 242
Dﬂute b e 077 0,64__ 024-.-. (b) 240 e
l{evenues - ' R L : 3068?891 $ R % Y SR oAy 21_2,@9'5'_,1‘5,7 R
Opemtmg pmﬁt (J.) 145 047 122,434 528,068
' B} O 169 7k .
Net ea.mmgs of the Group 98 949 90,800 {c} 352,112

Neteamlngs aftributableto ' I LI _ [ '
 Jmcobs . = _-93,_?}2_-;_;»_._j,__:;__--'8_3,4691 ) ; io3BAGR
Eammgs per share
CBas o ST toam T ekt D es 6. F o tast
Diluted 0.71 0.63 (d) 5 () 2.
Revenues S $ aTeel § $ 3080995 $ 3 $ 118[837‘6
Operating profitfa) e e ST Esg e R 1) PN
Emnmgsbefmetms' 156,311 L1908 168423 661548
Netearnings ofthaGroup - - . 104328 Lo U 1078890 Tigeey Clhois
Net eamings attubutable to
Jacobs 99,010 104,401 108,871 110,811 43093
Bamipgepersharci’ 0 T e T T e e e T e
Basic 077 .81 0.4 0.85 327
Biwed T T T b T am T g Tt T T g

(a)  Operating profit represents revenues less () direct costs of contmets, and (i) selling, general and administrative espenses.

(b)Y  Includes costs of $9.6 million, or $0.08 per diluted share, in the second quarter of fiscal 2015, $30.1 million or $0.24 per diluted share in the third quarter of fiscal
2015, and $68.2 million, or $0.56 per diluted share, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, related to the 2015 Restructuring,

{c} Includes costs of $47.0million, or $0.35 per diluted share, in the third quarter of fiscal 2014, and $30.4 million, or $0.23 per diluted share, in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2014, related to the 2014 Restructuiing,.

(@) Includes $6.4 million, or $0.05 per diluted share, increase to net samings related to a gain on the sale of certain intellectual property m the second quarter of
fiscal 2014,
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16. Definitions

The following terms used in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statemments and these Notes to Congolidated Financial Statements have the
meanings set forth below:

1989 ESPP” means the Jacobs Engineering Croup Inc, 1989 Erployee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended, The 1989 ESPP is 2 sharcholder-approved, broad-
based, enployee stock purchase plan qualified under Section 423 of the US. IRC.

[999 ODSP" means the Jaceobs Engineering Croup Inc. 1999 Outside Director Stock Plan, as amended. The 1999 ODSP is a shareholder-approved, equity-
based compensation plan covering Jacobs' non-management directors.

1999 SIP* means the Jacobs Engincering Group Inc. Stock Incentive Plan, as amended. The 1999 SIP is a sharchelder-upproved, equity-based
compensation plan covering the Company's officers and key employees.

The "2015 Restrugturing” refers to a series ofinitiatives intended to improve operational efficiency, reduce costs, and better position the Company to
drive growth ofthe business in the future. Actiens included involuntary terminations, the abandonment of certain leased offices, and the co-ocation of employees.
Included in the Company's consolidated results of operations for fiscal 2015 are pre-taxcosts of $107.9 million relating to the 2015 Restructuring. These costs are
primerily included in selling, general, and administrative expense in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Barnings.

The "2014 Restructuring refers to a series of initiatives ntended to itnprove opentional efficiency, reduce costs, accelente the integration of SKM, and
better position the Conpany to drive growth of the business in the future, Actions included involuntary terminations, the abandonment of certain leased offices, and
the co-location of emplovees, Included in the Company's consolidated results of operations for fiscal 2014 are pre-taxcosts of $93.3 million relating to the 2014
Restructuring. These costs are mcluded in selling, general, and administrative expense in the sccompanying Consolidated Statements of Eamings.

“ASC” refers to the Accounting Standards Codification as maintained by the FASB, The ASC is the primary source of U.S. GAAP to be applied by the
Company and all other nongovernmental entitics, The ASC organizes and presents hundreds of previously separate pieces of authoritative accounting guidance into
asitigle on-line research databasc. The accounting principles prommulgated by the ASC are organized therein by broad topics, and is updated by the FASB through
the issuances of ASUs, >

“ASU” means Accounting Standards Updates, the primary means by which the ASCis updated by the FASB.

(T

“Company” (incliding “we", “us” or “our”) reans Jacobs Bngineering Group Ine, and its consolidated subsidiaries and atfiliates.

“Consolidated EBITDA" generally means consolidated net camings attributable to Jacobs, plus consolidated (i) interest expense, (i) tax expense, and
(itf) depreciation and amortization expense (inclucling amortization expense relating to intangible assets).

"Consolidated Funded Indebtedness" generally means the sumof (i) the balances cutstanding under all loan, credit, and similar agreements for borrowed
money (including purchase noney indebtedness), (i) all amounts representing direct obligations arising under Jetters of eredit, (jii) indebtedness in respect of capital
leases and simitar fnancing arrangements, and (iv) the value of all guarantees issued with respect to the types of indebtednass described in (i) through ().

"Consolidated Leverage Ratio" means, as ofany date of determination, the ratio of {i} the Company's Consalidated Funded Indebtedness as ef'such date
to (i) the Company's Consolidated EBITDA for the immediately preceding four consecutive fiscal quarters.

“EPS” means camings-per-share. “Basic EPS” is computed by dividing the consolidated net earnings attributable to Jacebs by the weighted average
nutrher of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. “Diluted EPS” is computed in a manner similar to the computation of Basic EPS, but gives effect to
all dilutive securities that were outstanding duting the period. Our dilutive securities consist of nongualified stock options and restricted stock {including restricted
stock units)
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“Fair Value” means the price that would be received fromselling an asset, or paid to transfer a Bability, in an orderly transaction between market
participants as of the date fair value is determined {ie., the “measurement date™), When determining fair value, U.S. GAAP requires that we consider the principal or
nost advantageous market in which we would transact any sale or purchase. U.8. GAAP also requires that the inputs (factors) we use {consider) to determine fair
value be considersd in the following order of priority:

«  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

«  Level2inputs are ebservable inputs {other than queted prices In active markets included in Level Lysuch as (i) quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities, {ii} quoted prices in markets that have insufficient volume or infrequent transactions {i.e., less active markets ), and (iii) model-driven
valuations in which all significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated wiih, observable market data for
substantially the full termofthe asset or liability; and

¢+ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the fair value measurenent.

“FASB" means the Financial Accounting Standards Board. The FASB is the designated organization within the U.S. for establishing standards of
financial accounting that govem the preparation of financial reports by nongovernmental entities,

“GESPP" means the Jacobs Eagineering Group Inc. Global Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended. The GESPP s a sharcholder-approved, broad-
based, employee stock purchase plan covering employees of certain of Jacobs' non-1J.8. subsidiaries.

“Group” refers to the condined econotmic interests and activities of Jacobs and the persons and entities holding noncontrolling interests in the
subsidiaries and affiliates that are consclidated into the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

“Tacobs™ means Jacobs Engineering Group Tnc.
“1.8. GAAP” means those accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the United States.
118, TRC” means the U.S, Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“VIE” means a “Variable Interest Entity” as defined in US. GAAP, A VIEis a legal entity in which equity investors do not have sufficient equity at risk for
the entity te finance ifs activities without additional subordinated financial support or, as a group, the holders of the equity investment at nisk lack any one of the
following three characteristics: (i) the power, through voting rights or similar rights, to direct the activities of a legal entity that most significantly impact the entity's
economic performance; (if) the obligation to absorb the expected losses ofthe legal entity; or (iii) the right to receive the expected residual retwms ofthe legal entity.
Accordingly, entities issuing consolidated financial statements (ic., a “reporting entity”) shall consolidate a VIE if the reporting entity has a “controlling financial
interest” in the VIE, as demonstrated by the reporting entity having both (i) the power to direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the VIEs
eeonomic performance; and (i) the right to receive benefits fromthe VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE or the obligation to absorb losses of the VIE
that could potentially be significant to the VIE.
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Report of Ernst & Young LLP
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockhalders
Jacobs Engingering Group Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and subsidiaries as of October 2, 2015 and September 26, 2014,
and the related consolidated statements of camings, comprehensive income, stockholdets' equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period
ended October 2, 2015, These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statemrents based on our audits,

We conducted cur audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards requite that wo
plan and performthe audit to obtain reasonable assurmnce about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, ovidence suppotting the amounts and disclosurcs in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by monagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
Tor our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refetred to above present fairly, in all raterial respects, the consolidated financial position of Jacobs Engingering Group Tnc.
and subsidiaries at October 2, 2015 and September 26, 2014, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each ofthe three fiscal years in
the period ended October 2, 2015, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States}), Jacobs Engineering Group Ing, and
subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of October 2, 2013, based on criteria ¢stablished in Intemal Control-Integrated Framework issucd by the
Committee of Sponsoring Orgenizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) and our report dated Novemiyer 23, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

{5/ st & Young LIP
Los Angeles, California
November 23, 2015
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Report of Brnst & Young LLP
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockhelders
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc,

We have audited Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and subsidiaries’ intemal control over financial reporting as of October 2, 2015, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria).
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective intemal control over financial reporting, and for its assessiment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial repertting included in the accormpanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and performthe audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective intemnal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects, Ouy
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a muterial weakness exists, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circunstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statenents for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pettain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets ofthe company; {2) provide reasenable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statemments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and diectors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements, Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and subsidiaries nmintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of October 2,
2015, based on the COSO gritetia,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and subsidiares as of October 2, 2015 and September 26, 2014 and the related consclidated statemments of camings, conprehensive
incoine, stockhiolders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the pericd ended October 2, 2015 of Jacobs Enginecting Group Inc. and subsidiaries
and our report dated Noverber 23, 2015 expressed an ungualified opinion thereon,

S/ Frmst & Younp T1P
Los Angeles, California
November 23, 2015
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